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Our Managed Services businesses
are enabled by talent-focused
Specialist Staffing brands with deep
heritages, vertical sector expertise
and loyal candidate networks. Clients
across the wortd trust us to deliver
Managed Services and Specialist
Staffing in the UK, North America,
Asia Pacific and Europe.

working with them are 2,900
impellam people, bringing a

wealth of expertise through our 13
market-leading brands across 70
locations. Every year, we connect
carefully chosen candidates with
good work at all levels. They inciude
technology and digital specialists,
scientists, clinical experts, engineers,
nurses, doctors, lawyers, teachers,
receptionists, drivers, chefs,
administrators, warehouse and call
centre operatives.

OUR VISION

Underpinning everything we do

is our Virtuoso strategy which
recognises it is our people who make
the difference. Virtuosos make and
deliver on promises, and grow with
their customers through sector,
service or international expansion
which ensures there is never a
need for a customer or candidate
to teave Impellam. Impellam is the
largest Global Talent Acquisition
and Managed Workforce Solutions
provider in the UK, and 8th in

the world.

To be the world’'s most trusted staffing company
- trusted by our people, our customers and our investors in

equal measure,

OUR MISSION

To provide fulfilment and a sense of purpose for our
people, and help our customers build better businesses

in @ changing world.

SO e T vETar v s

www.impellam.com

w
3
u
1
1
T



STRATEGIC REPCRT O

RPORATE SOVERMANCE FINANC ALSTATEMENTS

Progress and performance

Headlines

impellam delivered on its promise For the year with a strong return o growth
coupled with conversion improverrert ard Further strategic progress. Group
revenue was up 13.1% (14.7%*) on the prior year at £7.3bn (2020 £2.0bn) and
1.8%* up on 20193 Adjusted operating profit® up 61.0% (70.5%*) Lo £29 3m
(2020: £18.2m)

OPERATIONAL

© Ourrew, regional orgarisation model, supported by our Four key operating
segments — STEM, Clobal Managed Services {{CMS'], Regional Specialist
Staffing ('RSS ) and Heatthcare - enabled us to innovate and respond quickly
to rapidly changing custorner needs and candidate availability whilst
enjoying the economic benefits of increased demand.

~ Strong operational gearirg in the UK regior followirg strategic delayerirg
initiatives, with conversion of gross profit to adjusted operating profit
reaching 14.2% (2019: *0%..

Year one of our Customer Office exceeded our expectaticns, delivering
100% accourt retertior and a 27 % increase ir Life Time Vaiue ("LTV2,

is

Our key strategic investmerts were in people and technology with both
investrnent ¢ases Jrderoirring our core principle that virtaosity makes the
difference. The core systems road map moved :nto the delivery phase with
or premises servers moved to the cloud and 3 staged delivery of rew
systerms and upgrades continuing through 2022,

im Nortk arrerica, followirg a strategic review of the scale and lirmited
geographic Footprint of Corestaff, our hight industral business. and a
subsequent expression of interest resulted in its post year-end divestment
of Corestaff to swipejobs Inc, a US private digital staffirg company, for a
cash censideration of approximately £14m ($15m).

FINANCIAL
© Gross profitincrease of 17.1% {19.5%*), with HZ 2021 up 6.5%% on H2Z 2015,

. Strong rebound in the UK and NA with gross profic growth on the prior year
of 22 6%* and 16.7%* respectively In APAC which experienced prolonged
lockdowrsin 2021, gross profitincreased by 4.9%*

The GMS and the STEM portfolios, represerting over 60% of the Croup’s
gross profit, were up 14.8%* and 29.0%* respectively cn 2020 and up 4.8%>
and 8.0%* on 2019 gross profit.

2 Strong rebound in RSS with gross profit up 26.9%* year on year, though still
12.1%* pelow 2019 evels.

Investment in headcount to support growth with 440 net joiners during
202", although headcourt remains 77 below the 209 year erd position.
Gross profit per FTE (productivity) was 12 8% above 2079 fevels,

'+ Adjusted operating profit® growth of 61.0% to £2%.3m (2022: £48.2m).

Net debt® increased by £5.2m o £31.5m (2020 £25.3m) followirng £38.5m
of deferred UK vAT and US federal taxes repayment, with the Final VAT
repayment made n Q" 2022, Pre-iFRS 16 ~et debt- of £15.0m (2020
£4.1m) with covenant ieverage ratio less than 1x throughout 2021,

Following strong operational cash gereration of 167.6%. excluding deferrad
tax repayments, banking facilicies repltaced ac £182 5m, representing a

£57 5mreduction an the previous facility. Net debt befere IFRS 162 has
reduced by £57 3misince 2019

GROUP REVENUE_£m

£2,262.4m

GROUP GROSS
PROFIT_Em

£267.0m

GROUP ADJUSTED
OPERATING
PROFIT®_£m

£29.3m

GROUP OPERATING
PROFIT_£m

£19.5m

GROUP NET DEBT
(BEFORE IFRS 16)*_£m

£(15.0)m

GROUP NET CASH
GENERATED FROM
OPERATIONS_£m

£10.2m

Formore St mar e

Glossary: page_122

* Calcutated oy Tuitip.ying che cricr yea funchicnal Carrency amourt by —he carrert year foraigr turrercy exchange rate

2uife T me Jawe LTy s defired as average margin pat chent « average .ergta ot cosrrac:
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At a glance

Our operating segments

We organise our portfolio of Global Managed

Services and Specialist Staffing businesses regionally

and by specialist operating segments.
GLOBAL MANAGED SERVICES
We take care of the whole staffing
process, so that our customers can
focus on building better busiresses.
Wwe do this by providing rosust
multidisciplirary arg blended
talent solutions to enterprise-level
organisatiors, including partial ard
complete outsourcirg.

Cur Clobal Maraged Services brands
are Cuidant Clobal, Corrersura
and Flexy.

KEY METRICS

Revenue_£m Gross profit_gEm

£456.3m

NORTH 2020: £481.5m

AMERICA 2019 £413.8m
£1,741.4m
UK & Z020: 1539 5m
EUROPE 2019 Y. 767.5m
£64.7m
APAC 2020: £52.5m

2019 £73.5m

Fage S

£76.5m

2020: £70.5m
2019 £73.9m

£172.5m
2020 £14C7m
2019 £178.5m

£18.0m

20200 £158.Sm
2019 £206m
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REGIONAL SPECIALIST STAFFING

Qur Regional Specialist Staffing
{'RSS" businesses in the UK leverage
cur deep heritage, sector expertise
and extensive network of specialist
candidatas to provide expert
recruitment services and fulfilled,
enrgaged workers for our castomers,

Our dedicated teams build better
busiresses by providing people for
permarent, serrparary, contract and
Fixed-price wark; from the supply of
warabouse waorkers Lo secretaries, cail
ceptre operatives, lawyers, drivers,
teachers, chefs, HR and marketing
professiorats.

Our RSS brards are Blue Arrow, Tate,
Career Teachers ard Chadwick NotL.

STEM

Our portfolio of global STEM brards
brings together 3 wealth of specialist
recruicment expertise under one
umbrella. Gur STEM brands work
collaboratively to provide specialist
Cortract arg permanrent recrditment
services ard staterrert of work
across the STEM sectors. By attracting
she very hest of STEM talert, our
busiresses combine the Jnique and
complemenrtary skiti sets of scientists,
clinicians, engireers, IT ard digital
specialists to collaborate, imnovate
and co-create a betrar Future for us
all, by solving same of the world's
toughest problems.

Owur STEM brands are Carboné0,
SRC ard Lorien e the UK & Europe
ard Bartech, SRC and Lorier i
Neorth Amrerica.

HEALTHCARE

Medacs Clobal Croup ¢MCCY is 3 leading
interrational healthcare workforce
solutiors provider operating under 3
variety of brands, ircluding Medacs
Healthcare, Clobal Medics, and Litrrus
workforce Solutions. MCC provides
healthcare staffing, managed services,
staff bank, sccupational health, insourcing,
social care and ~ome Care services.

withir its bealthcare brards, MCC
deliverslocum, terrparary and permarent
doctors, nurses, alled healtn professicrals
ard care workers. |tis the largest provider
of locur doctors to the NES in che UK
ard to the HSE i Ireland ard is the

largest supplier of spedialist healthcare
maraged services outside of the US,

with operations acrass the UK, Irelard,
tre Midale East, Irdia, Austratia and New
Zealand, MCG enables custorrers Lo
deliver autstarding care globatly.

Tomat oL s

www.impellam.com

Far =28 -
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At a glance continued

Awards

Here are just some of the awards we have been recognised for...

Page o4
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Chairman’s statement

A strong return
to growth

Despite disruptior to our busiresses acrass the world from on-
qoing Covid-*9 restrictiors, we have delivered ar cutstarding
performarce in 2021, with astrorg return to growth ard
robust “ecovery in our adjusted operating profits- This 15
testarrent to our resilient, callaborative business maodel 3rd
commitmeant of our Virtuoses.

The year 202" began with a returr o lockdowr 10 the UK ard
our experience In 2620 enabled us te respond guickly, moving
to remote workirg once again. From this challerging start to
the year, derrard .ncreased rapidly 3cress all cur regiors 3s
restrictions have eased, customer confidence has refurned and
candidate shortages have :ntensified. Revenue is now ahead of
2C19 and we are sesing the 2enafits of the dedisive moves we
made to reshape our busiressin 2020 delivering results.

we have cortirted o crarsform gur busiress, strengthering
our key brards, sirclifying cur orgamsatioral stracture and
irvestirg in our techrotogy ard our people to erable them
to perform o their upmost potertial. Gur rrove to a regioral
reporting structure «s part of this process, Jrderpinred by
ouJr four key operating segmerts sligned to our primary
Lord Ashcroft KCMG PC busimress activities.
Chairman
we have focased or keepirg our people safe and supported.
Treir resilierce and teracity in the face of ar uncertair
environment has been exemplary and on behalf of the
Board | weuld like mo thark them all for therr dedication

“WE HAVE and hard work.

DELIVERED AN et B e e s rel-defned ulture ncapsated
in Vipk \ndel Ara s F .

OUTSTANDING a0 Bod o 25 we begm our sustanabIity ourney.

P E R FO RM AN C E whilst we learn to live with Covid-193, our customers ard

" candidates expect us to help them navigate the new world
I N 20 21 . of work. We will cortirue to crvest i our people and our
rechrology to ersure we can deliver inrovative solutions
for our customers and attract high-quality candidates in
3 tightening labour market and whilst facirg an uncertain
pelitical .andscape.
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CEOQ review

Delivering on
ur Promise

Julia Robertson
Group Chief Executive Officer

OVERVIEW
we made encrmous strides asa Croup in 2021,

The promise we made to aur castomers, oar people and our
investors during the pardemic was that we would accelerste
our strategy and emerge as a “ight.ng fir Virtuoso orgamisation.

Our strategic and financial results for 2021 demonstrate that
we delivered or that promise. We entered 2021 1In our new
forrratior: ar aqile Virtuoso operatirg model with fewer
layers, erabling us -0 :nrovate and respond quickly to rapidly
charging customer needs ard candidate availabitity whiist
enjoying the economic bensfits of 3 iean cost base

Early 'nthe year we were able to demorstrate our rew
orgarisaticral agility and the Q° lockdowr i the UK gase

Js the opporturity to pat it to the test. We retied or the
Flexibility and resilience of our people as they jugglea
competirg responsibilities. We collaborated with our
cJstomers to help them navigate the issues they faced while
we supperted cur communities by finding them good work,
supportirg maeny to transfer their skills to buoyart sectors.
wher the schools closed in January 2027, we immediately
seconded our talented education recruiters to support the
national effort in our healthcare and scentific businesses who
were busy fulfilling demands For Covid-1% testing and then
vaccination programmes. This 1s one example of our Virtucso
agility which contirued through the year as we resporded to
the higher-than-expected bounce back in demand across all
our markets and territories.

wich the wind ir our sails, we focused hard on adapting guickly
to a swift ard urprecederted change in rmarket dynamics,
whilst preserving the efficiency ana conversion gains made
duning our transformatior programme ir 2020, whilst

the challerges of the pandermic ard resultart lockdowrs
3cross our major ter-itories continued, we soon saw the
upside npportunity from the major pressure on employers
gtobally due to the 'great resignation’, high attrition ard a
booming post-Covid-19 jobs market. [n particular we saw an
immediate irpact or demard for tech, digital ard analvtical
skills Followirg rapid global digitisation and, of course. for
ouJr stientists ard healthcare professiorals For testing and
vaccination work. .
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OUR STRATEGIC AND
FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR
2021 DEMONSTRATE
THAT WE HAVE
DELIVERED ON OUR
PROMISE.

GLOBAL UK AND
EUROPE

We enterad 2021 in cur new formatior: an
aqgile Virtuoso operating model with fawer

layers

We focused bard on adaptirg quickly to a
swift ard urprecederted change ir market
dynarmics, whilst preserving the efficency
and conversior gains made during our
trapsformation prograrmme in 2020

Qur key strategic investmerts ir 2021
were ir people ard tecrrology

We mvested in UK leadership to create a
compelling STEM offering and drive better

collaboratior

NORTH
AMERICA

OPERATING SEGMENTS

MANAGED STEM
SERVICES

REGIONAL
SPECIALIST
STAFFING

ASIA
PACIFIC

HEALTHCARE
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CEOQO review continued

KEY STRATEGIC MOVES AND DEVELOPING OUR
HIGH GROWTH MARKETS

Cur key strategic investmants in 20271 were ir people ard
rechrology, with both investmert cases underginnirg our core
principie that Virtuosity is our skrateqgic advartage.

OUR PEOPLE MAKE THE DIFFERENCE

We were pleased to welcorme 440 (net increase) new purposeful
colleagues irto our Group durirg the year who are all now
eigaged ir providing good work For people and people for
good work. Gurinvestments in pecple focused on expanding
cur keams in cur tigh-grawth markets with a 45% headcount
increase for STEM businesses in the UK and a 24% increase

ir North Arrerica. Gur Global Maraged Services ((GMS)
portfolic also invested in headcount but this was offset by the
efficiencies achieved through the collaboration of our Managed
Services brands and the formation of our Centre of Excellence.
The structural efficiencies made in 2020 were maintained

ard improved in our shared services team where headcount
reraired 6% below 26”9 and in our Regional Specialist
Staffing I'RSS} portfelio where headcount rematned 15%
belcw 207 9. Despite the overall increase in our headcount, we
increased our productivity by 18.7%.

Our focus ar ocr people has rever been strorger, starting
First and Foremast with their health and wellbeing, swiftly
followed by a redcubling of our efforts ko make sure every
single persor was ergaded with our purpose ard able to work
effectively in a biended model from home, our offices and our
cliert sites.

We rarrped Jp sueport for our people while planring for a
sost-pardemic world, cortiruing recraitimenrt activity ard
investirg in the workforce of the Future. Durirg the year,
we irvested in our talented peopte services team makirg
significant leadership appaintments in the areas of culture.
equity, diversity and inclasion (ED&ID, talert acquisitior ard
developmenrt. ard reward and recognition whilst Further
refining our Virtuoso model to make it accessible and
mearirgful for all 2,900 impellar people.

I recognition of our colleagues’ bard work amidst tre
ci-allerges preserted by the pandemic and ar unprecedented
imcrease indemard from custarmers, we gave our people

two extra days off Lo focus on their wellbeing. We were

also careful to pause ard recognise odr sdccesses whilst
ancouraging collaboratier and irrovatior along the way,
with towreballs. awards corfererces, socials - both in parson
wher we could ard wirtual wher we could not - which were
desigred to it morate and reinvigorate cur cuitdre after
lergthy lockdowns.

we contirged to lister closely to the Virtyoso Adiance, our
shadow board. The role of the Virtuoso Alliance s to wider
and deeper the leadership tearm's urderstarding of the
changing warld of 'work ard the challenges and cpporturities
faced by our ustomers ard candidates on the front lire. They
rell1t ~ow :tis.

This year, more thar ever, it was critical to understand what
colleagues were experiencing day to day and how it impacted

i them so that we could provide support as and where needed.
" Across two cohorts, 27 Virtuoses contributed significantly

to the developmert of our peaple skrategy, our approach to
blended workirg, wellbeing and moraie, automation, shiftirg
candidate marker dyramics and learring ard developmert
plarning.

Our Virtuese culture ercourages 2ur people to bring their

i authentic selves to work and cur goal is o provide them with

challerging and fulfilling work, supportive colleagues and a
career without mits.

TECHNOLOGY FREES UP QUR VIRTUQSOS
Qurinvestreerts in innovation, digital and core systerms have
touched rmost brands, tearrs and colleagues across the world.
We are 100% focused or freeing up our Virtuosos to add value
to our customrers ard candidates, whilst also delivering ar
enharced digital experience. We have a strategic zarget to be
65% digital’ by the end of 2022 ard we made solid progress
towards this durirg 2027,

~ Asthe global pardernic contirues to discupt the world of

work, acceteratirg cur irvestment in technology remains key.

The 'Digital Core'is a substartive rolling replacement for alt
our sates, operational and finance systems. This supports
our armrbitious growtt pians For Irpellam North America i

, addition Lo supDertirg arganic growth in other geographies.
. we compieted the first ohase of this programme during 2027,
¢+ with initial deployrment to business users in Q4 to be Faillowed

by a roll-out nrogramme teadirg to completiar by the erd
of 2022, We also moved many of our existing systems to
the cloud and exited a large an-premises data centre, saving
property and technology costs.

“AS THE GLOBAL
PANDEMIC CONTINUES
TO DISRUPT THE
WORLD OF WORK,
ACCELERATING OUR
INVESTMENT IN
TECHNOLOGY
REMAINS KEY.”

* Tgitat- Jataatd gitel Techoicagy sLpparted oy Moneticab.e data autortared process Jlouc-zased sysies and flewibie, mcsile channels

Page IR
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As these new systerrs comme on stream, we plar to add a
range of additional modern, plug-ir digitat compenents
to meet the needs of individual regiors, brands, rmarkets,
categories and clierts.

These additional systems will be rapidly deployed. on a cloud
subscription basis, and in 3 combinatior that adds comrpetitive
advantage to the individual business units. Qur existing
integration platform will give us the flexibility to change as
better and newer plug-in products become available. Examples
of investrrents ir plug-n digital comporents ‘rclude enbarced
cardidate attractior and database searching, recruitrrert task
actomatior and ararge of analytics ard rtelligence tools.

Our investment ir technology wiil erable our people to work
more afficiently using self-service solutions and data analytics.
supported by digital process automatior ard irtegratior tools.

Collectively, these new sysiem combiratiors will allow
impetlam to operate ir the nascent Platform Recruitment
Market for high-votume demrand and sapply matching ard will
enhance deal volume and profit per colleague.

Inrovation ard ertreprereursitip are core sehavicurs of
Virtuosity, Crigin, gdr irrovaticn hub, works closely with

the virtuoso Allisnce. IT, the Customer OFfice and across
regions through a virtual innovatior commumty ard actively
monritors errerging techroiogies. In 2027, we irvested in
ourideatior tool arnd DIY quides to crowd-scurce deas

from across the business. Qur Virtuoso model ersures we

are close to odr castomers ard innovate contiraously. Our
cliemts trust our people to provide access tg the latest tools,
insights and trends to support Fast, effective and informed
workforce decision-making. For example ourirnovation
network belped to create a full ecd-to-erd turrkey sclution
that included a chatbot and videg irtenews to speed up an
arrbitious biring campaign. &s the reed for digital soldtiors
grows, our portfelio of proprietary digital sclutions and our
global retwork of digital partners provides our customers ard
cardidates with access to a wide array of stard alore or fully
integrated services ta support them throughout their journey.

Qur offering now spans zero touch transactioral services
through proprietary and hybrid proprietary digital staffing
platfarms through to pavrolt sotutions as well as stard-

alone, third party solutions. For example Flexy acquiredin
2079, usesieadirg techrelogy Lo streamrline the temporary
recreitment process far companies looking for flexible

labour and individuals looking for Flexible work. Flexy is now
errbedded with customers in both APAC and tre UK & Europe.

FACING VOLATILE MARKETS IN

PARTNERSHIP WITH OUR CUSTOMERS

Ir support of our strategic goal that there should never be
areason for a customer to leave Impellam, we cortinued
to optimise our crganisation desigr to make sure that our
customers have access to the very best of Impellam’s
coliective expertise.

This led to che creation of the Customer Office and the GMS
Centre of Excellence. Together, these teams leverage our
orgarisational Virtuosity, custorrer irsight and cemrbired
capability to epsure custorrer delight, growth ard recention.

Our Customer Office is led by a newly appointed Chief Customer
OFficer. This strategic Function s designed to drive customer
engagement with the fight experts at che night tire enabiling
our brands to deliver in the short, medium and long term, deliver
adwvisory, innovative consultarcy, best practice ard berchmarking
and ensure 3 ‘ong-term strateqgy is in 2lace for each custorrer,
Like all orgarisations, our custorrers are emrbracirg change

as they adapt to a volatile and extremely chalienging talent

- market. They are turring to trusted partrers.ike impellarr to

help drive innovation and offar unique perspectives on how
to build better businesses, The Customer Office plays a key
role in yrderstardirg our customers’ reeds and tailoring our
services for them. in the first year of operation, the Customer
Office exceeded expectations, delivering 1€0% account
retentior ard a 2° % increase ir Life Tirme Value LTV

Collaboration rerraired a key sherre ard, togethe- with tre
creation of our Customer Office. the :ntraduction of cur
UMS Centre of Excellence has played a vitai rale -~ reducing
duplication of effort and ensuring that cur cuscomers access
the best that impellam has to offer. This dedicated expert
gicbal furction provides services [0 ¢cJr Maraged Services
and STEM customers and expertise to our brands includirg
access ko techrology, dats management, repadtirg and
implementation expertise, sharing managed services best
practice Inshort, our Centre of Excellence has enabled us to
delrer 3 higher quality, mare consistent service globaily whilst

. improving our operational efficiency.

Forome e 0T maTot L i T

www.impellam.com

Fag: 3™
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CEO review continued

DRIVING SUSTAINABLE GROWTH

Our rew organisation desigr underpinned a strong strategic
focus on our key arowth markets, geographically and
segmentally. We exited 2021 with over 70% of our revenue in
cur digitally enabied CMS and STEM segments and are excited
by the growth opportunities we have seen and continue Lo see
ir these markets In each of our territories. We will continue

to make strategic irvestrrents £o support further growth in
these markets.

We saw strong performance from our CMS operatirg
segment, with robust growth in both revenue and gross profit
reflecting the positive results from increasing collaboration
across the poartfolio. with 20 rew customer wirs, 3 96%
renewal rate and over seyen jears average terure, the
portfolic made significant progress. In the 'ast 12 months
aione, GMS has expanded the scope of servicas delivered to
20% of our clients.

The implementation of our new Customer OFfice nelped
us expand aur service offerng and support Group-fill
opportunities, alongside access to our CMS Clobal Centre
of Excellence.

Both the life scierces ard rechrology sectors bave played
pivotal roles amid the Covid-19 parderic, Digitisation

and trarnsformation have taken a signif-cant leap at both

ar orgarsation and ‘ndustry level To cope with the crisis,
comparies have kad to stand up digital, tech-epabled solutiors
toc meet new demand more quickly than thought possible
before the pandermic. with the introdaction of this ‘new-
normal’, diginisation is also broadening the horizon of

new possibilities in the life sciences sector. Redefined
werkplace environments: the shift in health care celivery;
ard irrovative collaboratiors betweer traditioral companies
and entrepreneurial start-ups are a few examples that

are leading to this unprecederted charge supported by
techrological advarcements.

As g result of pharrmaceutical inrovatiors saving the world
and with technology transformation widespread, customer
demand increased exponentially through the pandermic. in
resporse, Impetlam created 3 Focused STEM portfolic with
irvestmerts ir specialist STEM leadership i both the UK and
North America yielding positive resuits in ks First Full year

of operation. The collaporatior across our brands has beenr
criticat inwinning and “ulfilling some of our largest healthcare
contracks to date, whera we rave beer proud to play our part
In the fight aganst Covid-15 -n the US Uk & Europe. With
significant global capability in this high-growth, future-facing
market, revenues grew by 6.7% (8.6%*) to £759.6m, and gross
profit reached £81 8m, up 25.7% 129.0%~) year on year.

Both our RSS ard Healthcare busiresses bounced back after
Facing tough market conditicns in 2020, with sigmficant
ircreases o Covid-*9 related demand and despite crgoirg
zandidate sharrages, ard chalienges created by border
closares ip our APAC region.

We are particularly proud of the increased collaboratior
between our healthcare businesses and our staffing and
maraged services busiresses which delivered outstandirg
services and people to hospitals, testing laboratories and
yacciration centres across all our terrigories, playing their
part in the fight against Covid-19, whilst alsa delivering to cur
customers as demand increased.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue grew 13.1% (14.7%%) to £2.3bn in 2021 and has now
recovered to a pre-pandemic {2019) level. Gross profit grew by
17.1% (19.5%%) over 2020, only 0.8%* behind 2019

with significant increases in custorer dermand, we made
imvestments ir beadcount ard odr People Strategy and

. continued enhancing our technelogy through our Digital Core
" T Systems Programme whilst delivering a strong adjusted

operating profit® performance of £29.3m, up 67 .C% (70 5%*) on

' 2020 and just 2.0%* behind 2019,

Our strong focus or cash ensured we managed aur cash ard
ret debt: position very affactively and reduced Days Sales
Qutstanding 'DSO'} by 1.7 days. Net debt*increasad by £5.2m
to £31.5m as we repaid £38.9m of the £48.0m cash support
received from both the UK ard US goverrments in 2020 with
the remainirg balarce due to be repaid in 2022 The ongoing
strorg cash position has allowed us to reduce our revolving
credit Facility by £57.5m whilst continuing to invest .n our key
priorities of pecote ard techrology.

96%

Global Managed Services
customer renewal rate.

s Calc.lates by muroing the of ©° 4230 FUC DNai Sul"ency amo LNt Dy the Curtantyear foreign Carrency Bxciange rate
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GLOBAL MANAGED SERVICES

With increasing talent shortages globatly, organisatiors are
focused on comprehersive talert managerrert, innovative
ways o engage staff with a focus on hiring teams rather
thar irdividuals, all of which is driving dermard for GMS
acress the world. As busiresses consider contingent or
extended workforces as the next frontier of innovation.
managed service providers that car advise on and geliver
agile and flexible workforce strategies are in demand.

CMS delivered a3 strorg performanrce ir each of our regiors in
2021, vath revenues of £838.7m and gross profit at £79.2m
up 12.5% (14.1%*) and 10.9% 114.8%*) respectively on 2020.

Qur digitally enabled service offering secured 20 new
customers in the year recresenting £700m annualised
Spend Lnder Managemenrt (‘SUM'YL Importartly, tris strorg
rew business performanrce is coupled with the retention of
396% of our cliert base thereby increasing our -esilience and
arderoinnirg our revense for this year.

Opgoirg investment im our technology s drivirg up
productivity and freeing up our Virtuosos to focus or
our clients ard candidazes. This includes the complete
overhaul of our approach to the desloyment and
managerrert of our proprietary Verder Maragemenrt
Systemn ("WMSY which has enabled us to deliver against
ar ambitious devetoprrert roadmap while improving
efficiency. The role of advanced analytics to generate
market snsights around talert suppiy and demand for
different skills and roles acress multiple disciplines and
wecations has rever beep rmore importart to our clierts.
To deliver analytics seamlessly, an uninterrupted data flow
across mJltiple taols via automated linkages is provided.

The ipvestment ir our people -1 particular, cur partrershig
~1th the Open Data Institute — has been essential to

ensure our people are equipped with the krowledge anc
expertise to .mprove the expenience of our custamers using
techrology. Our digitally ensbled sersice allows Js o Detter
sdpport our clierts as they focus on employer brarding,
recrJitment markefing ard direct sourcing in a comrpetitive
marketplace, where equity, diversity and inclusion (ED&I 15
increasingly impaortarte to buiiding a diverse workforce,

Revenue_fm

+12.5%
£838.7/m

[

TTTalnT

Giossary: page_122

Gross profit_£m

+10.9%
£79.2m

s Zalesuated oy it 2iyrg the of ©F yeart furct oral currarty 3maount Sy the currars year fars gn curtenoy exchange tdre
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STRATEGIC REPORT

CEO review continued

UK & EUROPE (65% OF GROSS PROFIT)

Our businesses in the UK & Europe saw an unexpectedly rapid
bounce back from their Covid-19-driver revenue dig in 2020
ard our dedicated teams were delighted to bave a surplus of
roles to offer our talented candidates. As the year progressed
it becarre clear that we needed to become increasingly
resourceful to help our customers manage theyr requirements
and ergage tre right people to meet their growing needs.

Talent shortages across most sectors were exacerbated in the
Uk due to Brext and OFF Payroll wWorking. Driver availability hit
the headlines resulting in fuel shortages at petrol statiors and
empry supermarket shelves. A scarcity of nurses, residential
care workers and T specialists drove anincrease ir demand
ard pay rates for our cargidates, and in response we “apidly
Jp-skilled cur pecple to deal with these fast-changing

market dynarmics.

The UK & Europe segmert recovered strargly across all our
markets with overall gross profit growth of 22 6% {22.6%™}
which resulted in an excellent adjusted aperating profic
performance, up 202.3% (223.3% ™ on 2020. During Q4 2019,
through 2020 ard cortinuing into 2027, we focused on right
sizirg our cost base and this, together with record-breaking
preductivity, led to the region ending the year 45.8%* ahead
of 2019 adjusted operating profit= even though gross profit
was 4.1%* lower.

Qur GMS businesses in the UK increased gross profics by

8 7% with growth coming mainly from Comensura and
support for Cavid-"9-related work. A number of our Cuicart
custorrers, particularty in the manufacturirg and aviation sector,
experienced reduced demandc due 2o the pandemic, and we
axpect to see those volumes nise as confidence returns. The
new contracts secured in 2020 and 2021 will reap significant
financial benefits :n 2022,

Qur STEM portfolio in the UK delivered impressive gross
profit growth of 43.4%* spread across all brands and vertical
markets, with our life science brand (SRC) also delivering
increased gross orofit on 2019, The 2021 growth has been
achieved through a mixture of improved trading conditions in
the UK after the 2020 lockdowrs, increased demand for tech,
digital and analytical skills at scale, collaboration ard cross
selling across the portfolio ard rew contract wins

in 2uf STEM brards. In addition, market leader SRC Ras been
very active providing scientists and clinical staff ro suppore
Covid-1S-related requirerments for both governmert ard
private companies.

The recovery in our RS5 brards ir the UK was particularty
strong as Covid-19 restrictiors eased ard pert-up demand
led to a gross profit increase of 25.3%* compared o 2C20.
Despite this, the ‘ockdowns in Q" 2021 cortinced to impact
rospitality and cetering (Blue arrow), and also led to schocl
closures, impacting our educatior business {Career Teachers)
where gross profit remained lower than 2015,

ACross our RSS portfalio, permarent recruitment fees were

©90% up on 2020 as market confidence returned, with positive

impact i office (Tate) and legal {Chadwick Nott). However,
in aggragate, the portfolic still lagged 2019 grass profit
by 17 4%*.

QOur Heaithcare busiress in the UK {IMCC) made good progress
in 2021 but with less pronounced growth agairst 2020 with
financial performance continuing to be affected by the
pandemic. The virus had a significant impact on availability

of front-line staff and resulted in the cancellation of elective

| surgery and other ror-urgent medical procedures. During

the year we are proud that MCC was ~eavily irvolvedir the
managerrert of testing and vacciratior services as part of
the nationat effort agairst Covid-1% and, as a censeguence,
faciliteted good work for people in qur life scences (SRC} and

. general staffing (Blue Arrow) businesses who report gross
- profit separately. Gross profit in Healthcare UK and iretand was

up 8.0%* on 2020 and 2 7%* up on 2019.

NORTH AMERICA (29% OF GROSS PROFIT)

Ir North America, our investmerts in STEM ard CMS ndid
dividerds with strong momertum bulding for CMS and rew
STEM leadersmip appoirted to drive accelerated growth,

The region delivered strong gross profit growth of 8.5%
116.7%* on 2020 and was alsc 11.8%* higher than 2019,

This was driven by strong gross profit growth in GMS of
17.3%™ reflecting a asod level of new business secured across
a broad range of market sectors and positive resalts from
ircreased callaboration across the portfalio.

STEM gross profit was steady at 8.7%, with a substantial
increase of 21.8%* in our IT business, Lonier, offset by declines
in life scierces ard engineerirg.

Qur light industrial business, Corestaff, benefited from

fewer restrictiors ard ar ircrease in demard, ard grew

gross profit by 38.3%. A particular feature of this growth

was the supply of workers irto Covid-19-related activities
with gur maraged services customers, Following a strategic
review which considered the scate ard iimited gecgraphic
Footprint of Corestaff in North America, and a subsequent
exporession of interest, we decided that our customers and
pecple would benefit from enhanced geographic reach for
their ight industrial staffing requirements. As a result, nearly
2022 Impellam sold the business and assets of Corestaff to
swipejobs inc., 3 US private digital staffing company for a cash

. consideration of approximately £14m 1$19m). The proceeds of

the sale will pay down ret debt- to fund additioral investment
to further accelerate the Group’s strategy. This trarsactior
will enable the leadership team in North Arrerica to focus our
STEM and CMS portfados and accelerate our investments i
Virtuosity, technotogy and digital ard innovatior.

< ZalculEIes Dy TLIDIING the 2T or year funct vnal carrency 3 e unt by the orrent year faregn carrency axcnange rate
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APAC (6% OF GROSS PROFIT)

In Asia Pacific (APAC). border closures and extended
lockdowns were more severe In 2021tharir 2020 and
continued to frustrate performance ir our healthcare
business despite some encouraging financial and operational
improvements in sequential quarters towards the end of the
vear. Despite this, overall gross profit was up 6.5% (4.9%%) in
2027 with rmore resiliert tradirg in GMS mitigating the dectine
In Healthcare.

Our TMS business achieved gross profit growth of 19.4%*

on 2020 ard a 7.2%* increase on 2019, whilst the Healthcare
business gross profic declined by 9.8%*, due to the crass- '
border iockdowrs,

We cortinaed to build resilierce in our managed services
busiress in APAC when we estabiished our First footheld

in the private sector, securing are of our iargest global
Managed Services Programmes {MSP) with a glebal mining
organisation. ted by our APAC region this will provide over
*,000 reads globally, across multiple functiors from blue
collar skills to miring specialists,

in Austratia, Clobal Medics focused or trarsformation tc equip
the business with the rescurces and tooss to thrive in the next
evolution of tre Agstraliar medical recraitrnent market,

in 2020. we .aunched cur digital platform Flexy into the
Australiar rarket to support our maraged services busiress.
Flexy now has 31 local councils connaected directly to good
quality candidates ir a digital marketplace, supplemerted by a
cigital payrell service that has atready been extended into four
MSP clients in the region. Inits first Full year of trading, Flexy
delivered £0.4m of gross profit.

LOQKING FORWARD

The global pardemic has uperded the waorld of work and
created Fuge socetal change. Our visior ard mission have
rever beer more important as we cortirue to focus an
Virtuosity as our strategic advantage to further trarsform our
propositicn and portfolic. We believe we are well placed for
Further success ir 2022 and beyond, although we are mindFful
of the potential glopal economic impact of the current conflict
in Ukraire,

A Bold Promise

OUR STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE
Virtuosity makes the difference and will drve market-
beating value creatior

OUR STRATEGIC ADVANTAGE

we believe we retair customers, people ard investors
for longer thar our competitars because we're trusted
to do what we say we are goirg to do. We work
coitaboratively across our diverse portfolio with a
shared visior, mission, style and language we call The
Virtuoso Way'. This enanies us to deliver differentiated,
integrated selutions to our customers ard to find good
work for our pecple.

OUR STRATEGIC SCOPE

Customers

We work with customers who value engaged. fulfilled
and purposeful people, ard who allow us Lo take our
share of the ecoromric value we ¢reate as we heip them
build 3 better business.

Offering

we are a leading Clobal Tatent Acquisitior and
Maraged Workforce Solutions orovider enabled
by talent-focused Specialist Staffing brands wich
deep heritages, vertical sactor expertise and loyal
candidate retworks.

Geography

we offer multiple brands and services across North
America, the UK & Edarope ard APAC. To further
support our missien. and to find exciting opportunities
“or our people, we also irvest v, and operate with,
specific clients in other regions

Integration

we have a unigue, differentiated and collaborative
model. This irfegrates Managed Services and Specialist
Staffing into a fuli warkforce solutions management
platform for our customers’ permanert, certingert
and Statemrent of Work {'SOW') spend. Our work is
importart, ard we get it dore.

FooMiete TR TE 0L 5 0

www.impellam.com
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Our integrated, collaborative business model

OUR MISSION

TO PRCOVIDE FULFILMENT
AND A SENSE OF PURPOSE
FOR QUR PEOPLE AND HELP
OQUR CUSTOMERS BUILD
BETTER BUSINESSESIN A
CHANGING WCRLD.

OUR KEY
DIFFERENTIATORS

QOUR CULTURE OF VIRTUQSITY
YViriLosioy 15 a roindset that means 'mpetlan
Jesole sep dpoortunibics wrere others

do o Yirwgosos loar anead Lo see how
CUsi0me 5 ard candidates’ reeds are

ging ~nd are zhwvays ready .o adaot
~ore atimpellarm
coronbules o our 2 lire af Vittuosity by
making & 2iffererce ange 4ong INe COMMIn
Lroommathy setl AT ire sesrt of our
rregratec, callaboraave susitess model
53 atuous wrcle of makirg anc <coping
ST3MIses, 2agercenirg Trust ard lovally 3y
AEODIG Gul 2TSes, ag tetain 2ur dlierts,
Zancicates 2~ oor sesole Fartorge-ang

reap 1n2 zerefizs of trat ongevioy.

THE BEAUTIFUL BASICS
Ae Make sure that the Sealufal 3asics’ ane
in slece and deeply ermsedcesin sl of our

sk Tes8eS ACress our collanorative oorttolic,

Seadhiful 3asics” are canmg for the smaller
details, 35 well 35 .5e ninge” ores. They

ars e 2-Ference [Moelac setoe Make
Shrauge 2 2ay-te-zay Acuens Lo Zeliver on

U7 30885,

TAKING THE HIGH ROAD

We focys or aartherirg with orgenisaticos
snatvalee engagec Fulf led pesole and we
Zall wmis she migh mpac” wkich sevesto cnve
clear rarkel segmentaos ard & zompellicg
ance ol

ENTREPRENEURIAL

VIRTUOS0 LEADERS

Al ou” oasiresses vorkin The VirtLoss Way
xich embeds a zarsisiert, collanoraune
Grouz-wice cult yre nased on tusood
seraviours, feliverad by oattenre-euial
VittLosa leaders ahe Zan drve our
o3TMDRCitve acvatrage a~d celiver an our
srarmises £ all cur staxehoide s,

OUR VISION

TO BE THE WORLD'S MOST
TRUSTED STAFFING COMPANY -
TRUSTED BY QUR PEQPLE, OUR
CUSTOMERS AND OUR INVESTORS
IN EQUAL MEASURE.

TO DELIVER EXCEPTIONAL SERVICE
TO OUR CUSTOMERS THROUGH:

OUR REGIONS
NORTH
AMERICA
UK &
APAC EUROPE
OUR OPERATING SEGMENTS
SGVTAL PLATFOR,
REGIONAL GLOBAL
SPECIALIST MANAGED
STAFFING SERVICES
COLLABORATION
HEALTHCARE STEM

DIGITaL paTFORMS
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)

TO CREATE VALUE FOR
OUR STAKEHOLDERS

OUR CULTURE:
OUR VIRTUOSO MODEL

, H5YCHO LOGICAL 54 Fery

LEADING
CHANGE

by

VIRTUOSITY

EMOTIONAL

INTELLIGENCE COACHING
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Key performance indicators

We monitor our performance against our strategic
priorities by using key performance indicators ('KPIs").
QOur KPls include a set of Financial and non-financial
measures and are discussed further in the CEO

and CFO reviews.

Financial KPls

GROUP REVENUE

_ftm
£2,262.4m

MEASUREMENT EXPLAINED
Reve e gereratec from sales
Fozagacy worke s, Je"manent
zlacer ;
gonerated Uore provision of
SUAFTIrg seny Col.

RATIONALE
~gizates the solume of Zosiness
Senerdares if the year

CONVERSION RATIO ~
ADJUSTED OPERATING
PROFIT* %

11.0%

MEASUREMENT EXPLAINED
Agr_scad 0DeTAnNG Lrartt
expressac 33 3 2erteniage of
gress arefiz

RATIONALE

irQicates tme aff c ey of Tee
2arne~s if 52ne 2L.Ng G Css 33 2
ard tre Crocp's 2ohiny oo connrol
cenfral cosks

Fage 143

GROUP GROSS PROFIT

MEASUREMENT EXPLAINED
Reve~uye less cost of sales, |
precomirately the sum of
toniiact gress prafrand fees
ror the nlacermert of sermarert
cardidaces, less ary directhy

att” sutabig agushmenrs of
~ebates,

RATIONALE
Inct cates eme arzhtanii o o
“evenLe nelnre operaling Costs.

. GROUP NET DEBT?
. (PRE-IFRS 16)

£(15.0)m

MEASUREMENT EXPLAINED
TotaOroos dest excloding ease
lHabiies, \oss ary cash anc cash
aguivale~ts, aftor capianised
Tnarcing costs

RATIONALE
Me: dent- s a key eiement of the
Group's capital soucti-e.

£29.3m

- OPERATIONS_£m

GROUP ADJUSTED !
OPERATING PROFIT_fm |

MEASUREMENT EXPLAINED
Jnderyirg profitzoiliny of the
Croup oeforenterest ard

taxaes b agpestments for

;M pairmerts and amornsauons
of acquirec intargibies and
odarmert of grouse leased
assers. :

RATIONALE

Demonst-ates t~e profitab. oy
of the Group and now effcen:
It 15 3C maragirg (s conrotlacle
0% Dase

GROUP NET CASH
GENERATED FROM

£10.2m

MEASUREMENT EXPLAINED
Te arrountg of 2ash generates
from speraling acorabies anc

after tax pad

GROUP OPERATING
PROFIT_Em

£19.5m

MEASUREMENT EXPLAINED
S-pfiratiigy of The Troup befors

~mac z~d fimance costs,

RATIONALE
Deronsiates the z-cf tabuny of
“re Group.

 ADJUSTED
. EARNINGS PER
| SHARE _PENCE

'35.3p

MEASUREMENT EXPLAINED
Toe 3vo. ot of adjusted
opersong 2rofic perone srare
rthe Troud Catcu.azed as

the agusted ooaratng prof <
atiributanle L2 the Group’s
sratonolaers, divides? by e
average rumber of sharasir

" ssue througnout he year

RATIONALE

Semorsttares ow effcetrre
Groun Is 1~ Zonvertirg ope-aunrg
aclwibies o cash ana therergrs
the abiliby o3 marage ©s capral

" RATIONALE

: AL ong indicalion asto the

rzelyrg 2oftzo iy of a
oroaty, for s shatetolzens
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Operational KPIs

INTERNATIONAL
MIX %

38.1%

MEASUREMENT EXPLAINED
Tera: yrass srofit fram ous ress
opesstiors suiside of the UK
2«pressed a3 3 percentage Jf
JrouD gross profit

RATIONALE

Ceograntic 2 wetsif cacen
sproads sk e~d reduces elianca
G any Ine Coonamy.

GROUP FILL
%

16%

MEASUREMENT EXPLAINED
1~e oercentage of Sperd Jrder
Managorent seaplied “or our
Group orands irio o Global
Manageso Sata0es 2rograr mes.

RATIONALE

Enazies oo Spanaast Staffirg
DFands 12 sucDo Tt ihe Managed
SEFJICES Pograrmmes ard
Sererats §oIss Arort st an

SXISTNG Taent

GROSS PROFIT
MIX %

29.7%

MEASUREMENT EXPLAINED
Teba4rass pro” C gensrated o
our Glotal Maraged Servicas
sLunesses expressed 35 3
ser-erzage of Sroun gross prof b

RATIONALE

Trossorzttirom D osoa
Mzanaged Services orawides
Jsibility o7 incoTe ana yenerates
long-term -elatiersmos with o
clients a~d alig=s Lo oL” sirategic
Driorities

CLIENT RETENTION -
TOP 50 CLIENTS %

100%

MEASUREMENT EXPLAINED
[~e Jercencage of ine Lop 50
clients 1n 2028 who e cortirLed
cosLpply ir 2021 a°¢ ~ave not
beer axtac durnrg the year

RATIONALE
Client ~erorbior Inks 1o 1IMprovec
orafissniicy and afficienc es 0

o senace delrery alongside

AVERAGE GROSS
PROFIT PERFTE
£'000

£98.7

MEASUREMENT EXPLAINED

Tatal gross oraf D wiged oy the

Daverage humbe- of Tull-uime
coegumalerts In The DIowp.

RATIONALE

i anc affi

irdizator of st

CEMmansL amng o Ve
aFfCieney or @t gner IETIeriage

o fee ear-ers al t Il cazanny.

Impoved Suaticy of service.

GROSS PROFIT PER £
STAFF COST

£1.53

MEASUREMENT EXPLAINED
Toral gross oront Zyvided by Tne
Arr Al s5iarr L

i RATIONALE

NG A5G OF 55ETT proguTivity
flecm pgrne cpeacionas
=" ey af e bosiness as

2 wroln

GROUP ADJUSTED

 EBITDA?_£m

£37.0m

i MEASUREMENT EXPLAINED

Dperating profr 2t the Jioop

Sefore sterest max Jeprecss n

canc aroibis3t 6T ard =xc.etes
TIFRS " g acusteris seoanataly
+ 2isclosed 1te™s 30C sndre-dased

paymerts,

RATIONALE

Tho GOl D onuUnees 1o Measdre
ESITOA wich 15 588 “or
ban<irg covena~rs end Irke gl
serformarce TeasL es, [ ogeéiss
LaB¢ axrartaly or valuaten

. D Z0ses,

©Ad, _sted Z3ITDA-

CONVERSION RATIO -
ADJUSTED EBITDA?

Y%
13.9%

MEASUREMENT EXPLAINED
2x5 25520 35 3
se-certage of gross oo

RATIONALE
I~dicates tre 2f  cienoy oF
edarTets il ZeNeanrg grass srofis

ee

i ard te Group s abiliy T3 comtial

ZirecL oSS,

F. It
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Performance reviews

North America

North America accounts for 29% of our
gross profit and is primarily Focused on our
Global Managed Services {{GMS’) and STEM !
operating segments through the Guidant
Global brand for GMS and the SRG, Lorien and
Bartech Staffing brands for STEM.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
A robust revenue increase of 13.6% (2C.4%*} to £456.3m

i followed a stabie year (20720: £401.3m), demonstrating

positive arderlying growth. rather than purely a Covid-* S

" bounce back. Gross profitrose by 8.5% (16.7%™) to £76.5m

(2020: £70 5m) This was driven by strong performance by our
CMS segment with a 17.3%™ rise, reflecting the good level
of mew business secared ard positive results from ircreasirg

" collaborauon across the portfolio. Crowth .0 STEM gross profit

OVERVIEW

Tte regior deliverec a strorg growth in reverue ard gross
profit during the year, making good progress against its
ambitious three-year plar. We have focased or diversifyirg
oJr cient portfolio to ircrease cur resilience ard invested

in huillding the Foundations For expension. Targeting our
STEM business on specific sectors supported by specialist
teams 15 already yielding results and we have benefited frem
the significant recovery in the permanent recruitment and
maraged services markets. The robust performanrce of our
GMS segment in North America reflected nine new customer
wins and over USSS00m annual SUM in 2027 as customers
sought fuil talert maragement sglutionrs in the face of
significant talent shortages across most sectars. As a result of
a strategic review. ard to enasle increased focus or GMS ard
STEM. Corestaff our Light sndustrial business, was sold

to swipejobs Inc, a US grivate digital staffing platfora in
earty 20272

was steady at B 7%* with a substantial increase of 21.8%~ in
our IT business, Lorien, offset by declines :n life sciences and
engineerirg.

Adiusted operating profit= was £10.1m [2020: £13 4m) due
to the impact of investmert in people ard irfrastractare to
support ambitious growth plars. Headcourt ircreased by 136
in response to this expansion of the business in the region.

Reported adjusted operating profit” for the North Arrerica
region in 2021 was impacted by £1.9m increase in provisions
for historical tegal cases and £1m of prov-sion against pre-
202" receivables. The reperted rasylts are also impacted

by the strengthening of £ Sterling against the USS through
2021. Excluding these items, and on a constant exchange
rate basis, operating profitis higher when compared to both

' 2020 3nd 2019,

North America 2021
£m

Reverue 456.3 4ac1 5 2C.4%
Gross profit 76.5 7G.5 6.7%
Admin expenses (66.4) (571} 24 8%
Adjusted operating 10.1 134 | 15.4%
profit?

Cross profit % 16.8% '7.6%

Adju_sted operat:ng 13.2% 0%

orofits conversion ratio %

Permarent fees % 3.9% 2. 2%

* Calculated oy mulbiply ~g the ororyear Furcondi carrancy 37 CLMI Oy 178 CUITers yesr foreign culrercy axciange rate
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“INVESTMENT IN
SYSTEMS AND
TECHNOLOGY
SPECIFICALLY TO
SUPPORT OUR
REGIONAL BUSINESS
WILL HELP FREE UP
OUR VIRTUOSOS AND
IMPROVE CANDIDATE
EXPERIENCE.

*£456.3m

Revenue for North
Americain 2021.

" MARKET DYNAMICS

The candidate shortfailin the JS continues to be a major
chatlenge For our clierts ard our recruitirg operationrs.
Cardidate sourcing, attractior and engagemert remairs a top
priority. The STEM sector expanded at an urprecedented rate
makirg mdrket insight ard specialist krowledge essertial to
commpetitive advantage.

SUPPORTING OUR VIRTUOSO CULTURE

Investment in systems and technclogy specificaily to support
our regioral business will belp free up our virtuosos ard
improve cancidate experience. The appointment of a Croup
Head of Culture and Fulfilment based in the US has aiready
accelerated the pace of our ED&I imitiatwves. Gur Uricy Courcit

* has been relaunched, supported by rew busiress resource
. groups to develop our polices ard raise aware~ess.

PORTFOLIO REVIEW
GMS

The robust performarce of our CMS segrrent in North America

reflected a good level of new business secured across a broad
range of market sectors and positive resuits from inrcreasing
collaboration across the persfolio. Qur new Customer Gffice

" provided beth our key strategic clients ang Virtuoses with
~insight and expertise, helping us expand our service affering.
i Alongside access to our GMS Global Centre of Excallence

" which provices Functional experts across all our brands, we

are row providing a broader perspective to ~elp develop our
cierts ard greater career opporturities for our people.

As demand recovered, the significart programme signed at
the erd of 2020 with Travelport has now bedded inard s
deliver:ng strong growth, while demonstrating the benefits
of cotlaboration petween Group brands placing 1T speciakists
from Lorier alongside the outsourced recruitment services
cortract won oy Caidart. Revenue from a rew custorrar, 3
leading ervironmental services compary, 15 already abead of

expectacions for the initial scope.

" Ongoirg Covid-19-reiated reguiremenrts saw us continuing

to prowide track and trace ard hesith check services i both
Federal and State Goverrmenrts, where our ability ta respord
quickly to rapid surgesir demand was key.

Face 19
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Performance reviews continued

STEM

This was a transitional year as we diversified and refocused
our portfolio by building on our existing speciahisms and
moving Into new vertical markets to broaden our expertise.
Lorien benefited significantly from early investment in 2021
ard was able to take advantage of scrorg post-Covid-"9
tracing conditions, Overthe course of 2021, Larien doubled
headcount and expanded their Specialist Markets team to
address the buoyart mobile development ard Salesfarce

{(a world-leading CRM solution) segrrents ir the technology
space and the rerewabie erergy ard electric vehicle segmenrts
ir the ergineerirg market, driven by demard from the JS
automotive powerhouse. The Lorier legdership team has also
been expanded strengthening the expertise and knowledge
needed to arderpin our rapid growth. [nvesting in these
sectors included hiring new teams to wark virzually i <ey
strateqic growt™ locatiors: Denver, Sar Diego and Aust.n,
ersaring we remrair close to candidates and clierts,

The notable increase in gross profit generated by Lonen
reflected the focus on more complex recruitment solubions

as demand for STEM skills cortirued £a outstrip supply ard
the well-documerted candidate shortage has resulted in
ircreased gppetite from customers to autsoarce their STEM
resource neegs to specialist skaffing prowviders. The demand
for more comolex STEM recruitment soiutions underpinned
by tre creatior of a rew Solutions Bivision resulted in three
new tech-focssed Recraitment Process Qutsourcirg {('RPO')
contracts: the first of these with Epsilon as a single source
supolier for this leadirg US marketirg nrganisation, As a resalt
of this irvestment strategy, Lorien delivered strong resalts,
growing gross profit by 21.8% year over yesr with gross profit
From direct Pire soigtiors aiso up over 200% or prior year.

The overall nerformance withir our STEM portfolio was
mixed, detverng a gross profit growth of 7 5% Collaboration
across the STEM portfolio of brards was particularty strorg,
leveraging existing customer relaticnships across the portfolio
to deliver over $17i (£0.7m) of additional gross profit in the
year. Collasoration between the STEM brards ard our GMS
busiress, Guidart Clobal, also cortirued to gar pace, with
specialist IT, Life Sciences and Engineering staffing provision
into Sroup Managed Service customers up 43% year-on-year.

©CaleLiated 2y ulbIpyRG the oror year funct bra! currerc, amoLrt oy the our

Qag=_ 30

Crowth within our Life Scierces busiress was pelow
expectations given the strong performance of this sector. SRG
was restroctured during 202 to reduce over-reliance on the
{RA vertical (which was impacted due to Cowid-" 9 restrictions
reducing m-person clincal trials). The team was expanded

to support the diversification of the SRC business into the
Quality, Regulatory and Compliarce 'QRC') segmert of the

- life sciences market, to extend its reach from its established
. base ir clirical research ard move from sapporting short-term

clinical trials to longer-term projects. This renewed focus.

' commbired with a charge ir leadership. 15 already deliverrg

early and significant improvements.

Our Ergireering business, Bartech, was slower to recover from
the smpact of Covid-19 within our core Automotive customer

| base. Customer activity improved sigeificantly in the second

half of the year. but headcount challenges in an extremely
competitive market did rot ailow Js to grow the tearr qJickly
erough to capitalise upon this rebourd. In continuation of
cur diversification strategy, we expanded nto the renewakle

- erergy ard electric vebide segments in the ergineering

sector, drven by demand from existing customers.

LOCKING FORWARD

The anderlying infrastructure we preed to drive forward our
expansion plans is now in place with experienced hires on
board ir strateqic leadership roles and specialist teams Fully
staffed to support the robust demand we see across the
markek. Whilst the rew Covid-* 9 variant had sorre 'mpact or
candidate availability early ir 2022, customer demard remairs
high, ard we are seeirg a drop in absences due to Covid-"9,

' so we anticipate contirued growth chroughout the vear. i

e

resporse o increasing demand for STEM candidates, we
will invest in building diverse STEM candidate commranities

' to address the talert shortages in these marxets. Equally,

sigrificant customer demand For innovative CMS solutions will

© cantinue through 2022 and we will reap the benefits of wins

im 2027,

e~ryear foreign corfency exchange rate
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UK & Europe

Qur largest region, UK & Europe, accounts
For 65% of our gross profit generated by all
Four of our operating segments — Guidant
Global, Comensura and Flexy in GMS, Lorien,
Carbon60 and SRG in STEM, Blue Arrow,
Tate, Career Teachers and Chadwick Nott

in Regional Specialist Staffing ('/RSS’) and
Medacs Global Group in Healthcare.

OVFRVIFW

with a strorg bource back ir client germard along with high
lovels of Cowid-1Y-refated business, revenue and adjusted
operating profits®ir the region detivered ar impressive
recovery We saw growth in all brands, significant new
busimess wins and were very proud of our cortribution to

the ~atioral testing prograrmme and to the delivery of the
/acciration programrme i many UK courties. The LUK lockdowr
in Q1 impacted our educatior and catering busiresses but

with restrictions liftirg throughout the year. demand gradually -

returred over the secord half Transportation of goods
remaiped buoyant ard we responded well to the growirg
opportdnities in che heaithcare sector,

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Revenue rose 13.1% (13.8%™ to £1.741.4m {2020 ¢1 §39.5m)
reflecting higher volumes in both temporary and permanent
recruitment ard contributing £0 a supstartialincrezse ir
gross profit of 22.6% (22 6% to £172.5m (2020 £140.7m).
Corrbined with productivity ircreases drivirg higher gross
profit per FTE this delivered a significant recovery 1n adjusted
operating profit* to £24.5m (2020: £8.1m). well ahead of

© 2619 levels. Headcount was increased by 15% with 145 £TZs

recrJdited to meet the rise i demard across botk natioral ard
locat clients.

UK & Euraope
Reveruye 1,741.4 *.539.%5 13.5%
Gross profic 172.5 140.7 22.5%
Admin expenses (148.0} 32,65 0%
Adjusted operating 24.5 81 | 2223%
profig®
Gross profit % 9.9% 9%
Adjusted operating

profit conversion 14.2% 5.8%

ratior %
Permarent fees % 16.4% 1.6%

»£1,741.4m

Revenue for UK & Europe
in2021.

< Caleulated 3y —LIbpy g the 37 07 year FunCLoral Turrency 3aMourt by the currant year fomgigr cur ety 2x073nge rate
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Performance reviews continued

MARKET DYNAMICS

|
ketsem d from vid-- icti o ] |
g et reboinct nqemonc for oot semanenione | AS MARKETS EMERGED
temporary staff across all our brands. Thes reflected major .

pressures or employers facirg 'the great resignation” a5 | FROM COV' D-1 9

empioyee turnover rese in a booming post-Covid-19 ;o0bs

market. This led to a shartage of candidates with supply RESTRICTI ONS, WE

outstrippirg demard in several sectors. Many candidates in

sionind ot anacr i smrsges mscrgme AW ASIGNIFICANT
s e the o e e e REBOUND IN
fi?iZEdT?i’ﬁé’ﬁfiﬁé@?Sﬁffiéii;i?;‘:ii' el DEMAND FORBOTH
e e e e PERMANENT AND
e e e e | TEMPORARY STAFF
ED&I strategies and ther approach to clirmate change.

sureormovnvrmosocuree | ACROSS ALLOUR
the:‘r’wehbemgj oe;sor\ésli developmenrt ard wastc;f workircj B RAN DS°

Career paths were Introduced to provide our peaple with

advice and guidance on the skills and experience required to
progress their careers.

we offered blended working to retain the benefits of working
From home and bring back the collaboration that we enjoy
working together in the office. Tate, in particular moved to
a more rtdal way of working broaderirg their geographic
coverage from a smaller number of offices building on therwr
existing service delivery hub model.

1
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PORTFOLIO REVIEW

GMS

Our managed services business deliverad an 8.7%* increase
Im gross profit. benefiting From the upselling oppertunities
created by the breadth of custorners across the Impellare
portfolio :n the Uk and winning new contracts with existing
clients of other brands For example extensive collaboration
with cur STEM busiresses delivered new cortract wirs: Blue
Arrow introduced Guedant Clobal to Capita and Comensura
ard Cuidant Clobal worked im partrership to deliver alarge-
scale intake and screening programrre for The British Coundil
ard secdred the maragement of Bristol Courcil's Statemrent

of Work (SOW) requirement which will reap benefits in 2022.

Ir the UK & Earcpe, 2021 was a pivotal year for our SOwW
c.net module and offering. We now have circa 120 projects
managed through 20 customers globally. Comersura
celebrated its 20tk arriversary by break:ng ail reverue and
retertior records, with cur tearrs retairing 26 customers ard
profecting over £3m N gress profit.

The strong recovery of reverce in Irelard was driven by anp
irnovative turnkey solution For 3 start-Jp business, ocroviding
people, property ard tecrrology, underpinned by several
rew Contracts,

STEM

To take advartage of the attractive potertial For STEM P
the Uk & Europe, we brought our scientific, technology anc
engireerirg brands - SRG, Lorien and Carbonsl together

. under single leadership to deliver STEM talert at scale.

. Combining sur market-leading scientific. techrology and
 engireerirg brands mto one operatirg segmert (STEM

" Portfolio) has yielded strong results in its first full year

of pperations. 't was pleasing £o see recard “evenue ard
gross profit growth in our STEM 2rands with cross-sed and
collaboration with the Group driving £55.8m in gross profit,

Thus Focus has already yielded fruit with significant wins such

. as our engineering experenca leading to a technical MSP

with Tilbury Douglas, aleadirg UK Suilding, ergireering

and infrastructure company, and Lonen s financial services
pedigree securing 3 new cantract with gre of t~e UK's larges:
long-terr savirgs ard fetiremert Husinesses. Lorer also
secured seven spagalist MSP wirs and 78 pew custarmers
across their Specialist Markets team. A focus or RPCG solutions,
as customrers turned their mirds to permanent nirng, resulted
i Loren winnirg Apsco RPO of The Year, the Chert Services
award at the Tiaras and the RPO Ir-house Recruitmert Team
at the in-house Recruikment Awards.

SRG s market-leacing scientific divisian supported many private
and public sector argarisations with the rapid "ecruitment

of PCR sclertists, recruitirg over 1,200 scientists to sapport
Covid-*9 testirg in less thar 12 monrths and urdertaking all the

' compliance ard requlatory requirements. The demand for SOWw

cortracts continues to grow, particalarly For SRC's laboratory

services divisior (Synergyl whao partnered with Cignpost. a

diagnostic testirg compary to mobilise 330 sciertists,

Inorder to respord with speed ard agility to targe shifts ir

customer derrand, we irvested Ir developing our peacple
and puilding on our specialist sector capability by setting
up a Trairing Acadery to upskil our recruiters with the

- specific skills and knowledge they need to serve hugh-growth,

specialist markets,

73053080 Dy TLILDyINg The POl seds Fopeional tur-ercy amcLrt By the corrert year foreign currency 2xchange fate

Qage
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Performance reviews continued

RSS

Our portfolic evolved further as we focused on creating
strorger brands ard a rrore streamlired organisation, We
strergthered our Equcation busiress, brirgirg Celsiar under
the Career Teachers brard, with irtegrated veriing and
compliance furctions.and a cew pdated CRM system, A
sigrificant new contract with the Harris Federation saw Career
Teachers become ore of three iead suppliers to 50 schools

in the South East, securing a three year cortract. In addition,
we secured a maraged seriice cortract with the Uriversity of
Southampton for ail contingent staffing.

Covid-19 staffing for our public sector clients was a key focus
for Blue Arrow in 2021, with strorg growth 3cross our ScotCov
and CCS framewaorks for supporting 84 government and NHS
organisatiors across Ergiand, Scotland ard Wates. Supply of
staff to our seven JK University clients was also a key focus
throughout 2027, where we saw a 13% ircrease inrevenrues
through our Higher Educatior framewsorks for caterirg,
administration and facilities support staff.

Wwe moved into Phase twe of the Blue Arrow transformation
programme. with a focus on creating efficiencies by cperating
prysical and wirtual offices and centralising support For key
accourts through the Custormer Success Hub. Set up i 2020,
this initiative enkarcad our delivery Lo key ratioral accounts,
reducing duplication across brarches and erablirg our Virtuosos
to corcentrate or their local markets and higher margin clients.
ir Phase two we moved more clients inte the bab, addirg to

the 20 irdustriat and warebousing clierts trarsferred in 2020,
New customers ‘rcluded Hovis ard Tesco where the provisior of
pre-Chrstmas resources has alreaay extended into warehousing
and distribubion in same regions.

Rising demand “or the services provided under our Tate brard
including our new marketing HR and finance staffng, meant
that adjusted operating profit- more thar doubled year or
year as a resdlt.

Page 24

HEALTHCARE

Cur ability to collaborate across our brards enabled us to

Fulfil require ments at pace as we supported the national
testirg and vacanation programme. This enabled MGC to
provide over 2 000 staff ro Fulfil our exclusive managed service
cortract awarded by the Departmrert of Health and Social Care
in December 2020 to supgort the ~atioral Covid-18 testing

i prograrmme. We also supperted the NHS via the vacciration

programme for Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire
health sutharities, where we have delivered three miilion
vaccinations to daie.

Our clinical expertise s underpinning the provision of an
iepovative insourcng service for Urversity Hospital Leicester,
where we are supplying ar end-to-end service, delivered on
tre rospital premises, o help the NHS recuce L3 lorg waiting
lists for elective procedares. A secord similar cortract has
already been sigred and s ~ow iive ard this irsourcirg service
offering will be a key driver of growth for 2022 for MGG,

Doctors on Call was merged into our Clobal Medics UK
busiress, sirmplifying our operatirg skructure. We are already
the oiggest supplier of locum dectors to the NHS and HSE ard
with derand for healthcare professionals cutstripping sapply
ir the UK our internaticnat placerrenrts divisior recruited over
1,100 overseas rurses ir 202 1 and ~ave a pipelire ir place o
deliver more in 2022. we also added significant Staff Bank/MSP
contracts to cur portfolic ar Cardiff & Vale, Central London
Cormmunrity Healthcare, Bristoi & Weston ard Cheshire & Wirral.

LOOKING FORWARD

Whilst we anticipate Cowd-19-related revenue will reduce
going forward, the extensian of our major vaccination
programme combinred with the shortage of bealthcare
professionais, particularly the huge namber of nursing
vacancies, ard the returr of the catering market, wilt continue
to drive demand in the UK. We expect our STEM and GMS
busiresses to go from strepgth to strergth as we respond

to talent scarcity across these discplines and benefit from
custemer wins and expansion through 2022 Collaboration
across our brards has yielded positive results this year ang we
see this as key to building our customer base In the year ahead
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Asia Pacific

The Asia Pacific region currently generates
6% of impellam’s global gross profit, largely
from the Healthcare market in Australia and
New Zealand through Medacs Global Group
(‘'MGG’) and the Guidant Global, Comensura
and Flexy brands ('GMS').

OVERVIEW

Covid-19 continued to have a material impact on our staffing
busiresses across APAC due to frequent and prolorged
lockdowns im states ang territories across Adstralia and in New
Zealand. Border restrictions timited candidate availability as
doctors were unable to travel either .nbourd from cverseas
ol internally as domestic borders closed. Demand from
heslthcare aroviders across Australia returned strongly in Q4
2027 orce lockdowr restrictions lifted in New Soukn Wales
ard Victoria. Public sector reverue aiso began to recover. Ore
of impellarmm’s largest global MSP contracts was sigred with

a glopal miring organisation, creating ansmpertart foothoid
ir the private sector alongside cwo additioral new managed
Services wins.

" FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The regior recorded 3 solid performarce with revenue of

U £64.7m and gross profit of £18.0m both ahead of the previous
. year, with the decline ir healtbcare reveryes mitigated by

¢ more resilient tradirg in maraged services includirg the

- provision of Covid-"9 tracers and vaccine admiristrators.

" This contributed ta an 22.2% {19.8%%, incease 17 adjusted

" aperating profit to £2.2m. Positive trading For the first 12

" manths of the Flexy digital marketplace, the recovery of

Feaithcare demand ardinitial reverdes from the rew privace
sectar cortracts pode well for a recurr o growth in the rew

. financial year.

2020
. £m

% change

Ravenye 64.7 569 9%
Cross profit 18.0 6.9 4 3%
Admin expenses {15.8) ("5 1%
Ad}u.st.ed aperating 52 - 19.9%
profit

Cross profit % 27.8% 28.2%
Adjustedopf?rgtmug profit® 12.2% 10.7%

conversier ration %

Permarent fees % 8.2% 9.0%

»£64.7/m

. Revenue for APAC in 2021,

siZalc..ated oy Lt piyiag the onior year Furctioral curtency amounl Dy the cuttentyear foraigr currery 2xchange rate
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Performance reviews continued

MARKET DYNAMICS

Border contross ard falling pet mrigratior into Australia have
led to a fallir worker pepulatior, creating cardidate shortages
that are being exacerbated as customer demand recovers.

This is putting oressure or cliert budgets requiring rew

ways of working erabled via techrolegy and greater appet:te
For digitalisation.

Candidates are now demrarding more ard some of cur
cJstomers are (rcreasing sapplier margin to attract supoliers
towork with them, The talert crarch s most prorounced in
the medical profession with demard outstnppirg supoly.

SUPPORTING OUR VIRTUQSO CULTURE

Irvestrent in technology 's key to freerg up our Yirtuosos

to sperd more time on cliert relatiorships. Gur proprietary
systems such as et ard Eve provide erbanced digital
platforms to enable this. We continue to focds or traimirg and
developmert, irtroducing feedback and coachirg sessiors for
our Comersara teams and performarce enhancermenrt training
for our Clobal Medics team leaders,

"“ONE OF IMPELLAM'S
LARGEST GLOBAL
MSP CONTRACTS
WAS SIGNED WITH
A GLOBAL MINING
ORGANISATION,
CREATING AN
IMPORTANT
FOOTHOLD IN THE
PRIVATE SECTOR

- ALONGSIDE TWO

ADDITIONAL NEW
MANAGED SERVICES
WINS."
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STRATEGIC REPORT

PORTFQOLIO REVIEW

GMS

By diversifying into the private sector we have started to
expand our portFolio which in turn will incresse our resiience
goirg forward. This was spearheaded by the substantial
global MSP cortract with a miring organisation tc provide

1 00C szaff across all functions internationatly. with a Further
maraged services ~ew business win with 3 'arge Australian
chermical company.

This builds on our traditional, well-established public sector
business where we have retaired ard developed our clients,
For example, retaining 100% of cur customer base at
Comersura. ircludirg 3addirg 3 returnirg client lostin 2020 In
November 2021, we went live with the expanded New South
wales {'NSW" Corrmunities ard Justice Cluster whick saw

sur revende from this existing customer double to cover the
supply of 950 staff and an excension of our services torclude
our first SOwW contract.

Significant contract extensions inciude a four-year managed
services cortract with the Austratian Capital Territory {ACT")
Government which now has the scope to expand into a SOW
agreement during the extenson pericd and a similer four-year
axtension with icare for NSW. the largest public sector insurer
ir Australia, which Fas pow come urder the ambrella of our
MNSW framework agreement.

Extending cur digital platform included the successFul launch
of Flexy in 2020, Inits First Full year of trading in 2C21, it closed
the year with 3° local courcils connected directly fo good
auality candidates im a digital marketplace, supplemenrted by 3

HEALTHCARE

ir Australia, Clobal Medics is Focused on transformation £2
equip the busiress with theresources ard taols to prepare for
future deveiopriertsin the Australian medical recruitmert
market. During the year we brought together Medacs Nursing
ard Medacs Allied Health to create Medacs Australia. This bas
provided MCC with greater syrerqgies and removed barcers to
providirg our customers wit™ aczess to the skills and talerts
they need to deliver ¢ritical services.

Our most recert signirg, Cidgee Healirg - ar Aoongiral
Medical Service ir Queerslard - provides an opportunity
For us to work with the local ‘ndigerous commuarity for the

» First time Collaboration between our Slobal Medics and

Medacs Healthcare brands all supply doctors, nurses, and

. Pealtbcare professiorals for ~emaote communic.es in North

West Queerslard.

LOOKING FORWARD
Wwe articipate a returr to growth Ir our healthcare busiresses

i as New Zealand opers up after a proionged period of

lockdown and Australian trave! restrictions dirmirish, The
strong drive to automate and geliver efficiency will increase
derrand for contingenrt labour in the public sector ard we

o expect our revenue in NSW to increase. The private contracts

digitat payroll service that has already been extended into four

MSP Clierts ir the regior ard the UK.

secured In 2021 H2 wiil provide a springbeard into expanding
our presepce ir this sector. buldding a more resilient busiress
in the regior.

s Zalgs.atec oy Ml owing the prior jear fUPclIora CLur arcy 4Mount oy Ihe co eny year fo eIgr Surrerly xcrange rare
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Chief Financial Officer’s review

A strong
recovery

Tim Briant
Chief Financial Gfficer

Financial

INTRCDUCTION

Revenue for the year was up 13.1% {14.7%*) and gross

profit increased by 17.1% {19.5%*} reflecting the improved
economic conditions that Followed the imrpact of the Covid-"9
parderricin 2020 and the risirg demand for temporary ard
permanent staff across our regions and segmentsin 2021.
The recovery has been strong ard improvea throughout 2027,
with gross profit in the second half of 2021 6 5%~ above the
safme period in 2019, and the final guarter of 2021 11 3%~
above the final quarter of 2019,

To support the growth we invested in customer-facing staff
addirg 282 ro our beadcourt ir the secord balf of 202",
Despite this, headcount at the erd of 2027 remaired 77 'ower
than at the end of 2019, Our staff preductivity (gross profit
divided by FTE heads} was Migher than ir previous years ard
this, together with cost reductions in other areas, inctadirg
travel, property and faclities, meant that adjusted operating
profictincreased by £1.0% to £29 3m (2C20: £18 2m;,. On

a constant exchange rate basis the adjusted operating
profit® was 2.0% below 2079, wWith no required intangible
asset impairment charges this year. the Croup recorded ar
operating profit of £19.5m {2620 loss £15.0m) which alse
exceeded the £13.9m reported in 2615,

The difference between adjusted aperating profic® and
operating profit 1s reconciled on page 120 and relates o the
amaortisatior of acquired irtargibles.

GOVERNMENT SUPPORT

The Croup received £0 4m of rates relief in the final quarter

of 2020/21 and continued (o administer the Job Retention
Scheme {JRS) for a smail number of temporary staff we
provide to clients. The net effect of these programmes on

our gross orofit and cost of sales was not material as these
programmes were used to compensate the termporary

staff affected If allowed us ko maintain these temporary
colleagues or cur payrollwithout chargirg these to clierts ard
preventirg the erding of their cortracts.

= Calcaatec oy ot pyirg the oncr year funck oral currercy amort oy he cartert year forengn furrercy excharge rate

Face_ 8
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From a cash flow perspective the Group repaid £33.1m of the
VAT payments deferred from 2020, leaving £3.3m to be repaid
in the First quarter of 2022 In the US, the First instaiment of
58m (£5.8m) of Ffederal tax deferred under the CARES initiative
was repaid, with the secord instalment due ir December 2022,

FOREIGN EXCHANGE

Currercy movements against Sterling adversely impacted our
reported performance, largely due ta the strergthening of
Sterling against the US Doilar. Over the course of the year to
December 2021 the total impact of exchange movements
on gross profit and adjusted operating profits were £4.9m
adverse and £1.3m adverse, respectively ~iuctuations in

the rates of the Croup's key operating currencies versus
Sterfing corkirue to represent a sensitivity for the reported

performance of our business. By way of llustration, each
cent movement in annual exchange rates of the US Doilar NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

impacts gross profit by £0.6m per annum and adjusted
cperating profitt by £0.1m per annum. The rate of exchange
between the U5 Dollar ard Sterbrg over the year erded 31

December 2021 averaged US31.3757 (2020: USS1.2840;
and closed at US$1.2536 {2020: USS 1.3454). As the Group 2020 £54. Sm
expands further in overseas territories the ‘mpact of changes
In exchange rates will be greater.

= Zalcalated oy multiclying the or ar year FurcoGra suency 3oLt
by t~ecurrent year "oreigr currency excharge “ste

CAPITAL INVESTMENT
Capital expenditure on tangible and intangible fixed assets
Inthe period was £5.8m (2C20: £3.5m), as we recommenced
investmentin oJr core systems £o further digitalise the
business. following a freeze on non- essential capital |
expenditure in 2020, In 2021 our core systems project involved |
moving away from ar-premises servers to the cloud, which 1
alss allowed us te exit an on-premises back up site. In addition.
we began our digital programmes to deliver new front office, ; . o . A
, ) | * Talculated oy multialy g ve 2raryear Tunct.oral Zuirency 37 CuLne
sill and pay systems. as well as global finance and HR systems, i by - rrEng year foreiGn £ iency sxchange -ate
scheduled for Full implemertation ir 2022, We also cortirued

investrrent in our proprietary vendor maragement systems ! NET DEBT BEFORE IFRS 16°
( vMS) and the development of cur digital platform, Flexy
which was deployed in Australia. The netrepayment of finance
teases amounted to £7.2m 12020 £8.3m).
(2020: £4.1m)

Fz- moio 2 "aralo
Glossary: page_122

Pace 23
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Chief Financial Officer’s review continued

INTEREST AND DEBT

Net cash generated from operations during the period

was £10.2m (2020: £54.5m). In 2020, cash generated from
operations benefited from £48.0m of deferred tax payments
and £38.9m of these were repaid in 2021. Excluding the
impact of these tax deferrals, cash generated from operations
was £49.1m (2020: £46.5m). Excluding deferred taxes, the
cenversian of adjusted operating profit to ref cash generated
is 167.6% (2020: 256%). Cash generation frarm nperations

was Further supported by ar improvemrert ir Days Sales
Qutstanding ('DSOY which stood at 35 4 days (2020 37 1 days;
attheerd of 2027,

Finance expenses wera lower than the prior year at £4.3m
(2020: £5.7m). Lease interest was lower at £0.6m (2020
£0.8m) and interest cost on financing Facilities Fellto £3.5m
{2020: £4.6m) as a result of reduced borrowings through

tbe year. At the balarce sheet date net debts, excluding the
adjustments for IFRS 16 was £15.0m compared to £4, 1m0
2020, an .ncrease of £10.9m. From the end of 2013, net debt”
has reduced by £57.3m (a £459.7m reduction when excluding
the remaining deferred tax repayments). Including IFRS 16
adjustments net debt was £31.5m {2020: £28.3m). In addition
to the positive operating cash generation reducing the
Jrderlyirg net debt-, we nave cortirued to activety manage
ourproperty portfolio with a ret reductior in our lease Habitity
of £7 2m from 2020. The net cash flow from operations was
primarily utilised as follows:

+ Investment in fixed assets and scftware development: £5.8m
+ Nertlease repayment: £7.2m

+  Share buybacks £1.9m

»  Netinterest said on borrowings and eases:, £3.9m.

The Croup's operations are financed by retained sarnings and
bank borrowings. With the benefits of the strong operational
cash flow the Group replaced the existing £240m global
revolving credit fFaclity CRCF I with & new facility agreemernt in
December 2021, This £182.5m RCF has an accordion etement
of an additional £40m which is available for three years with
optiors to extend For a further two years. The new facility also
mcludes the appropriate replacements required following the
end of LIBOR. This provides the Group with the fexibility to

furd ‘ts working capital as well as Future potential acquisitions.

Rates of interes: For the RCF are based on SOFRA/SONIA pius
amargin calculated on the net debt- to adjusted EBITDAS
leverage. The RCF also ircludes a letter of credit facility which
amountedto £3.0m{2020: £3 2m) at the end of 2027.

The Croup takes advantage of a rumber of rorrecourse
supplier finance arrangements orgarmsed by clients cf the
Croup to allow for the acceleration of payment of the Croup’s
receivables. At thie end of 2027 these amounted to £8.2m
received for invoices not yet due For payment (2C20: £6.3m).

These agreements accrue interest at between 0.65% ard
1.75% over SONIA applied to the rumber of days the
drawdowr takes place before the due date. During 2021,
the Croup paid less than £0.1m in other interest (2020 {ess
than £0.1m).

A significant prioricy for the Group remains the focus on the
conversion of operating srafit into sustained positive cash
Flow By controlling working capital. The Giuup measures
three covenarts as required by the facility — interest cover,
adjusted leverage ratio (definad as net debt? less loar notes
and restricted cash to adjusted EB[TDAS) and debtor cover.
Al covenants were met durirg the year. Borrowing levels are
controlled by the Croup Finance department, which manages
treasary risk ir accordarce with policies set by the Board.

The Croup's financial liabiities are denominated primarily in
Sterling Exposure to currency risk at a transactional levelis
gererally mirimat, with most transactions beirg carried cut 1n
local currency.

TAXATION
The tax charge in the penod of £7.1m {2020: £1.0m)
represents an effective rax rate af 45.8% (2020: -4.9%) and

. arises or the Growp's activities ir the UK and overseas. The

higher effective tax rate is driven ny non-deductible expenses
and remeasuring and recognising deferred tax in the UK at
25%. Finance Act 2021 increasas the Uk corporation tax rate

- from 15% te 25% effective 1 April 2023 For companies with

profits in excess of £C.25m. Under IAS 12, deferred tax assets
and liabilities should be measured at the tax races that are
sxpected to apply to the penod when the asset s realised or
the liability is settled.

The Croup's cortributionr to the UK Treasury in the period
amounted to £331.9m (2020; £212.3m) and consisted of
VAT income tax, naticnal insurance and corporation tax, OF
this amount. errployer's rational irsurarce, apprenticeship
levy. irrecoverable VAT ard corporation tax totalling £37.7m
(2020: £24.5m1 was a cost to the business.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Cortiruing basic earnings per share inrcreased to 18.3p (2020:
Loss {45.21p) as underlying profit after tax from continuing
operations increased by £25.7m.

The weighted average number of sharesin 2027 was 45.5m,
0.7m lower thar 2020 due to the ongoing share buyback
programme. Continuing adjusted earnings per share
increased to 35.3p (2028 18.2pt and refiects the underlying
performance of the business, excluding -mpairment ard

~amortisation of acquired intargiblies and their respective

taxatwon impact.
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group's capital base (note 27} 1s primarily used to finance
its working capital requiremenrt, the key comporent of which is
trade receivables. Trade receivables in the staffing and support
services sectors are managed accordinrg ko a range of DSO
targets. Terms of trade are monitored, ard the approval of
extended zayment terms requires senior finance involvernent,
Insome of the Croup's Maraged Services businesses, the
amourts payable to third party supgliers gre pofr due ntil
shortly after the receipt of the cliert receivable, As roted
above, the Croup has corrmitted facilities that ersure there

is sufficient liquidity to meet ongoing business requirements.
The primary objectives of the Group s capital management
are to ersare that it mairtains a good credit ratirg in order

Lo support its business, maximise shareriolder value and to
safequard the Croup’s ability to continue 3s 3 goIrg concerr,

GOING CONCERN

After makirg appropriate enguiries, the Direcrors Fave a
reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group
have adequate resources to continue in operational existence
For the foreseeable future. In coming to their conclusior,
the Directors have considered the Group's profit and cash
flow plans for the coming period. The amount of borrowing
required to fund the Croup's activities s determined based
on these projections, together with expected returns to
sharehoiders and planned capital expenditure. Thisis then
compared te the bank lerding facilities currertly committed
and expected to be available to the Gipup

Also considerad is the projection of compliance with the
financial covenants implied by thesea ptans. In addition, these
figures are tested for sensitivity Fo possible changes to the
economic envirorments in which the Croup operates, The
Croup has ro operatiors in Ukraine or surrourdieg regions
and therefore there is no direct impact or the Croup's tradirg.
However, ary Indirect impact, such as a acrsenring in eConormric
corditions, would represent such a sersitivity.

The impact or Group liquidity and coverarts of each of these
sensitivities is then evaluated togetber with the likelibood of
each of these occurning either:ndividually orin combiration.
Or areqular basis, and at least quarterly, the Board reviews
updated projections of Future borrowing requirements, facility
usage and resulting headrocom, together with projected
cevenant compliance: these are pased upon the latest actual
results ard borrowirg positior suppiemenrted by regulariy
updated profit forecasts. 3ased on the above, the Directors
corsiderit appropriate to continue o adopt the goirg corcern
basis in preparing the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS AND SHARE BUYBACK

" In January 2021, the Board announced & reduced share

buyback programme, to purchase Ordinary Shares in the
Company Up to an aggregate market value of £C.5m per

" ralendar month until the next AGM which was held in June

2021. Under this programme 466.753 shares were purchased
at a total value of £1.3m.

Ap updated prograrire was app oved ot the aum authorisirg

. the Board to purchase up to a maximum of 4,560,363 shares,

represerting " (0% of the issued Ordinary share capital of the
Company {as 3t 17 May 2027} urtil the earliest of the 2022
AGM ar 3C June 2022. Under this programme, 147.849 shares

were purchased during the period at a total value of £0.6m. No

dividend has been paid or is proposed for the year (20292: £nil).

INSURANCE

The Croup maintains 3 comprahensive irsyrance programme
with several regutable third party urderwriters. insurarce

is brokered at a Group level. The Croup's insurarce policies
are reviewed and updated arnually to ensare that there is
adequate cover for insurable risks ard that the terms of those
policies are optimised.

, OUTLOOK

12021 has seer a significant recovery in trading in our regions

' and segments from the sharp declines experienced in 2520.

' We mairtained our focus or cost management whilst makirg
Lpvestments ir reverue-generating headcount to drive further

growthin 2022 Operstional cash Flow was strong with

i Further improverments in DSO which erabied ar urderlying
. reductisr in borrowirgs and facility levels. This provices a

strong liguidity position for 2022 The strategic disposal of
Corestaffin February 2022 and the cash recewved will further
bolster this position. Trading as we exited 2021 was above pre-

pandemic levels and this has continued in the first few months
. 0f 2022 trvestments Ir our core systems ard the subsegaent
! deploymert will also erable our teams to deliver Further

productivity gars,

We started 2022 positively, whilst beirg mindful of possible
economic headwinds. government fiscal easing, tax ‘ncreases,
inflationary pressure. potential Interest rises, as well as acurte
talent shortages. these have now been overshadowed by the
events ip Ukraire ard cthe resdlting political ard ecoromic
instability. Though we do not trade within the affected region,
the global economic ‘'mpacts and knock-on effect to our
markets at this tire is uncertain.

Haye !
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STRATEGIC REPORT
Principal risks

We recognise that effective risk management s fundamental to delivery of the Group's strategic objectives. Each business
segment considers strategic, operational and financial risks on a regular basis, evaluates existing controls and identifies Further
actions required to mitigate risks. Risks that are considerad significant at Group level are set out betow.

THREAT MITIGATION STATUS

Pay,

STRATEGIC RISKS
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THREAT

CUSTOMER CONCENTRATION

feneral decline in a :ﬂr*m,lar indust-y sectorn loss o g key Lusooine or
3 ngnifgars ‘ad LCHIOM S D UEMeSE v IUMe 2D 3 key 3CCounh could res ol
i~ reduced reased pressure on gross proft The

2VenLe ArS. o7 NC
Cov d-"S zandem ¢ has ;’eated sigmF

our clier s,

CANY BCOTOMIC LRCertaiy ror

Risk trend

H- High risk

M: Medium risk

L Low risk
increased comoaarad 2o 2020
Staple compared to 2020
Decreased comparad to 2020

MITIGATION STATUS
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Principal risks conlinued

THREAT

OPERATIONAL RISKS

TECHNOLQGY SYSTEMS

MITIGATION

The Grucw lras d seabile systemsinfrasiruciere and an

STATUS

argoing T invesime~g p ograim me, Coresystemsa o "
The Srowp srevarton mary differs~t secnncogy systems that may replicated ac oss two geograsnically senarate dara
have limited Lsefuilife 1” 2 “asl-cma~qirg business environme . The centres a~d regllar monitorirg of sysiems ze~formarce
legacy natuere of sorme syste™s may alss rincer oobimisation o7 15 underiaken
end-Lo-e"C DULSINEeSs processes, 2021 cre Graup alsointroguced an T Governaroe
Syscems May also e viknerable to factars bevond the Growp s cootrol, 3ToCess.
e.g powe-fallures or.nernet conneslivity outages.
CYBER AND INFORMATION SECURITY A programme toentance secant, o the Group's 4
sysLems agal~st cyber-attack has beemimrplemeried.
The rz<of exter~alyoeraktac<s ant noes [0 NcTease A snocassril Jrgo ng et toring s [oDi3ce anc Teguiar exers
atzac< could resull v i0s3 OF 5205.0ve £ata, SUsIm25s SISTLErOr 27d/0" e underta<en. A cyber-secarity Lograde s wroe” way
damage o the Group's repLialion. and Lyber Essantials Plus terocat onowas acn eved o
Ihe sngoirg pohtical sEuation 1N Tastesn Sorope ~e3 e eased Lhis rs< :;OZ?_ Trhe Group Is already SO 27601 37d Tyoer
o NATO memiper codrlhes cssoentials accredice
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parts of the Groupin 2018 and a~nual raitImg £OLrses
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yiEh GDPR and ¢ybe olicies.
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pofertial business Criticai risxs,
SERVICE AND CONTRACTUAL COMPLEXITY Tne Group 1as 3 standareises 2ony agh roview 379Cess 1N H

‘ncertair rarkets, the Group s CHEREs 3re nesoming ircreasi~gly
sopristicared in treir pracurement apd buying asinty,
Carrpenitve temgering acuvily a~d 2zvmea-nal contacis are
Secomitg mCreas nly InMSied M- onge- ead mimias it deqis an

maxing. This necessitatas constari gevelozment o7 the Group s service
I

Ser bne sonfist 2al 0n 87 Jur sewrg ackiy bies ans the management
of re~geng processes.

Zorp exfyand (manging CLenIreG, reme~ts alsa aresanc challerges
AroLnd measuling ans monitorrg secvice delive y ard corolia
WSS IR0 SLAS

3
w3

stace involving pperatonal, commercial ane legal
aversight.

The GroLd also conticues e invest 17 »ecialst resouce
10 3UDDOTE Dusiness devetogmert impleme ~tation arc

seryvice gelizery acievites,
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THREAT

Risk trend

I: High risk

M Medium risk

L: Low risk
ncreased compared to 2020
Stable compared to 2020

Decreased corrpared to 2026

MITIGATION

REGULATORY, COMPLIANCE AND FINANCIAL RISKS

GE_JLATé RY ENVIRONMEMT

Reqgulatory charges Can lead to increased costs and wokiozd,
aarticularly where trey relate to candicates -ights eligimility Lo wors
Ir COrdQ-ate reporking, .9, paymenrt practices, siversiby.

The extersicn ot OFF Payrodwork ng regulacons to the ynvare sector
inthe S<im April 2021 25 ZaLsad some shor-tem disTaplior as ooth
cliemts and co~iractors sgeptec

ZXDANSION NIT Tew Gedgiannies i suTperl ot dienss ~eeds brings
exposure o u~famihar ~eguiatary environmenis

Legel, Frienwe anc Zemiplighes Turctions &L 3000 Lrowo v
arcorand levels moritor risks ard camaliance, takirg
apRropriate action wrere ~acessary

Aporoctiate aolicies 2ana coces of conductarein olace

across the Group anc “egular-maiming s prowided

o colleagues.

2roCess arc systemcnarges tecaired o ensure
affecrve manageme~t of OFF 2zyroil wWo-k.rg changes
nave seen cepsified and ars 22 ng mpemenzed.

Sxrarralprofesz oralagvica s spught wnere

msofTcie~tknoy ecge exstewith.n ooe Jroun

STATUS
AP0

CASHAND LIGUIDITY MANAGEMENT

Poorcas ard liguicicy ma~agereang Tay esullinsliain o~ me Goud s
credit :ac licies 3~d/or operaticral cash “low ssoes.

Toe Zovid-'S pa~geTic ~as Irealed iGNl iant 22onamic
sncersainty for aur ciercs whics could irmpack their ability .

(
Lo

with s

res

cencral Treasary Fancoior o place

The Groul Nas &
acasbing, "2poriing anc review orocady

B
regular faraces
Toe Giowe2also mam[ams arevolving creait facilicy sin
aszyrd.caze 37 banks zo provide aadit ora. flexbioy
ks Lrding arrargemerts. This was renewed att=e 2ng
of 2021

setile outstancimg babilinies, AGrs Cenit 2olicy 3805 aLt “he Dolig {\S‘mﬁ
arecegures that mast 2e JmaleTeriad across (e Grown
Lo TIIgate Cresit niss.

FINANCIAL CONTROL The Grous ageratos sove 3l srared services v

Afaryte of fnarcia. canrol cooid 2ac to 3 matenial toss

w0 the nusitess

ar'aﬂgc’nemts Anere [rarsacoion p-rOCCSSi G
and raragement 3cCounnng are independent
of gperalions,

a clearly defired simeculs of zelegated suthority 1 mos
forzancasoyoes 3°3easians 3a~d Lransacuonsis e
place anc appinoriate segregaon of dutiesis
SINCANEs N 3L T rarce Jrocesses.
£y SUsiFess processes ara subalt Lo et ocie mieTna

d t-ayiew aith clearly defines azt’'zn paars
2szaslished .o address ary corrol weak-esses.

m
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Stakeholder engagement and our S172 statement

INTRODUCTION

Section “72 of the Companies Act 2006 requires Directors

to take into consideration the interests of stakeholders ard
other matters in their decision-making. We believe we have a
history of collabeorative, informative stakeholder engagement,

making decisions hased or long-term success, and we mairtair |
! Stakeholder considerations:

goverrance structdres and processes that support good
deasion-making.

This section articulates bow the Directors have acted to
promote the success of the Group for the benefit of its
stakeholders. In meeting this resporsibility, the Directors have
had regard, amorgst other rratters, to:

a. the likely consegquences of any decisions in the long term;

b. the interests of the Group s colleagues;

c. the reed to foster the Croup's business retatiorships with
suppliers, customers and others:

d. theimpact of the Croup’s operations on the community

and environment;

2. the Croup's reputation for high stardards of business
conduct; and

f. the need to act Fairly as between members of the Croup.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Impellam's stakeholders are clierts, candidates, colleagues,
sappliers, investors and lenders ard the Board recognises the
reed to reqularly ergage with its stakeholders as it makes
decisiors. We develop and ercourage lorg-term relationships
with our staketolders based upor Impellam’s visior 'to be
the world's most trusted staffing company — trusted by our
people, our ciients and cur investors in egual measare’

As part of this vision, our stakeholders' interests are at the
forefront wher the Board of Directors set the strategic
priorities of the Group. The sktrateqic priorities: Enablirg
our Virtuosos; Transforming our Portfolio; and Improving
Resilience - irclude corsideration of the key stakeholder
groups ard Pow we ergage with them,

ir adaition to regular stakeholder engagemert. as the

Board of Directors, ourirtentior is to take inrto accounrt our
operational impacks on the community and ervirorment,
ard our wider societal resporsibitities, ir particutar, how we
impact the regiors we serve, We support our communities
by finding them good work, supporting local corporate social
resporsibility imitiatives ard ensuring curimpact on the
environment is minimal, as demonstrated by our 15O 14001
accreditatior.

PRINCIPAL DECISIONS IN 2021

The Board considered the interests of, and the i pact or, all
stakehoiders wrhen making a "umber of key decisions durirg
the year, as demonstrated by the following exampies.

“3agce 16

REGIONAL COVID-19 LOCKDOWNS

During 2021, regional lockdowns continued ir the UK Q")

and APAC and we maintained operational capacity throughbout
these periods of remote working before recpering our
offices safely.

Colleagues
we conbinued Lhe processes implemented across the Croup

Cin 2020 to ensure our colleagaes had the equipmert ard
infrastructure required to work from home or in our offices

! We commritted to supporting our colleagues where they reed

access to an office environment to work from, or the ability
to interactin persor with colleagues safely. As local guidance
was released regardirg opening of offices we reviewed this
in detail and assessed each office against these requirements
ard urdertook the recessary steps to rrake therr 'Covid-19
safa’. We then priontised which offices could reopen and
identified the colleagues who could use them.

whenever the {ocal guidarce changed, immediate action
was taken to ersure we were gperating within che updated
rules. We offered cantinued support to our colleagues who
cortirued o work remortely.

Suppliers
Qur property team worked with our landlorgs where recessary

 toensure each property was Covid-" 9 safe prior to recpering.

- Clients, candidates, investors and lenders
' By keeping our people safe :r their working emvircrment, we

continue o meet Cliert reqgairerments, support our candidates
and delver effective business results throughout the pandemic.

Qutcome

Our offices have opened safely where possible, enabling
s.itable working environments for those who canrnot work
remotely. We cortinue fo review our oroperty requiremenrts
ard are actively reducing the numrber of propertiesic our
portfolio.

BLENDED WORKING

Following the regioral lockdowrs due to Covid- "9, the Croup
reviewed its policy or work locatiors ard the positive impact
of warkirg from romre.

Stakeholder considerations:

Colleagues

There have undoubtedly been operational, financial and
environmental benefits from enabling our workforce to wark

' remotely durirg the pandemic. However, our people also

thrive on face-to-Face interaction, building collaboration and

©rapport inaddition, some individuals have struggled from a
- wellbeirg perspective throughaut this time.
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Wwe undertook a number of colleague surveys to understand
how people were coping as well as equipmert and
infrastructure requirements, This helped to understand how

we could support our colleagues and develop lorger-term plans
in the interests of our colleagues, custorrers and candidates.

Clients and candidates

We have ensdred that by allowirg blended working we
contirue o meet our clients’ ard candidates’ requirements.

Investors and lenders

By ensuring our colleagues have the night bierd, we

have ircreased productivity and reviewed our property
requirements, delivering both cost savings and gross profit :
growth This will drive iIncreased sharehoider value and enable |
us to continue £¢ meet our cash flow targets and manage our |
lender requirements accordingly.

Outcome

wWe have offered all colleagues the opportunity to adont
blended working, allowing them the flexibility of working from
home, at clients' sites and in our offices.

CORE SYSTEMS

Followirg the decisior 1in 2020 to accelerate the
transformatior work, the Board agreed to irvest in IT core
systerrs. This investment will update systems across the Croup
in both front and back-office applicabions.

Stakeholder considerations:

Colleagues

The main driver to irrprove the core systemsis to free up
our Virtugsos so they can sperd more time with clierts and
cardidates ard deliver tre Virtuoso operatinrg model.

Clients, candidates and suppliers i
The investmentir core systems will ensare the Crodp is easier
and quicker to deal with. generating efficiencies across the
supply chain, candidate journey and ensuring our clients never
have a reason to leave.

investors and {enders

The investrrent in core systerrs will improve our digitai
infrastructare, erhance our security and improve our
efficiency

Cutcome

The IT Core Systems project was launched in 2021 across the
Group. key go live dates startin Q1 2C22, with a new pay/hill
system for the UK STEM brands and the global finance system
in APAC.

SALE OF CORESTAFF

On the 24 January 2022 we announced the sale of Corestaff
our US-based Light Industrial brand to swipejobs Inc., a US
private digital staffing business.

Stakeholder considerations:

 Colleagues

By combinirg market-leadirg technology with the deep
heritage and staffing know-how of the Corastaff teams, the
transaction allows Corestaff to expand its service offering and
reach in a highly competitive market.

. Clients, candidates and suppliers
. The trarsaction will give eniranced geographic reach to our

clierts, cardidates and supoliers and cortinge to detiver

i effective services and results.

Investors and tenders

The proceeds of the sale will be used to pay down ret debl to
furd additional investmerts, therefore returring value to our
sharehclders ard maraging our lerder requirements.

Outcome

Due to the scale and limited gecgrapnic footprint of Corestaff
ir North America, we consider our colleagues and cliepts

will benefit from enhanced geagraphic reach for their tight
industriat staffing requirements coupled with an accelerated
digital trarsformatior brought about by the sale.
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Stakeholder engagement and our S172 statement continued

STAKEHOLDER GROUP

WHY THEY ARE IMPORTANT

HOW WE ENGAGE

Clients

We workwith ou-cuents o find secple for
500d work to hels them Suild bette-
ausInessas. We elain Lmem, Zoriirung Lo
Lnderscand crei- evolving regairements

We review clientsanisfaction anag our
aerformance cithe- quarzerly, biarnually or
anauaily. Thisis suppaied oy feedbacx wia
“ace-te-face meehings, Net PromoLer Scntes
and sLoeys,

Colleagues

Our colleagues are funcame-tal te the
delivery of nur ision, —ussion, st-ategic arc
fpancia. srom ses to 2Jrsta<ehciders.

Our rechanisms for ergaging with colleagues
incluce: ashacow 203 C, the Virtuoss Allience
colleag e councils across tne Sroupd, survevs,
Net Proroter 5cores 22 Bost Cormparies
SUrveys 4nd our COMMmricd.son ard
sollazoration platform, wor<olace, tow~ hall
meeil~gs and oLt glooal ~ewsletter Strategy
7 ATDIgn.

Candidates

QU TISSI0M 25 a DLSITess 15 I3 provide 3 sense
aof purzcse and Fulfimest For our people o
nels our customers buila better usiresses in
3 rarging world whichincludes the
CaNCidaias we Jrovide 13 du JLsiarers,

iAle 2ngageo will our cardicates th-ough
faca-to-race ana arloal mestirgs and by using
Nec Promotar Scores rzal-time “eedzack and
SurURyS via ool websites ard aoos chat digiise
The | IDesesk, ng pracess.

Suppliers

we dJecend on a myriad of 2art~ers Lo mee:
ou” ~eeds - whether ~eyearo sdaslving
staborery o sourarg avorke s faraur
pragrammes. We pldce the mighast
axzecrations on oursepply cnanang o,
NnO Tealtmemas real Darthers,

axpersad o anCe By ool
Supplied Code o® Coraucn 1 2020, we
irLracucoed aodizs of w2y sLaphers robonly £o
MeasL=2 Lmel” progress against che Cocde of
Conduct aub alsn o grve trem coeching ard
Jquidarce, wnere necessary, In achieving the

SE3TOATTS ve 2xDell.

Investors and lenders

AcIessrocatital tornugh the capital narkots
a~c ol lendersisimportani o cmelong-Lerm
sucess of our Dusiness.

Tre Jo4rc ~asregular Teelirgs aits aun

NI Toiomal Mwesicts ard .erdets io axpain
che Comoany's stratedy, Deogress 3~ pla~s,
ang 1o share now we are 3dcrasang Tarket
rrallenges Due to Cowvid-19, thesa meetings
nawe cortirced through orline forums -ather
Charin petson,

The Anrlal Generat Meeti~g is apen 1o

alli~weshors,

raroroleers can giow olovant vt mehion
about moellana the westors secticn of
impella—.cor
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Responsible business report

Responsible
SUSINess

Our commitment to sustainability underlines
our responsibility to build long-term value

for all our stakeholders, supported by sound
policies, good governance and positive actions.

PEQPLE AND CULTURE

Colleague engagement and communications

All 2,900 Impellam people across the world are corpected
by Workplace, an irternal communication and collaboration
retwork. Workplace commbines the stracture of a traditicnal
irtraret with the capabitities of Enterprise-wide Sccial
Metworking software: 3 place to orgarise ard disseminate
information securely, and also a place for cur peaple to
correct, commuricate ard collaborate. The Croup CEO
Folds quarterty towr hall meetirgs agross the Croup ard
connects with alt 2,900 people on 3 regular basis through
workplace, using video and wrtten updates, wellbeing
check-ins, a monthly newsletter, live Q&A sessions, and other
multimedia to provide strategic information and financial
Jpdates. Covid-19 has charged the way we work, and as a
consequerce we have increased the frequency and media
we use to corrmunicate with colleagues. Our maragers Fold
regualar 71 meetirgs with their ceople. team meetirgs, and
wider busiress area corferences and Towr hall meetirgs to
facilitate sharirg of iInformation, corsuttation and two-way
communication, supported by tools tike CoenBlerd.

The Virtuoso Alliarce (our shadow Board) operates alongside
the Leaderstip Team to provide apiniors, ideas, insight

ard observations or the world :r which we operate. Its
purpese Is to make sure the Croup CEQ ard the Leadership
Tearr remair corrected to our colleagues and ir turp our
castamers and cardidates. The impellarr commurications
model ard associated techrelogy means we (ar connect with
our colleagues guickly, wharever they are. Tre platform and
commanication strategy facilitates Faster krowledge-sharing,
comanricatior and collaboration. This dyramic approach Lo
COMMuricatiors is key to aur strategy anc culture of enablirg
our Virtdosos to achieve our vision of becomirg the world's
most frusted staffing company.

~ Covid-19 and our people

Our responrse 1o Covid-"9 10 2020 provided a robust and

- Aexible way of working which continued through 2021,

we adopted a blended working model which erabled our
people to work in the office, at home and on our client sites
as ard wher needed. We were carefil to gather feedback
throughout the year to ensure our people were supported.
we've continued to invest ir mertal health ard wellbeing
sunpport by making available the Calm app, ard in recogrition
of our colleagues’ rard waork amidst the chalienges presented
by the pandemic ard ar urprecederted increase in demard
from customers we gave our people two extra days off

' Equity, Diversity and Inclusion (ED&I’)
- We actively encourage diversity ir the workplace and have a

wide ard varied colleague base, with a variety of sccial ard
ethnic groups represented at all levels of the business. we
betieve that breaking dowr the barriers that have craditiorally

" restricted access 1o the labour market will encourage job

opportunities for all. Our global Impeillam Group ED&I tearr
includes regresertation from our key regiors: North Amernica,
Australia and New Zealand, and the UK & Eurooe. Urder

the direction and teaderskip of the Croup CEC ard rewly
appointed Head of Culture and Fulfilment, it brings together
leadership ard governarce balarced with Group-wide,
regicnal and brand-specific actions. Our strategy 1s based on
data. qualitative intelligence from a global survey along with
participatior from regicnal committees, ard aims to make

| frepellam a rore diverse ard irclusive busiress wherever

we operate.

Qur progress received several accoladesin 2021, For the
second year running, Everest Peak Matrix recognised Guidant
Global ard Lofien for Diversity and Inclusion in the 202~

. TALINT International Awards. ED&I s firmly on sur agenda-

Guidant's award-winning Influence programme is helping

" clients with their ED& strategies ard to drive positive change.
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Responsible business report continued

Training 3
we provide our people with a rrultifaceted and agile
development pathway to enable high performarce and
increase retertior of our people and customers alike. We
Focus on freeing our people from old habits, unlockirg therr
potential and erabling them to thrive through charge. We
reinvigorated our Mertal Health and Wellbeing network with
mental heatth First aiders supporting cur people globally,
along with campaigns rurping throngh work place every week
to signpost advice, belplines and the cortact detalls of trained
colleagues who are well placed to help ard listen. Our people
also had access ta Gladis, our orline training platform as well
as live virzual ard physical sessions,

Our culture of Virtuosity

AL the heart of ourirtegrated, collaborative business madel s
a virtuous circle of making and keepirg promises, engerderirg
trust ard loyalty. By <eepirg our promises, we retain clients,
cardidates, colleagues ard irvestars for torger, and reap the
benefits of that longevity. Qur culture of Virtuosity is created
by passionate people who are commutted and driven to find
better ways to deliver the -ight sclutions. We meake sure that
‘tre beautiful basics are ir place and deeply embedded in all
of our busiresses, all of tre time.

Community

Impeilam people work extensively with their local
communities. This includes supporting naticnal and {ocal
charities through volunteer work and raising funds.

ENVIRONMENT

Although we are a service-based orgarisation with no
manufacturing facilities and limited transportatior
requiremments, we are still comrritted Lu Tollowing
envirormentai best practices in the day-to-day corduct of our
business. This includes the use of sustainable and/or recyclable

" materials when availatie. A regular review of the potertial

impacts or the various busiresses is undertaken and parts of
the Group have achieved accreditation to 1SO 14001-in relation
to their epvironment maragemenrt systems.

2021 energy and carbon reporting.

This year we rave calculated our ervirormental impact across
Scope *. 2 and 3 {selected categories) emission sources for the
UK onty. Our ermissiors are greserted on a location basis (using
the UK grid emissionsintensity), ard our emissions are 965,995
kgCO e {2020k 1 082,778 kg O ), which is ar average impact
of 582 xgCO e per £mrevenue (2C20: 715 kgCD.e per £m
reveruel. We have caiculated the ermission intersity metrics or

i areverde basis, which we will moniter to track performance in

Modern slavery

As part of the Sroup's mission to find people Fulfilling wark,
we strongly oppose modern slavery :» all its forms ard will

ery fo prevent it by any means that we can. We expect anyone
who Pas any suspicions of modern slavery in our busiress or
our supbly chair to -“3ise their corcerns wmthout delay. inlire
with the Modern Siavery Act 2075, we arnually review irternal
and externai measures o ensure we are daing what we can to
prevent slavery and human trafficking in our businesses and
i our supply chains. Qur policy s available on our website at
www.impellam.com.

our subseaueent ervironmental disclosares. The Tethedolagy

" used o calculate the Creenhouse Cas {GHG' emissiors is in

accordance with the UK Covernment CHC Corversior Factors
for Company Reporting (2027,

Energy and carbon action

Our focus in the past yesr Fas Seen to beth rat.oralise our
property fFootprint and o extend and encourage working
behaviours which were accelerated at the start of the
pardemicin 2020,

" Ouroveralt property footprint cortirues to decrease as 'eases

Health and safety

Wwe are committed to meetirg all the requiremerts of relevart
bealtth and safety leqislation. Formal policies are in place
throdghout the Croup and they are reviewed reguiarty ard
updated to reflect changes in legislation and best practice. The
Croup requires all colleagues zo comply with these.

Anti-bribery

Wa have 3 commitmenrt to carrying out business fairly,
honestly and openly. We also have zare tolerance towards
bribery. Qur Brnbery Pclicy is in place to provide relevart
guidarce and :rformratior to all our peaple © compliance with
the law relatirg to bribery ard corruption, ie particutar the
Bribery act 2010, ‘We are determired to mamtair

our reputation as 3 business that will rcr tolerate fracdaient
or corrdpt 2ealings - whether they are attempted against us
from outside, from withim our own warkforce, of towards our
clierts or suppliers.

2age _&C

expire: where the need for a physical location remains, we
have locked to shared spaces which can be used across the
business. relocata to more modern and energy-efficient sites
and utiiise flexible working spaces where it is more oracticable
to do so.

Cur strategy of increasing resilience by irvesting ir technology
has erabled Js-to embed rew ways of working within the
busiress which has seen our Scope * travel emrissions reduce
by 35%, despite an easirg of travei restrictiors from the
previous year. Similar or greater reductions are also seer in our
other non-reportable Scope 3 emissions.

whilst not directly effecting the Scope 2 reporting, the

UK businesses completed their switch to purchasirg “00%
renewable electricity generated orly through wird, sclar and
Pydro for all of its UK operaticrs

work will cortirae in certifying our carbon neutral strategy
to PAS206C to achieve our objectve of achieving carban
reutrality for our ertire UK busiress by the erd of 2022,
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»969,569kg CO.e »35%

Our 2021 emissions which is Reduction in Scope 1
an average impact of travel emissions.
582 kgCO e per £m revenue.

In tardem, the busiress will alse commence the developmert | Task Force on Climate-related
ard delivery of a format Carbor Net Zero strategy. In support Financial Disclosures ('TCFD")

of poth imitiatives, we shall be laurching g rew Electric TCFD reporting is important to effective £SG and climate
vehicle Salary Sacrifice Scheme in early 2022, avallable to all risk managerrert. It will also help us to meet the growing

UK employees, which by utilising government ircentives and stakeholder derrand to urderstand how clirmate change could
acheving econormies of scale through Croup purchasing will . affect Impellam, as well as the effects our operations have

provide access to electric vebicles at a3 much-reduced cost for
all colleagues. The additional benefit of this scheme will be to
accelerate the reduction of both Scope ' and Scope 3 vebicle
ernissions over the coming years, We shall continue to refine
our property portfolic in ine with cur existing strategy and emerging regulatory requiremerts;, implement mitigating
In corjunction with our developing hybrid working initiatives, activities, and disclose 1r tire with matenality to the Croup,
as well as launching a formal engagement project with allUK. At presert, these nisks are not considered to have a matenat
colleagues or aur erviranmental plans and actively seek their | impact for the Group.

contributicns as to how we achieve our chjectives.

on the clirrate In 2021 we have taken nitial steps on the
roadmap to TCFD reportirg ard this activity will be cortinued
throughout 2022, The Croup will continue to monitor the
significance of climate-related risks fincluding existing anc

Emissions and energy usage

Natural gas 599 656 154,456
Scope t {(kgCQ e} Company ard leased vehicies 236,267 306,145

Heatirg oil 0 5,516
Total Scope 1 (kgCO.e) 335917 466,158
Scope 2 (kgCO.e) Electricity 576,976 557.263
Scope 3 tkglQ e} Colleague cars 55,102 59,357
Total koCO,e 969,569 1,082,778
Total energy usage (kWh) 4,631,709 4,904,605
Normaliser KgCO e per £m revenue 382 715

This Strategic Report from pages 1 to 41 was approved by the Board on 5 Aprit 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Rebecca Watson
Company Secretary
B0C The Boulevard.
Capabiiity Creer,
Laton,

Bedfordstire

LUT 38A

Bage 41
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The primary responsibility of
the Chairis to lead the Board
effectively and this includes
overseeing the adoption,
delivery and communication
of the Company's corporate
governance model.

46 Loinooate govertarce sfatement
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Governance report

Corporate governance

The Chair epsdres that the Board as a whole plays a futl and
constrictive part in the development and determination of
the Company's sfrafegy and overgll —ommercial objectives.

The Board has overall responsibility for corporate governance
within the Croup ard thisis underpinned by a framework

| As acompany whose shares are traded or the AlM market of
| the London Stock Exchange, the Company complies with the
Quoted Comparies Alliarce {'QCA" Corpurate Covernance

- Code 'the Code’ and its Staterrert of Compliance with the

aligred to the requirements of the business. The full Board ‘
retains certain matters forits owr review ard decision- ‘
rraking while other responsibilities are delegated to sub- ‘
corrmittees of the Board, namely the Audit Cormmittee and

the Remureration Commrittee. ‘

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Oversees the Group's wternal =isx
ard corzrols stoalegy, incluging
winistlenlow =g ar-angements,
Reviews the Annual Report gmg
aLes Nanc al staterrents prigr
Lo scbmission o the FUll 3oera
Sy e NS rennris TTomm the exrarna,
aucizor,

Reviews tne Grown s nsk registen
ARproves SRans a, Do dles

3005 anC TovIews e a0lvilies of
inter=al sudit

Ay 2 Com e tee

page_50

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

+ Monitors ard reviews e skrategy
and ts developrrent tre finarcial

ard operagioral performance af -e

Company ard -isk m3nagerent
Monitars and “eulews intarral ad
sxterpa: fachto s tnat affect the
Compary.

« Sersstarcards, values arc oolicies.

+ ZAsures e Corepary s Teeltg
15 SOjeCI ves and Nas the fortect
nsgurees in alace

+ aperoves fipancal 2oicies.

+ Reporss (o sharenclde s,

» Qwerseesintar-al contols.

+ Responsible for 2orporate
qovernance,

v

<

REMUNERATION

COMMITTEE

same car be fourd or the Compary website www.irvestors,
impeilam.com/corporate-governance/.

Seks, reyviews and recormerds Lo e
3oz d enuneranor Tor Directors and

oCrer senor executives ard sats
overall -emunerator strztegy and
ooley Forthe Trouz,

Re=u e 3t a3 L
page_52

amTeIlee

STRATEGY AND DEVELOPMENT TEAM (VUCA)

Devises the Trous strategy and Sranc al pan for approval oy che Boa-d,
approves the strateqic avd “nanc 3l o.ars of che sub-trands and “nisiors anc mon tors ohe mplementato” and delvery 0F

2Nese alans

JUTA Mvolanile Uncerta ~ Jomized by, AMpigL oy, Focuses on bmpellam s overroing strategic and Sirencial sromises “or the mid-

long .erm a~d t~e cnallenges anc opporunities the L2am sees to acheyve Ihe D omises

SENIOR LEADERSHIP TEAM

v

VIRTUOSO TEAM

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

(WAR ROOM)

Responsible “or e day-to-day
TanageTent 37 Lme Groub a~cits
operato-s,

mpleTe=1aua” of the stracegy and
F-anca. par.

(THE VIRTUOSO ALLIANCE)

Provides advice. guidarce and a fresh

perspective £o the Group CEC our
Executws Teamans 2oa~d or our
stmacogic ononties and heir impacs
onLhe busiress our aostomeTs, the

intdustty are the wide wadd o work.

Reviews a~d monILors skrategic
oSt eTs ara makes inveshimert
SCCISIOTS
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CORPORATE COVERNANCE

Board of Directors

LORD ASHCROFT KCMG PC
Non-Executive Chairman
Appointed: December 2014

Lorg Ashoroftis amimernatonal businessmar, arilantarocist,
aut~ar and polister. His ma~y, varied business irterests irclude
sizFicant iavestments and catn pation ¢ bath pubiic snd
private comparies in bae LK, 5 and the Canboean. He was
appoirzed Mor-Esecutive Thairman o7 e Jomrpany - Secerber
227440 2072 he nas appoantes a memper of the Prvy Counc !
ard was made the Prime Miriste s Special Reoresentauve far
varerans Transigion wor<ang with all departments to ensure
Tilita~y oersonnel -eceve the support they need wre~ Making
tne crarsitior 1o civiliar Ufe. He scepped down from o5 ~ole in
2018 Lard Asreroft supports 3 wige “a~ge of chanties, including
TNose Ceating Wwith crime preventicn and education, He s tre
“gunder anc Chairran of Trustces 97 oobh Cimestoppers angd
che Ashorofl Tecrralogy Academy, 4 “ormer 2atror of Lhe =orzes
1 ving Toust Reseach Cente vice Patron of tre -ntelligerca
Coros MuseLm a~da "rustoe 97 bne Cleveland Cllmc In the LS.
He ~esigred "orf“ she House af Lardsin 2015 Lo congertrats on
otherareas of his work —eisafo-rer Trustze anc Prasident
5 the west adia Committee a farmer Trusiee of impornal 'War
Musoums and ro-mer Zhascetlor of Arglia Ruskir wriversiyy
Pwiich awardes um an Hocorary Joctorate it 19997 n 2014
Lard Asnoroft was made <~ight Grand Cross of the Most Sacrec
O':er ofipe Aoty Trimigy Sihiopiz] and a Fellow of Lhe Royal
a~adiar Geograpmical Society ~ 2017 ne was made a Senjor
~cll“w of the Irternational Strategic St_dies Assocation ang i
tmasate year ne hecare ap donorary Bel ze 2granan. in 2227 he
#as aramotec £ Granc Coller of the Mest Sacred Order 27 -he
~oly Trimty 1Ecriopiat. He has written 25 books rainly o 2oliucs
a~d oravery, and s widely respected “or ~is pobtical oclting,

TIM BRIANT
Chief Financial Officer
Appointed: February 2020

T 3rartcnec treLroup o (T Ootzber 2079 372 was
apoaintes o Lme Boarg 00 3 february 2020 asthe $ooun Chie”
Sinanoal S cen T s a Chariete s ACSouniant and has ove” ien
FRATS axperenc2 wor< g w thinre recritrent seckor within
lisied and orvate 2guity packed glopal recruitre-t comoartes,
TIm spent aver fen years 3t Aﬂercc 'na ~urrper of finance re.es
w bis last chere zemg the C50 of Adecco UK 3~ reland 2nior
to thes Tim warkea "o Sonng Growp lc, s liste corurmert
comoany, abete ~e was Grovo Fira~aal Coreoller arg Comoany
Secretay ard olaved a <ey ~ole in its acgquisition oy AceCcn. Priar
fo this Tim worked aU <PMG - gudib ard Lia~sactior services. fim
033 4 5070rg BEACRGTOLTCIIN TETGE TS NS AT JISILICNS Ard SLSIFess
irLegrations hayi~g Seen muatved 17 the Jisgosa T SLDSCqLoT.
IrIegration of Soring GroL 2 DIC 1o Adecod ard TTC SCIUISILID Y and
cgration of 2erra pic ov Adecn

JULIA ROBERTSON
Group Chief Executive Officer
Appointed: April 2013

J.ida Rz "N was appoc tad as Group Chief Execltive

D cenin i\ 5ril 2013 Rawemg previcusly heer -esponsible “2r the
Sroun’s JK operalions Decween 2008 ard 2013 Julis's carser
ir “ecrLItment spacs sore Four cecades, elways driven by the

burming Dellef “rat thete mas w0 e g thetter way This belief ~as
:,;u!ubd SertnroLgs ner erure Career which nasircluded lounading
~er owe recruiiment basitess It 1586 which was seld to the
Jrolp aiongsida Tate ~ 20CC anc also semvng as Chief Execltive
of the 1mstitute of cmaloyr-ert Cansullarts inow < own as thoe
2EC), tre professiaral body for Lne L < racruitment industy

MIKE ETTLING
independent Non-Executive Director
Appoirted: September 2013

Mike EEotng xas appoirmied a Mon-Eaacutive Director 37 ioe
Corpany i September 2073, wWirn st org sector 3ad non-

ex20 five axparience Mks aHas Pres cent of SAP-Success factos
glezally, =e has hac an 2xrensiye execul ve faree :n gioba,
mecraology Dusinesses eclading al NGA AR, Lrisys, Syrstas and
D5 AN 488 ‘or"‘erly a™on-Exacubve T ractor o7 Bacxofrice

Assecates LoC 2 5 PE-oacked cata dusiness, ard also formerly

3 on-Exacstve Ditecisr of Teskomr 820 k2 & South Afnicar

370 e BCaMTLNAkcTs Dot ness. Mike s correncly TEO of Jniid
aworla feader v ertaronse apshications 1or services ang peoole

organisanons. e $ aiso a Noa-Zxecitve Dorector of NCC Tioup

2C alaondonlisteg oyper securnty business,
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Key to Committee membership

Audit Committee Chair af Audit Corremitlee

Rernuneration Commitlee

ANGELA ENTWISTLE
Non-Executive Director
Appeinted: September 2012

Ange.d Entanstle »3s aspointed 3 Non-Execstive Directos

of the Company in Septercoer 2012 Angela 1s a Corporate
Cornunications Sgenaliss wor<~g with companies .p che private
secror ircludirg Deacor Sireet Fattrers Limited and Zarservative
—some Jmited She s 3 Nc-Txeclbve Zrector of Zartsle support
Services, one of wne leadirg sepoliers of value-added solutiors
across whe public a~¢ orivate seciorsin -~e LK ang melarg, a
Men-Exes sbive Jirectar of Ment Crouo £ a2 data arc nizligence
bus mess and 3 Non-kExec.tve O ector of Btebace PLklisnirg
Lirriced, Sritain s eading aub srer of pot s cal and corre~t arfars
Litles. Angela was Corporeie Cormunicazions Direcoor of ADT
_imited, anirterrational susinoss setvices comaany ard Lhe
warld's leader in electroric secunty solutons, o™ 1988 10 165 7.
angela s significantly ~voives ranurherof cmantes noluting
acting as Iruscee of bot~ Crimestapoers, the ooly WK charity
dedicated to solvirg crirres, and Prosaect zoucatior iTecnroisgy)
Trust Lirrited, the umrbretla chanity of te Ashorofs lechnology
azademy. Argela s not consicerec £3 e iIndepe~dert Sue o -er
Anxsw th the magar shasene.der

BARONESS TINA STOWELL OF BEESTON MBE PC
Independent Non-Executive Director
Appointed: October 2077

Tira Stowell ~as nele a number of senior posilions in media anc
goveramenl oLynolt her caeer Singe 2311, she nas been
amembe- of coe House 2F words arc was Leader of the House
“rom 2014 1o 2076 Befzre erterng the woose of Lerds sne
worked at the B3C oetween 2361 and 2010 and was ~ezc of
Carporate AfFairs. She s 3 Non-executiye Direcror of ABTA ang
was Chairma~ of tre Chanty Zomission “or o-glarc and YWales
untl Fec-uary 2021,

Chair of Remuneratios Commitiee

MICHAEL LAURIE
independent Non-Executive Director
Appointed: July 2014

Mechael _aurie was apooirted a vor-Execut ve Director of the
Company i July 2014 He s aso Mon-Sxecut ve Chairman of
SLSD Lrmited, 3 oroporty development company Loat promotes
sustairable architecture. Michael was an army offices for 34 year:
Fe held tre ~oie 37 Major Ceperal az the Min siry of Zefence
Jantil 2003, wnen he necame tre CE0 of tne Cnimestoppers T-us:,
retirirg from hac oosition n 2013,

REBECCA WATSON

Group Company Secretary and
General Counsel and Portfolio CEQ
Appointed: May 2008

Renerda Watsan aas aooniticd 45 CooLp Jompary Secetaty

o Cenergl Coursel or the Company n May 2008, 5he spert e
ous five years as Jompany Secratary and Ceneral Course,
se Toraorate Services Croun P Cavirgoined e Toup
in 1998 as Campa~y Solicitan. .n adcibion, i July 2018 she was
apcointed 2ortfolio CEO responsinle “or Lne Regional Specialise
Staf*ng srards ke the Growp, 2707 o this, she vwas -~ 3
prvate practice, acting for 2 -ange of coraorate clie~ts. Sre nas
been a quaified scutite sirce 993,

U fw
= A
s

Zage_45
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance statement continued

QCA Code Compliance

QCA PRINCIPLE
Deliver growth

Establish a strategy and
business model which promote
tong-term value for
shareholders.

Seek to understand and meet
shareholder needs and
expectations.

Take into account wider
stakeholder and social
responsibilities and their
implications for long-term
success.

Embed effective risk
management, considering both
opportunities and threats,
throughout the organisation.

Maintain a dynamic management framework

Maintain the Board as a
_ well-functioning, balanced
? team led by the Chair.

age_456

EXPLANATION

By providing sta’fing selutions a~a supoor
o ooth cliencs and ca-cicates acioss 2
wide specirum ai Tarkets, we orovide
Jooc wors for our ta~didates a~d seoole
“or our chents,

[~e CEC a~d JFO zommumicate ooilaty
with smarenaloers suestors 2nd z0alysis,
Te full Board s avalable at 1me Anxnuat
Gereral Maeting "AGM, Lo commenicaca
At sharetolders,

i addinier to our sharebolcers, our chients,

cancicates contractors, suopliers ard
colleagues ac our most wmaonacL
stakeholdes. we engage with trese
CofMmmanines via regular ComMLMCaLIons
in oo day-Lo-day activities, ard via “ormal
TORCTACN TBGLESLS.

Ultirrate respansitiliy For ns<
manageTent rests with the 3os7C,

Jut day-ro-day maragement o7 tis< S
delrveros Torougn the way we 4o business
ard our TUiture.

The Boa~3 nas two estanlishec
Corimttees o Agcii Ang ReTureracion
The tompositio™ ans expenienia of the
S0z d s reviewed ogula-iy

FURTHER READING
0

For more mformation
page_14

For mare information
https:/finvestars.
impellam.com/
corporate-governance/

Formaie nformation

page_38

For more mforma{mn
pages_32to35

For more information
pages_50to 53
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QCA PRINCIPLE
S

Build trust

0

Ensure that between them the
Directors have the necessary
up-to-date experience, skills
and capabilities.

Evaluate board performance
based on clear and relevant
objectives, seeking continuous
improvement.

Promote a corporate culture
that is based on ethical values
and behaviours.

Maintain governance structures
and processes that are fit

for purpose and support good
decision-making by the board.

Communicate how the company
is governed and is performing
by maintaining a dialogue with
shareholders and other relevant
stakeholders.

EXPLANATION

T~2 Boarc ssatisfied chatits corren:
composimianiincludes ar approonats
balarce of skils. experiance a~c
cacabiliues.

“he 3gard “egularly corsicers tre
2ffacoveness arnce relevance of ts
contripLoons, any learing ard
develcomenc neecs ang ohe level of

seratiny of Tne Se~of Marageme -~z Tear,

Curircermal sedal neswork iwor<place)
seis aul au” 2orporace values and
nehaviolrs whic™ are “einforcec via
Lma1ng a~d peformance manageme-t,

Tme Boarz s resoonsisle “or che Growvp's
overall scracegic direction ard
managerent. and For tre establishment
and maitendrce of 3 framework of
delegated aut=orities and conirdis to
a~sgra ine 2fF ¢ ent ana effertive
ranacerent of the Group s operstions,

The muvesiorssectior of oL website
includes nu rosults, presertations and
carmr TLeantons bo shateholders. we
rolease “he results of general meetings
TUT0wgh 4 2gulatony news service anc
2lso =i cme Regulatory News seclion of
oUTweDsIte,

FURTHER READING

For mare informatron
pages_44 and 45

For mcre information
page_48 and 49

For more .nformation
page_55

For more nfermation
page_43

Far mere information
https://investors.
impellam.com/

Zage_ 47
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CORPQRATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance statement continued

The Board of Directors currently comprises the Non-Execubive
Chairman, two Executive Directors and Four other Non-
Execubtive Directors The Boardis responsible for overseeing
the maragement of the Croup’s strategy and its businesses,
reviewing trading perfarmance, ensurirg adequate furdirg,
maintairirg a system of internal controls and risk assessrent,
ersuring good corporate governance and reporting to
shareholders. The Board meets when required and at least
eight times per arrurr, gither 1 person or virtually.

The arraal minimum bime commitment is pire days for the
Non-Executive Directors based on eight Board meetings
per arrum and the ACM. They are also required to sperd
appropriate preparation tirre ahead of sach meetirg. The
Executive Directors are full-time colleagues.

Durirg the period ended 31 Decerrber 2027, the Soard

rmet or eight occasiors. Relevant Migh-guality information,
consisting of detailed reports and presertations, is circulated
to the Directors ir advance of meetings by the Compary
Secretary. The rumber of scheduled Board meetings and
Committee meetings atterded 3s a member by each Director
agurirg the period are set out below:

Lord AshcrorFt 88
JufiérRobertSoP 3 (8;
Tire griant h 78?)7
Angew Ertwistle  8i8)
Mike Ettling T
hﬁﬂiiggaﬁel Laufwe_ B _“75(8_) '
Baro}*ezs-;_é_té'weéi-_ - _S (8}

The Non-Executive Chairman and Angela Entwistle are not
considered to be indeperdent due to their links with the
Corpany's major shareholder. All the other Non-Executive
Directors are considered o be independert.

The role of the Chairmanr is ro lead the Board and ensure

its effective aperation. in chainng the Beard, the Chairman

15 resporsible for setting the agerda, style and tore of the
Board discussiors ard ersurirg that all Directors ~eceive clear,
accurate and timely inforrraticr. The Chairman s responsible
For ensuring effective communications with sharehclders.

Cn appoirtmert, the Directors receive relevart information
about the Croup: the roie of the Board ard the matters
reserved For its decisian-rraking: membership of the principal
Board Committees and the powers delegated to those
Committees; the Group s corporate governance policies and
procedures and the latest financial information. Throughout
their period in office, the Directors are regularly updated on

the Croup’s business and the envirorment in which it operates.

Pace_48

All Directors receive regular and timely irformation on the
Group's operational and financiat performance and any legal or
governance requirements of the Group and those which affect
them 3s Directors.

The Directors have direct access to the advice ard services of
the Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer and are
able to take professional advice in the furtherance of their
duties at the Company's expense, where required. The Board
s satisfied that. between the Directors, it has an executive and
appropriate balance of skills and experience. including in the
areas of HR, technology. finance, communications. media

and government.

The Board seeks advice from external sources on matters

as they arise ir the business, incleding legal ard accounting
advice. There is an approepnate gerder balance with the Board
corsisting of four'male and three female rermbers,

' The biographies of all Directors appear on the Company

irvestor website: www.investors.impellarm.comr, The
Cormpany Secretary acts as the secretary to the Board and

+its Committees, provides legal and goverrarce sdpport (o
. the Board as a whote and Directors irdividuaily, ard ensures

the Croup complies with all relevant legal, regslatery and
governance requirerrents. The Chairman assesses the’
individual cortribution of each of the members of the Board
to ersure @ well-batarced ard comrmutted team.

The Board has carried cut ar arnual assessment of its
performance to ersure its rerrbers collectively Functior ir an
efficient and precuctive manner.

Section " 72 of the Companies At 2006 requires Directors

to take into consideration the interests of stakehotders and
other matters in their decisior-makirg. Within our Section
©72 report we set out bow the Directors bave addressed key
decisions that are consistent with the Company s objectives,
strategy and the overall culture, We believe we have a history
of collaborative, informative stakeholder engagement and

| decisior-rmaking based or long-term success, and we maintair
- governance structures and processes that support goad

decisior-rraking. This Section 172 report articulates how the

: Directors have acted to promate the success of the Croup for

the benefit of its stakeholders. in meeting this responsibility.
the Directors have had regard, armongst other matters, ta:

i« thetikely consequences of any decisions in the long term:
 « theinterests of the Group s cotleagues

+  the reedto foster the Croup's business relatiorships with
suppliers, customers and others:

+  thempact of the Group's operations on the cormrmurity
and environrment

+  ihe Croup sreputation for bigh stardards of busiress
conduct: and

+ the reed o act Fairly as betweer members of the Croup.
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Results of the ACM appear on the Company investor website;
www.irvestors.impellam.com with between 99.67% ard 100%
of votes cast beirg for the resolutionrs.

BOARD TENURE AS AT MARCH 2022

Lord Ashcroft KCMC PC

Julia Robertson

7 years, 3 months

8wyears, 11 months

him Hriant 2 years, 1 month

Angela Entwistle 9 years, 6 months

Mike Ettling 8 years, 6 months

Michael Laarie

7 years. 8 months

Baroness Tina Stowell 4 years, 5 moenths

Rebecca ‘Wakson "3years, 10 months

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS AT THE 2022 AGM

In accordarce with the Company's Articles of Association ard
the orirciples of the Code, all Directors of the Cormpany will
offer themselyes for re-election by shareholders at the 2022
AGM. The Board is satisfied that each Director 15 qualified

For re-election by the quality of their skills experience and
commitmert to the Beard.

THE BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES

Board evaluation

The perforrrance of the 3oard, 1ts Commrittees ard individual
Directors were reviewed at the Board meetings in Aprilt 202",
The Board recogrises the importarce of the evaluation to
help the Board certinuously improve 1ts and the Company's
performance ard to address any areas where recessary. 1IN its
evaluation the Board considers a rurmber of areas ircluding
the balance of the membership. its effectiveness as a team,
strategy and purpose and stakeholder engagement Objectives
going forward are agreed and a review of successior plarnirg
undertaken. The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive
are separate, with a clear divisior of responsibilities between
them. This separation of roles enkances the Independent
oversight of executive management by the Board and more
closely aligrs the Board with shareholders. it also means trat
ro one individdal withir the Company has unfettered powers
of decision-makirg.

bage_43
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance statement continued

Audit Committee

The Beard has an Audit Committee whose
resporsibifities include oversight of the Croup's internat
risk ard controls strateqy, including establisking
whistleblowing arrangerrerts, reviewirg ircernm and
Annual Reports and financial statements prinr to their
submission ta the full Board and reviewing reports

Fram the external auditor and internal audit. The Audit
Committee makes whatever recorrmenrdatiors to the
Board t deems appropnate, on any area withie its rerrit,
ircluding where action or improvement is needed.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS
Mike Ettling {Chair)
Michael Lacrie

MEETINGS ATTENDED

Mike Ettling 33
Mickhael Laune 3/3

MEETINGS

The Committee operates urder wntten Terms of Reference,
ard during the period ended 31 Decerrber 2021 it met

on three occasions, The Audit Commitiee invites the

Chief Financial Officer to all of its meetings and semior
representatives of the external auditor are rautinely invited to
Committee meetings, although it reserves the right to request
ary of these individuals to withdraw from the meeting. The
Audit Committee comprises two Non-Executive Directars:
Mike Ettling (Chair} and Michael Lacrie,

FENANCIAL AND BUSINESS REPORTING

During the year the Audit Corrmittee has reviewed the 2020
and 2C21 financial statements, the 2027 interim statement
{uraudited) ard carried out a goirg corcern review. Reviews
of the financial statements 'ncluded the accounting policies,
significant financial reporting issues and key ,udgements and
estimates underpinning the firancial statements. For the areas
discussed, the Committee was satisfied with the assumptions
made and the accocunting sreatments adopted.

Risk management and internal control

Risk managemenrt is the responsibility of the Board. Further
details about the process followed and prircipat risks ard
uncertamnties that could affect business operations can

be found in the Strategic Repert onnages 1to 45 The
Aadit Committee keeps urder review the adequacy ard
effectiveness of the Company's internal contrals and risk
maragemert systems. Asummary of the rternal cortrols
for Croup companies is presented to the Audit Committee,
including updates or the resclutior of ary co~trol weaknesses
identified The internal controls are reviewed by the Group
Finance function.

Every year the Audit Committee reviews the Crodp's sk
framework eports, to be presented to ana discussed by
the Board. The Croup s whistlebiowing palicy cortains
arrangemerts for the Compary Secretary to receive, In
confidence, complaints on accounting, risk 1ssues, internal
controls. auditing issues and related matters.

The Croudp bas a mandatory Code of Conduct, which sets out
the minimum expected behaviours far all celleagues.
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External audit

The Audit Committee is respansible for the development,
implemertation and moritoring of the Croup’s policy or
external audit, The Terms of Reference assign responsibility
to the Audit Committee for overseeing the relationship with
the external auditor. During 2€21, the Audit Committee
managed the relationship with the external auditor. reviewed
and menitored their independence and objectivity and the
efferriveness of the audit process. The Group's policy on ron-
audit related services prescribes the types of engagemenrts
For which the external auditor can be used and those
apgagements which are prohibited. For engagement for
services which are ron-recJrring In natJdre, prior approval
must be sougnt from the Audit Committee. Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements includes disclosure of the
auditor’s rerrareration For the year

Financial Reporting Council

Daring the year the Finarcal Reportirg Councail {(FRC)
conducted 3 review of the 2020 Annual Report ard Accourts.
The review ¢an be fourd here https//www.fre.arg.uk/
accountants/corporate-reporting-review/crr-reviews-of-
corporate-reporting/company-names-published-in-march-2022
ard did not give rise to any substartive questicns. The review
recomrrerded a rumber of enharced disclosures ir relaticn

to non-recourse financing agreements, impairment testing
periods and lease terams to be included within the 2027 Arpual
Report ard Accourts which we have duly adopted.

Assessment of the Audit Committee

The Board corducted ar assessment of the Acdit Comrmittee’s
performance at the April 202 ° rmeeting. The Chair of the
Audit Committee will be available at the 2022 Annual Cererat
Meenimg to answer any questiors about the work of tre

Audit Corrrmitee.

Page_51
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance statement continued

Remuneration
Committee

The Board has a Remuneratior Committee that is
resporsible for making recommendations to the
Rnard on Directors' remareration. b also reviews
recommendations from the Croup Chief Executive
Officer on other senior executives’ remuneration
ircludirg performance-related remuneration.

Tre Committee operates under written Terms of
Reference, and during the period ended 37 Decerrber
202" sk rret or one occasion. The Remuneration
Committee comprises bwo Non-Executive Directors:
Argela Entwistle iChair) and Michael Laurie.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS
argela Entwistle (Chair)
Michael Laurie

MEETINGS ATTENDED
argelabntwiste 1/

Michael Laurie 171

;dgc ,5:

REMUNERATION PRACTICES

The Remureratior Committee recommends and maonitors the
level and structure of remuneration For senior management
as well as monitoring remuperation trends across the Croup,
ard penadically reviews the ongoirg appropriateness

and relevance of the remuneration policy; No review was
conducted dunng the year

Assessment of the Remuneration Committee

The Board conducted an assessment of the performance

of the Remuneratior Committee atthe April 2021 meeting.
The Charr of the Remuneration Committee will be available
at the 2022 Anrual Ceneral Meetirg Lo answer any questions
about the work of the Remureration Committee.

Remuneration policy for the Executive Directors
Rermureration packages are designed to attrack, retair,
motivate and reward Executive Directors, whilst aligning
rewards with the business objectives and performance of the
Group ard the interests of shareholders.

Link between business objectives and remuneration policy
itisthe Croup's policy For performarce-related pay of
Executive Directors to be linked to key performance 'ndicators
of the Group. The Group's key sbiectives include developing
sustainable growth in earnings and profits through a
combinstior of orgaric growth, irvestrments ard increase in
share price. The key performance measares chosen r 2027

Lo ink executive remuneration to the achievernent of these
objectives were profits and a cash-related target

Directors’ contracts and letters cf appointment

It s the Group's policy that Executive Directors should have
contracts with indefinite terms providing for a maximum of

*2 reonths’ notice by the employing Grodg compary or the
individual. Ir the event of terminration, the Executive Directors’
contracts provide for compensation up to a maximum of the
basic rerruneration package for the rotice period.
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The detarls of the Executive Directors’ contracts are
surmmarised as follows:

The Effective date of contract and Notice period For Julia
Robertson were 5 April 207 3 with 12 months’ rotice from
either party. The Effective date of contract and Notice pericd
For Tim Briant were 1 October 2019 with six months notice
From either party. Non-Executive Directors serve under
letters of appointrrent, which either party can terminate

on three months written notice. The Non-Executive Directors
Rave no right to compersation on the termination of

rheir appointments.

Annual fees of Directors

The basic annual salary of each Executive Director and senior
managemertis reviewed arnually by the Remureration
Committee. The remuneration for the Non-Executive Directors
is determired by the Board within the limits set by the Articies
and is based on inforrratior on fees paid in sirmilar comparies
and the skills and expected time commitment of the individual
concerned. The fees are reviewed each year as part of the
annual budgeting process. The Non-Executive Directors
receive additicral rermuneratior for chairirg Committees,
Aggregate Directors’ remuaneratior s set out ir note 3.

Annual bonus

The Remuneration Committeea establishes the objectives that
must be met for each finanaial year if a cash bonus 1s to be
paid £o the Executive Directors. Based on the Remuneration
Committee's assessment of the performarce agaimst those
targets. it was determined that there was £1.0m bonus
payment for delivery of the financial targets. of which £0.4m s
deferred ard made in three equal caymerts over three years.

Shareholding guidetlines

There are no reguirements for Executive Directors or senior
executives to hold shares in the Company. Details of the
shareboldings of Directors whao served durirg the year are set
out on paqge 55.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has responsibility for the Croup’s overall system
of internal contrals and for reviewing their effectiveness.
They recognise that the system is designed to manage and
mitigate, rather than eliminate, the risk of Failure to achieve
business objectives. It can provide only reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material financial misstatement
or loss, The Board has established ar organisational structure
with clear Terms of Reference that rmusl be adhered to by all
subsidiaries. There is a programime of regular review by the
Board and executive management, which provides assurance
that the cortrol environment 1s operating as irtended. A

. keyelemert of this review is strateqic business plannirg
" ard subsequent performarce moritoring. Fach business

has defined financial performance plans that are agreed

" by the Board at the beginning of each financiat peried to

meet Company objectives. These plans contain measurable
performance targets, which are contiruously monitored to

, identify shortfalls, so that corrective actions can be taken.
In addition, the Comrpany and its subsidiaries mairtam risk

registers that are updated reqularly. The Group nisk register s
reviewed by the Audit Committee whilst reviewing generally
the effectiveness of the Company's internal control system.
The Croup Financiat Cortreller is alsc respensible For reporting
o the Audit Committee or nterral audit, Jtilising interral

. and external expertise. The Group operates in ‘The Virtucso

Way', which embeds a consistent Comrpary-wide culture,

. based on trusted behaviours, delivered by entrepreneuriai
Cyirtaoso leaders, who can drive competitive advantage and

deliver on the Group's commitments. The Board s committed
ko mairtaining appropriate standards for ail the Corpany's
business activities and ensuring that these standards are set
ouk inwritten poiicies key examples of such standards and

- policies indude the ‘Code of Business Corduct’. The Company

‘Code of Busiress Conduct’ demonserates its commitment
to maintaining the high levels of ethical standards and
behaviours, wherever it operates in the world.

. DIALOGUE WITH SHAREHOLDERS
" The Camrpary remairs cormmitted to listering to and
©commuricating operly with its sharebolders to ersure that its

yisior, mission, strategy, business model ard performarce are
clearly understond. The Compary commuricates with
sharehoiders through the Arnual Report ard Accounts,
full-year and half-year arnouncemerts, the Anrual Cereral
Meeting 'ACM') and one-to-one meetings with large existing
or potentiat new sharehoiders. The Nop-Executive Directors
will atterd the ACGM and are available to answer ary questions
relevant to the Commmittees they chair. The Board receives
regular updates on the views of sharefbolders through
briefings and reports From the Group Chief Executive Officer
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary Corporate
irformation, including all Company anpouncements, 15
availlable to sharebolders, investors ard the public or the
Company’'s website www.rvestors.impellam.com).



i
POMBELLAM GROUP PLC_ANMUAL REPORT AMD ACCOUNTS 2021
i

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Directors' report

The Directors present their Annual Report on the affairs of the Greup and the Cornpany. together with the audited consolidated
financial statements and auditor s reports, For the period ended 31 December 2021

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Croup comprise the provision of staffing solutions, human capital management and outsourced
people-related services in the UK, treland, North Amrerica, mainland Europe, Australia and New Zealand. The principal activity of the
Cormpary is that of a holding company that provides strategic planning and maragemert services to its portfolie of subsidiaries.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The audited consolidated financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2021 are set out on pages 68 to 119. The
Group profit For the pericd was £8.3m 1year ended 1 Januwary 2G21- £21.4m loss). In January 2021 the Board announced a reduced
share buyback programme. where it will purchase Ordinary shares in the Company up to an aggregace market value of £0.5m per
calendar manth unk:l the next AGM to be held in June 2021 It was approved at the AGM to commence an updated programme
wheraby the Baard can purchase up £0 a maximum of 4, 560.363 shares. being 10% of the issued Ordinary share capital of the
Company {as at " 7 May 2021 urtil the earliest of the 2022 ACM o 30 Jure 2022,

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The Croup’s Future developments are outlined within the Strategic Report. Key areas are covered within the Strategic review,
Strategic pricrities and Looking forward sections of the Chief Executive Officer's review and within the Cutlock section of the Chief
Financial Officer’s review.

CAPITALSTRUCTURE
The Company Impellam Croup olc” has ho limit to 1ts authorised share capital, At 31 December 2021, thare were 45 311,269 12020:
459193 871 alloted. fully paid shares of 1p 1n 1ssue.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
Between the end of the year ard 22 March 2022, a further 75,830 Ordinary shares of 1p each have beer repurchased ir the market
For total consideration of £0.4m and have been cancelled.

On 24 January 2022 the Croup announced that it has entered into an agreement to selt the business and assets of Corestaff its
US-based Light Industnial brand, to swipejobs Inc., a US private digital staffing company for cash consideration of approximately
£14m {319my

The transactior was carrpleted or 7 February 2022, Following comrpietion of the Disposal, the Croup used the proceeds of sale
to pay down net debt to furd additioral investment to Further acceierate the Croup's strategy.

POLIT!CAL DONATIONS
The Group has rmade ro political donations during the current of prior years,

MAJOR SHAREHOLDINGS
A5 ak 23 February 2022, the Company had been ncufied of the following disclosable .nterests representing 3% or more of the
issued Ordinary share capital of the Company:

Lombard Trust 7 7 - - - 56.88%
Keprer;-t_a-p?eﬂ_.\;a}_ag_emer*t - S - | -8.3"_%
Hendrik M van Heist T
LordAsheroft T s
Schroder Investment Managemert Lirited a0
rsingerCilisser: Barkiers R €

2age 5S4
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DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the period and up to the date of signing these financial statements were:

Julia Robertson Group Cruef Executive Officer Appointed April 2013

Tirm Briart Chief Financial Officer Appoirted February 2020
Non-Executive Directors

Lord Ashcroft KEMG PC Non-Executive Chairman Appointed December 7014
Angela Entwistle Non-Executive Director Appoirted September 202
Mike Cttling Independent Non-Executive Director Appoirted September 2073
Michael Ladrie Indecendent Non-Executive Director Appointed July 2C14
Baroness Tina Stowell Independent Non-Executive Director Appoirted October 2077

To reacd all of our Directors’ biographies, see pages 44 and 45.

DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDINGS
Asat 23 February 2022 the following Directors held shares in the Company:

Lord Ashcroft (Non-Executive Chairman; 2.273,755
Julia Robertson {Group Chief Executive Officen 153,90
Angels Entwistle iINon-Executive Director) 13,800
Mike Ettling :Non-Executive Director) 10,860
CONTROL

The CGroup has identified Lord Asheroft as the vitimate controlling party as ne has influence aver more than 50%, sut less than
75%, of batb the shares and voting nghts of Impeltam Croup ple and together with being Chairman of Impeilam Croup plc has
significant influence over the Group.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Croup's chjectives and policies relating o financiai risk managsment are fully explained in note 27 on pages 107 to 105

PRINCIPAL RISKS
The Board's assessment of the prircipal risks and urcertainties, the Croup's policy and its mitiganicns are detailed or pages
32 to 35,

ENGAGEMENT WITH COLLEAGUES AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Directors have given much focds as to how they engage and build relationships with colleagues, suppliers, customers
and other stakehoders; and how these stakeholders’ interests are considered when making significant decisions. The Group's
engagement with colleagues and other stakeholders is explained sn the Stakeholder ergagement and Responsible busiress
sections of the Strategic Report on pages 36 to 41.

We actively encourage diversity in the workplace and have a wide ard varied coileague base with a vanety of social and etbnic
groups represenrted at all levels of the busiress, We believe that breaking down the barriers that have rraditionally restricted
access to the iabour market will encourage job oppartunities Far all. We see It as cur responsibility borh to understand and to
addreass, the root causes of gender pay gaps We are pleased that impellam s leading by example by appointing and promoting
woemen into semor rotes We are one of only a smatl number of AlM listed companies to be led by a woman, and in addition, 43%
of our Board members ard 50% of cur Serior Leadership Team are wormren. With this in mind, we waork hard to help our clierts
and suppliers achieve cheir diversity objectives. '

The Group 1s committed to providing all our colleagues with a work erwvironment free of discrirnination related to sex. race,
colour, orientation, religicn, age. etbricity, ratiorsl ongin, disability or 3ry other inappropriate basis. Applicatices for
employment by peaple with disabilities are considered, like all sthers, bearing i mind the aptitudes of the candidate concerred.
in the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every effort is made to ensurs that thes employment within the Group
continues and that approprate adjustments are made. It 1s our policy that the traming. career development and promation of
people with disabilities should, as far as possible, be the same as for all other colleaguaes.
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Directors’ report continued

STRATEGIC REPORT

Irformation in respect of the Group's approach to Colleague Engagement & Commurications (includirg in respect of Modern
Slaveryl, Health & Safety, Anti-Bribery, Community and Ervironment are not showr within the Directors’ report because they are
presented within the Responsible business section of the Strategic Report on pages 39 and 40.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Notice of AGM, to be held at 3.00pm on Wednesday 29 June 2022 at the Impellam offices. 9 Devonshire Square, Londan
EC2M 4HP s contained 1n a separate creular to shareholders. It is being mailed or otherwise provided to shareholders, after the
putiication of the Arnual Report. The Notice of Meeting sets out the resolutions fo he proposed at the AGM and gives details
of the vuling record date and proxy appointment deadline for that meering. The meeting may be held virtually if Covid-19
restrictions are in place,

DIRECTORS INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the year and to the date of these accodnts, the Caompary had in force ar inderrnity provision in favour of ore or rrore
Directors of the Company against liability in respect of proceedings brought by third parties, subject to the conditions set aut in
the Comparies Act 2006.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITOR
In the case of each Director ir office at the date the Cirectors’ reportis approved and in accordance with Section 478 of the
Corrpanies Act 2006:
3. sc faras the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware; and
b. he/she has taken all the steps that ne/she cught to have taken as a Director in order to make himself/herself aware of any
relevart audit irforrration ard to establish that the Company's auditor is aware of that informatior.

REAPPOINTMENT OF AUDITOR
In accordance with Secticn 483 of “he Cornpanies Act 2006, a resolution for the reappointment of BDO LLP as auditor
of the Company s expected te be proposed at the Anncal General Meeting being held on 29 June 2022.

DIRECTORS' REPORT
This report was approved by the Board on 5 April 2022 and s sigred or its behalf by

RJ Watson

Company Secretary

800 The Boulevard
Capability Green
Luton
Bedfordshire

LU 3BA

Fige_sn
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible For preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations.

Cornpany law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors have
elected to prepare the Group financial statements i accordance with UK adopted International accounting standards and the
Company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the Directors must not appreve the financal statements uniess
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit or ioss
of the Group for that period. The Directors are alsc required to prepare financial statements in accordance with Lhe rules of
the London stock Exchange for companies trading securities an AIM. in preparing these financial statements, the Directors are
required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+  make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether they have been prepared in accordance with UK adopted international accounting standards subject to any
matenal departures disclosed and explzined in the financial statements, and

» prepare the financial statements cn the going concern basis unless 1t s inappropriate to presume that the Company will
cortinde in business.

The Trectors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s
trancactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enasle them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the requirements of the Companies Act 20G6. They are also responsible far
safequardirg the assets of the Corrpary ard herce for taking reasorable steps For the prevertion and detectior of fraud and
other irregularities. -

WEBSITE PUBLICATION

The Directors are respensible for ensuring the Annual Report and the financial statements are made available cn a website.
Firarcial statements are published or the Companry s website in accordance with legislatior in the United Kingdom governing
the preparaticn and disseminatian of financ.al statements, which may vary from legisiation \n other junsdictions. The
mairtenarce and ntegrity of the Companry's website 1s the resporsibility of the Directors. The Directors resporsibility aiso
extends to the ongoing integrity of the financial statements contained theren.

Pags 7
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Impellam Group plc

OPINION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{n our opinion:;

+ the financial staternents give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at
31 December 2021 and of the Croup's profit for the 52-week pericd then ended;

< the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with Uk adopted :international
accounting standards;

+ the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared n accordance with United Kingdeom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice, and

+ the financiat statements have teen prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

e have audited the finandial statements of Impellam Group plc (the 'Parent Company’) and ts subsidiaries (the Croup’)
For the 52-week period ended 31 December 2021 which comprise:

»  Consolidated Statemrent of Charges in Equity Corrpanies Act 2006
= Consolidated Cash Flow Statemenrt -
»  Notesto the consolidated financial statements
»  Alternative performance measures

Caergoeniar ST OELIAL TRrT TrEMmEAT TR
Croup »  {Consolidated Ircome Staterment + Applicable law and interratioral
= (onsolidated Statemrent of Comprehensive income accoanting skandards in corformity
= Consolidated Balance Sheet with the requirements of the
l
[

Parert Corrpany «  Company Balarce Sheet +  Applicable law and Urited Kingdom
- Corrpany Staterrert of Changes in Equity Accocrting Stardards, includirg
+  Notestothe Company financal statemencs ~inancial Reporting Standard €1

Reduced Disclosure Framework
{United Kingdom Cererally Accepted
Accourting Practice)

BASIS FOR OPINION

we conducted our audit ir accordarce with International Stardards on Auditing (UK {1SAs (UKY ard apoiicable law, Qur
resoonsibitties under those standards are Further described in the Auditor s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 2
basis For our opinion.

Independence

we remain independert of :he Croup ard the Parent Compary in accordarce with the ethical requirerrents that are relevant
to our audit of the financiai statements in the UK. including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to listed entities, and we have
Fulfilled ocur other ethical responsibilities 1n accordance with thesa requirements.

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN

Conclusior & key = Inauditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going
observations concern basis of accounting 'n the preparation of the financial statements is approprate.

+  Based on the work we have performed. we have not identified any material uncertainties
relating to events ar conditions that, individually or collectively may cast significant doubt on
the Group and the Parent Compary's ability to cortinue as 2 going corcerr for a penod of at
feast twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised For 1ssue

Jage 5=
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of impellam Group plc

continued
Approach Qur evalJyatior of the Directors’ assessment of the Group and the Parert Compary's ability to
cortinue to adopt the goirg concern basis of accounting included:

*  Reviewing and challenging, through erquiry and consideration of historical performance, key
assurnptions applied by the Directors in preparation of cash flow forecasts, including growth
assumptions and movements in headcount ard base costs, and the Croup's ability to meet
working capitat requirements aver the going corcern period,

+  Reviewirg the Directors stress tested forecasts, includirg the impact of the ‘downside’
scenarios or covenant and cash 'beadroom’ ard consigeration of the likelihcod of occurrerce
and feasible actions o ircrease headroom.

+  Review of the Group’s new financing agreement effective 17 December 2021 and its key terms
ard coverants. Considering the adequacy of the disclosare requirements agairst the associated
accounting stardards.

Qur resporsibilities ard the resporsibilities of the Directors with respect to going corcern are

described in the reievant sections of this report.

73% {2020 67%, of Group absolute* udusted operating profit

Coverage’

69% (2020: 83%,) of Group absolute™ profit before tax
75% (2020: 82%) of Group revenue
85% (2020: 86%) of Group gross assets

*Ansolyte ~2fess to the cumLiative va.we of figures “egardless of wherher £ s apositive srnegative Jawe

Key audit matters

<2y zLJIk matter o

Risk of fraud or cut-off arrar in revenue racognition on temporary
contractor revenue and complex accounting on managed service
contracts v e

Compliarce with laws and regulatiors v v

Coodwill, brand irtangibles and Parent Company investment
recoveranility X /

New accounting treatmenrts 35 a result of Cowd-19 % v

Goodwill, brand irtangibles and Parert Corrpany ‘nvestrment recoverabiiity 1s rot considered to be 3
key audit matter as the risk of impairment of gocdwill or investments in subsidiaries is significantly
reduced following a recurn zo profitable growth.

New accounting treatrents as a resdlt of Cowd-19 is no longer considered to be a key audit matter
dae te the reduced atilisatior of Covernmrert Covid-19 relief schemes from the prior period ard
erhanced knowledge for the accourting for these schemres,

Materiality

Group financial statements as a whole

E1.45m (2020 £1.10m) based on 5.0% of adjusted operating profit {2020 3.5% of the average of
adjusted operating profit for last thrae penods). A three-pericd average was used in the prior period
due wo the impact of the Covid-19 panderric.

AN OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE GF QUR AUDIT

Our Croup audit was scoped by obtainirg ar understanding of the Croup ard its emvirormenrt, including the Croap's system
of internal control and assessing the risks of material musstaternent in the financial statements. We also addressed the risk of
rraragemenrt avesride of internal Cortrols, including assessirg whether there was evidence of bias by the Directors that may
rave repraserted a risk of material misstatement.

We gesigred ar audit strategy Lo ers_re we have obtained the required audit assurance for each commporert for the purposes
of our Group audit opinion (154 800 (UK)). Components were scoped i to address aggregation fisk and to ensure sufficient
coverage was obtamed of Croup balarces or which to base our audit opinion. The coverage of our a4dit procecures 1s
surmmransed graphically nelow and then detgiled in the following table.

1 Tmese 3r2 a7e3s ycnrave ceansatiect tooa f Al scope auct

Faye sl
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Significant components +  We forused cur Croup audit scope primarily on the audit work at seven significant

components, which were subject to full scope audit procedures.

»  These significant compenents contribute 73% (2020: 57%) of the Group Absolute
Adjusted Operating Profit. 65% 12020: 83%) of the Group Absolute Profit before Tax.
59% (2020:82%: of the Croup Revenue ard 85% (2020: 86%) of Group Gross Assets

»  Three af the Fuil scope audits of significant components were performed by component
auditors under the direction and supervision of the Senior Statutory Auditor who issued
derailed nstructions, reviewed component audit files and attended local audit close
meeatings. All significant componeants were aucited by BDO LLP {BDC UK}, cther than one
comporent, which was audited by BDO in the JS (BDO US).

Specified audit procedures +  Specified audit procedures were performed to address the risk of material rmisstatement
ansing from key balances in non-sigrificant components, with testing pe-formed on ail
material balances withip these componrents.

«  All testing was performed by BDO UK, other than for the components e Australia and
New Zealand, which were performed by BDO Australia Limited. All test.rg was under the
direction ard sapervisior of the Sepior Statutory Auditor via detailed irstructions and via
review of selected working papers on significant risk areas.

+  This specific scope testing was performed on components that contribute 21%

{2020: 11%) of the Group Absolute Adjusted Cperating Profit, 26% (202C: 3%, of the

Croup Absclute Profit befare Tax, 17% (202C: 9%) of the Group Revenue and 13%

12020: 9% of Group Gross Assets

» Al other components were scaped in far analyhical review procedures to confirm
cur conclusion that there were no significant risks of matenal misstatement of the
aggregated financiai infarmation. These were performed by the teams in BDO LLP
IBDO UK), BDO US and BDO Australia.

- Specified audit procedures were performed on any material balances from these

Rerrairing components

COMmporerts.
Parent Compairy and «  TheParert Corrparyis located in the UK and was audited by the Group audit team
consolidatior (BDO LK), The Parent Company is treated as a sigmificant component for the Group.

The Croup audit team bave performed testing of the consolidatior and related
consolidabion adjustments posted 'n preparation of the Group financial statements.

Page_a1
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
Independent auditor’s report to Lhe members of Impellam Group plc
continued

Our involvement with component auditors

For the work performed by component auditors on significant components, we determined the level of involvement needed
in order to be able to conclude whether sufficient appropriate audit evidence has been cbtained as a basis for our opinion

on the Group financial statements as a whole. Cur involvement with component auditors on significant components included
the following:

We assessed the competence ard independence of the compaorent auditors. Direction ard supervision over their work
performed was aiso provided by the Crodp audit team. We atterded the comporert ertities plarpirg and completion
meetings The comprnent auditars alse transferred documentation of their work performed which was reviewed Ly Lhe Croup
audit team in order to gain comfort over the audit of the significant components, specified audic procedures on specific scope
entities. and reviews over the remaining insignificant components.

Key audit matters

key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement. were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or nat
due to fraud) that we (dentified, inctuding those which had the greatest effect on the overall audit strategy, the allocation of
rescurces in the audit, and directing the affarts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whote and in forming our opinion thereon. and we o not provide a separate opinIon on
these matters,

< ey rudie macker e anphe = a® addressed the ke, -o it metEes rotma tudif

Risk of fraud or »  Under|SA 240 (UK}, there s a Temporary contractor revenue

cut-off errorin presurred sk that revende may

revenue recognition be musstated dueto iF‘F‘DFODrE( +  Toaddress the risk around existence and cut-off

on temporary recogritior, whether from fraud of revenue, or a sample dasis, revenue arourd the
of error. Cver that reverue is 3 seriod end was tested aqainst arderlying supportirg

contractor revenue

and complex key perForrrance irnd‘wcator for the documertation, such as enrgagement lettel'rs‘ tirﬁgcards.
. Croup, the risk cf improper rever e Daymerts to temporary workers and mories received
accounting on recognition is elevated. from the clierts.
Managed Service +  Tre risk of frauduient reverue s Cut-off was further addressed by reviewing timecards
Contracts recognition arses From revenue in submitted after period erd and ascertaining the serod
relatior to temporary cortiactors. they relate to.
The accourting Management applies jJudgements «  The completeness of reverue was tested by sampling
policy and related ard estimates corcernirg the timecards ard tracinrg them to the reverue ard accrued
disclosares are shown completeness accuracy and cut-off of income and ensarirg they bave been recogrised in the
in rates 2, 3and " 5. revenue around period end: therefore correct period.
a risk of material misstatement exists  + A sample of credit notes raised ir saruary 2022
This can ‘nvolve either through error orin order to that relate to FY2 ™ were reviewed i order to
complex and meet financial targets or performance assess the validity of the sales irvoices raised
subjective judgements related boruses. in the financial period.
in determirirg +  Therisk of erronequs reverye
Lermrporary reverue recognition arises from camplex Complex accounting on Managed Service Contracts
recognised arodnd accourtinrg on rebates related to
period end and the managed seruice contracts, Accounting - The period end rebate liabilities were tested by assessirg
application of IFRS %5 ard potential urderstatemenrt of estimates agalnst the contacts and/or correspondences,
to compiex contracks. trese rebate agreemerts could resJlt The vear-erd rebate liability was further aralysed against
i~ a matertal error within the revenue the prior period’s rebate liability in order to urderstand
stated for the pericd. key movements inrebates and form ar expectation on
+ Thisresults in the cur-off of temporary the liability positior at the period end.
revenue and complex accounting +  Asample of rebates were recalculated Jsing the terms
_or Maraged Service Cortracts being of the supplier cantracts and/or correspondences and
3ssessed as a significant risk of volume of placemerts obtained from the irformatior
material misstatement ard 3 key held on the audited ertity's system.

audit rratter.
Key observations
we did rotidertify ary indications that temporary or
managed service reverue were materially misstated.
The judgements and estimates applied werea therefore
censistent with our expectations
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Compliance .
with laws and

regulat

The accounting policy
and related disclosares
are shownr in note 2

and 20.

In accordance with
IAS 37 "Provisions,
Contirgent Liabilities

ard Cor

Assets', provision is

rrade fo

potertial and actual
raon-compliance with
laws ard regulations
where there 15 3
present obligation as a
resdlt of 3 past event
that gives rise to a
probable payrrent and
when the guartur of
the paymenrt can be
reliably estimated.

aktizr test Iphior

international legal and requlatory

ions requiremenrts that vary betweer the
different industries and jurisdictions
that the Croup operates. The Croup
has ar in-house legal team who assist
managemenrt in the determiratior of
its financial obtigatinns
The Croup holds a number of balarces
in relation to 145 ongoing obligations
to comply with the regulatory and
legal envirenmert —varying levels of
judgement are requirec to estimate
the impact of thesa on the financial
staternents.
The key areas of compliance relate
to workers' righs, such as PAYE
underpayment, ratiorat minimum
wage, Fair Labour Standards Act {USA)
and holiday pay.
Provisions have beer made for tre
expected cost of settling these
matters, these are inherertly
judgemental.
Ary non-cempliarce may result im
Fines. unrecerded labilities and
reputatioral darmage to the Group.

+  The compliance with laws and
regulaticrs has been assessed
as a significant risk of materiat
misstatermrents and related disclosures
ard a key audit matter.

Lingent

rclaims For

The Group is subject to bath local and

—Gw e 3l essed che key zudit natter i the audit

«  We held meetings with the Croup’s legal coursel to
understard areas of non-compliance with laws or
regulation and the progress of any significant ongoing
legal areas.

+  We rirculated legal confirmations to key exrernal
counsel to gain external confirmation of any potential
claims or areas of ror-compliance.

+  The outcome of prior period daims has beer evaluated
against the current penod provisiors to gain assurarce
over the historical reliability and comnpleteness of the
liability.

»  We specifically assessed by brard, the Group's policies
and practices in relation to heliday pay, 'n the context
of relevart legal requirements. We reviewed the basis
and appropriateress of roliday pay accraals and level
of pay-out by samplinrg cortractors and employees o
urderlying contracts ard system gererated reports.

«  We assessed the Croup's control ervironment around
ratioral minimur» wage compliarce and rmade enqaires
to determine areas of potential exposure, inspect:ng
and assessing associated correspordence. We evaluated
and challenged management s experts competerce and
expeosura assessment,

Key observations

Wwe did notidentify, either from external or ‘nternal
soufces, ary material compliarce issaes not already
included 0 the provisions.

Based on the work performed, we did rot.dent'f,
any inappropnate ;udgements or estimates mads by
managemert, all provisiors Fell within our rarge of
potential outcomes.

we did not identify any disclosure deficiencies in relation

to notes 2 ard 20 that describes the degree of inrerent
arcertainty i the assumptions and estimates used i
assessing the value of asscaated nor-compliarce provisions.

Pace 53
Page 33
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Impellam Group plc
continued

OUR APPLICATION OF MATERIALITY

We apply the concept of materiality both in planning and perfarming our audit, and in evaluating the effect of misstatements.
We consider materiality to be the magnitude by which misstatements, including omissions. could influence the economic
decisions of reasonable users that are taken on the basis of the financial statements.

In order to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that any misstatements exceed matenality, we use a lower
materiality level, performance materiality, to determine the extent of testing needed. Importantly, misstatements below these
levels will not necessarily be evaluated as \mmaterial as we aiso take account of the nature of 1dentified misstatements, and the
particular circumstances of their occurrence, when evaluating therr effect on rhe Financial statements a3 a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial staternents as a whole and performance
materiality a5 follows:

GROUP MATERIALITY

i Moo

Materiality £1.45m £1.10m

Basis 5.0% of Adjusted Operating Profit’ 3 5% of Adjusted Cperating Profit

Raticnale Adjusted Operatipg Profit is considerad the most appropriate benchmark based on market practice

and investor expectations. Adjusted operabting profit is derived by adding back interest expense
and income. impairments, and amortisation of brand values and client relationships from profit
befcre tax

Cur materniality benchmark (Adjusted Operating Profit) has remaired the same from the prior 52-
week period, although in the prior period we ased an average of the last three penods to normatise
profits for the impact on Covid-19.

Cur materiality percentage threshold has beer increased From 3.5% 1 2020 t0 5% in 2027,

We increased the percentage in the current period, followirg a charge in berchmark from three
period average profits in the prior period. We used awditor judgement to ensure the chosen
percentage derived ar appropriate materiality levelin the context of the current period profits
and kradirg activities.

Performance £1.015k £715k

Materiality

Measure 70% of Materiality 65% of Materiality

Application The application of materiality at the individual account or balance level s set at an amaount to

reduce to ar appropnately low level the probability that the aggregate of urcorrected ard
undetected misstatements exceeds materiality.

Theincrease from 65% in 2020 to 70% ir the current period 1s due to our impeoving krowledge of
the Group, being our third period of audit, and improvement in the Group s financial reporting and
contrat envirormert over that time., These Factors reduce the inferent risk of small urcorrected or
ardetected errors becorrirg material in aggregate.

2 Seapage t For gefinaionm

Sage_5d
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PARENT COMPANY MATERIALITY

N w20
Materiality £1.38m £1.04m

Basis Net assets

Rationale Net assets is considered the most appropriate benchmark as the Parent Company does not trade,

and is focused on a share buyback pragramme that relies on sufficient reserves to achieve this
This has been capped at 95% of Group materiality stated above.

Performance £954k £676k
Materiality
Measure 70% of Materiality £5% of Materiality

Application The applicatior of rrateriality at the individuat account or balance level s set at ar amount to
reduce to ar appropriately low level the probability that tne aggregate of uncorrected and
undetected misstatements exceeds materiality.

Theircrease from 65% ir 2020 to 70% in the current period s due to the Factors noted in our
Croup materiality rationale above.

Component materiality

We set materiality for 2ach comporert of the Group based on a percertage of between 31.7% ard 95.0% of Croup materiatity
dependent on the size and our assessment of the risk of matena! misstatement of that component. Significant component
materiality ranged from £170k to £1.38m. In the audit of each significant component, we further applied performance
matenality levels of 70% of the component materiality to our testing to ensure that the risk of arrors exceeding compeonent
matenality was appropriately mitigated.

Reporting threshold
We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them all individual audit differences in excess of £58k {2020
£22x) We also agreed to report differences below this thresheld that, 'n our view, war-anted reporting on qualitative grounds.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are resporsible for the other informatior. The other informatior comprises the rfaormation included in the
Annual Report and Accounts other than the financial statements and our auditor s report thereon. Cur opimion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and except to the extent ctherwise explicitly stated in our “eport, we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is t6 read the otherinformation and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information 1s matenaily inconsistent with che financial statements or cur knowledge obtained in the course
of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. if we idertify such material ircorsistercies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required fo determine whether this gives rise to 3 matenal misstatement in the financial statements
themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we corclude that there is a material misstaterrent of this other
irformatior, we are required to report that fact.

We have rothing to reportin this regard.

Page A5
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Impellam Group plc
continued

OTHER COMPANIES ACT 2006 REPORTING
Based on the responsibilities described below ard our work performed dunng the course of the audit, we are required by the
Companies Act 2006 and ISAs {(UK) to report on certair opiriors ard matters as described below.

Strategic and Ir our opinior, based on the work urdertaken in the course of the audit:

Directors’ report the information given in the Strategic report and the Directors report for the financial period
For which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements, and

+ the Strateqic report and Lhe Ditectors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements,

Ir the light of the knowledge and urderstanding of the Croup ard Parent Companry and its
enyironment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified materal misstatements
in the Strateqic report or the Directors report.

Matters on which We have nothing Lo report in respect of the following matters ir refatior to which the Comrpanies
we are required Ack 2006 requires us to report to you «f, in our opinion:

to report by + adeguate accountirg records have rot been kept by the Parert Compary, or retdrns adequate
exception for our acdit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
+ the Parent Company financial staternents are nct \n agreement with the accounting records
and returns; or )
»  certain disclosures of Directors remuneration speaified by law are not made: or
+ we have not recewed all the information and explanaticns we require For our audit.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ resporsibilities the Directors are respensible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being sabisfied that chey give a true and fair view, and for such internal contrel as the Directors
determineg is necessary to enable the preparation of financiat staternents that are free “rom material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements the Directors are responsible for assessing the Groun's and the Parent Compary s ability
to contirue 3s 3 going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concerr ard Jsirg the going corcern basis of
accounting urless the Directors either interd to liguidate the Croup or the Parert Comgany of Lo cease operations, or have ro
realistic alterrative but to do so.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
mussiaterent, whetber due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 'rcludes our epintor. Reascnable assarapce
15 a high level of assurance, butis pot a guarantes that ar audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered maternal if individually or
in the aggregate. they coutd reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

Extent to which the audit was capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

irreqularities, ircluding fraud, are instances of ron-corrpliance with laws ard regulatiors. we desigr procedures in line with
our responsibilities, sutlined above, to detect matenal misstatements in respect of irreqularities, inctuding fraud. The extent to
which our procedures are capable of detectirg irregularities, indudirg fraud 1s detalled below:

we obtaired an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to lrpellar Croup ple. We
determined that the most significant laws and regulations which are directly relevant to specific assertions .n the financial
statements are those related to the reporting framewcrk (IFRS, UK CAAP ard the Companies Act 2006], labour reguiatiors and
tax laws in key territeries which the Group cperates.

we urderstood haw the Group is complying with those legal ard regulatory frameworks by making erquiries of
maragemert ard those responsible For legal and compliance procedures. We corroborated our erquiries through our
review of beard minutes, legal cerrespondence or confirmations (where relevant) and specific audit testing within significant
corrponent ard full scope entities.

Face_96
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«  We obtained an understanding of the significant laws and regulations which the Group 15 affected by and understood
how the Croupis corrplying with the laws and regulations. This was corroborated against our review of board minates,
confirmations from legal counsel and audit procedures on provisions and compliance with laws and regulations.

«  We assessed the susceptibility of the Croup's financial statements to material misstatement, including how fraud might eccur
by meeting with management to understand where it is considered there was 3 susceptibility of fraud. Qur considerations
included erquiries with comporert managemert and component auditors.

- We also considered potential fraud drivers: including financial or other pressures, opportunity. and personal or corporate
motivations. We considered the policies and controls that the Group has established to address risks identified. or that
otherwise prevent, deter and detect fraud; and how senior marnagement menitors those programmes and controls, Where
the risk was considered higher. we performed audit procedures to address each identified fraud risk. These procedures
included testing manual journals, testing compliance with laws and regulations and key areas of estimation uncertainty or
judgement, fFor example: recoverability of trade debtors, valuation of accrued income at pericd-end, revenue recognition on
temporary contractor revenue and complex contract accounting on managed service conkracts as set out in the key audit
matters sectior.

+  We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team members
ard the comporent auditors, and rerrained alert to any indications of fraud or non-compliarce with laws and regutations
throughout the audit.

Cur audit procedures were designed to respond to risks of material misstatement in the financial staterments, recognising

that the risk of rot detecting 3 material misstatement due to fraud ;s higher than the risk of rot detecting ore resultirg from
errar, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, far example, forgery, misrepresentabions of thraugh collusion, There are
inherent limitaticrs in the audit procedures performed ard the further removed non-comrpliance with laws and reguiations is
from the svents and transactions reflected :n the Financial statements, the less likely we are ro become aware of it.

A fyurther description of our responsibilities is available or the Finarcal Reporting Counail’s website at:
www.Frc.org.ck/auditersresponsibilizies. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

USE OF OUR REPORT

This report 1s made salely to the Parent Compary's members, as a body, in accordance with Crapter 3 of Part " 6 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has beer urdertaken so that we might state to the Parent Comrpary's members those
ratters we are required to state o them in an auditor's report and For no other purpose. To the Fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to aryore other than the Parent Compary and the Parent Company's members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, ar for the opiniors we have formed.

Mark Cardiff (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
London, UK

S Aprit 2022

BDO LLPis a imited hability partnership registered ir £ngland and Wales (with registered rumber OC305727).

Pace 5~
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Consolidated income statement

FORTHE 532 wWELKS EMDED 3 DECTMBER 2021

31 December

U ETAEE 1)

2021 e
o - e B utes £m -
Revenue 3 2,262.4 20009
Cost of sales {1,995.4) (1,772.8}
Graoss profit 267.0 228
Administrative expenses (244.2) 1239.5)
Impairmert losses from receivables 15 (3.3) (3.6
Operating profit/(loss) 2184 19.5 (5.0
Operating profit before impasments. amortisation of brand value and customer relationships 3 29.3 ‘8.2
Amortisatior of brard value and castomer relationships "3 (9.8) f100)
Irrpairrrert of goodwnll 2 - ('6.6)
Irrpairrrert of other irtangibie assets 3 - (5.6}
Cperating profit flloss) 384 19.5 (15,0}
Firarce incorre 6 0.2 03
Finance expense 7 {4.3) 5.7
Profit/(loss) before tax 15.4 20 4
Tax charge 3 {7.1} (1.0}
Profit/iloss) for the period 8.3 21.9)
Profit/(loss) for the period attributable to:
Equity Polders of the Parert Company 8.2 {21.4)
Nor-controlling ‘nterest 24 0.1 -
8.3 (21.4)
Earnings per share 3
Attributable ro equity hoigers of the Parent Compary:
- basic 18.3p 46.21p
- diluted 18.3p {46.2ip

Pay 0 6l
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

FORTHE 92 WEEKS ENDFD 3% DECEMBER 2020

31 December CLAPLEy
2021 Ea
- wotes _ _EM ™
Profit/(loss} For the period 8.3 (21.4}
Other comprehensive income:
ftems that may be subsequently reclassified into income: ‘
Foreign currency transtation differences — foreign cperations 23 {(1.4) 2.0
Reductior in nor-controllirg interests 24 (0.3) -
Tulal cumprehensive Income for the period, net ot tax 6.6 (23.4)
Total comprehensive income For the period attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company 6.6 (23.4)
Non-contiolling interest 24 - -
6.6 123.4)

Face_»3
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated balance sheet

ASAT 30 OFCEMBER 200

31 December Jatnaty
2021 3y
L B her £m £
Non-current assets
Property, plant ang equiprrent 10 4.2 5.1
Right-of-use assets 17 15.% 213
Coodwill 12 128.9 1251
Otherintargible assets 13 85.3 96.2
Finarcial assets 14 1.7 *.0
Deferred tax assets 2" 8.3 103
Trade and other recewables 15 0.9 33
245.2 266.9
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 15 605.5 563.9
Tax recevable 0.9 23
Cash and cash equvalerts "6 90.9 179
697.3 c84.6
Total assets 942.5 8515
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowirgs 18 0.1 0.1
Lease liahilities 11 5.1 92
Trade and other payables 17 568.7 538.0
Tax payable 0.7 0.5
Provisions 20 8.3 72
582.9 575.0
Net current assets 114.4 ‘085
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowirgs 9 101.9 Eat
Lease liabilities ke 11.4 17.
Provisiors 20 38 33
Deferred tax liabilities 21 18.7 18.1
135.8 157.7
Total liabilities 718.7 7327
Net assets 223.8 2°8.8
Equity .
Issued share capital 22 0.5 0.5
Skare premiJm accourt 22 301 301
30.6 306
Otherreserves 23 116.9 8.3
Retained earrirgs 76.2 0.2
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company 223.7 219,
Non-controlling interest 24 0.1 0.3
Total equity 223.8 2188

The consalidated financial statements of Impeilam Group plc iregistered number: 06511961} on pages 58 ko 112 were approved

by the Board on § April 2322,

Tim Briant
Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

FOR THE 52 WHRFKS ENDED 37 DECEMBER 2021

Toral e
AP Al Ar T a0
SomTRILT e Tatan
RPN S
T : < Bl
4 January 2020 30.6 120.2 858 246.8 {0.3) 246.5
Lass for the pericd - - (21.4) (21.4) - 121.4)
Otker comprehersive ircome (noke 23) - (2.0} - (2.0) - {2.0)
Total comprehensive income in period - (2.0} (21.4) (23.4) - (23.4)
Transactions ‘with owners, recorded directly in equity
Purchase and cancellat:on of own shares {note 24) - - 4.3) (4.3) - 4 3}
1 January 2021 30.6 8.3 70.2 279" (0.3) 2°8.8
2 January 2021 30.6 118.3 70.2 219.1 (0.3) 218.8
Profit For the penod - - 8.2 8.2 0.1 8.3
Qther comprehensive incomre from reducirg the
NCI component (note 24) - - {0.3) (0.3) 0.3 -
Other comprehersive income from foreign
currercy translation inote 23) - {1.4) - (1.4) - (1.4)
Total comprehensive income in period - (1.4) 7.9 6.5 0.4 6.9
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity .
Purchase and carcellatior of owr shares {note 22} - - (1.9) (1.9) - {1.9)
31 December 2021 30.6 116.9 76.2 223.7 04 223.8

Page 7"
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Consolidated cash flow statement

FOR "F 52 WEEKS SNDED 37 DECFMBER ZGD)

31 December

Cash Flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisacior of right-of-use assets
Amortisatior of other intangible assets
trrpairrent of goodwill
irpairrent of other intangible assets
Profit on disposal of property. piant and equipment
Firarce Income
Finance expense

iIncrease)/decrease in trade and other receivables
ircrease ip trade ard other payables
Increase in provisions

Cash from operations
Tax paid

Net cash from operating activities

Cash Flows From investing activities
Purchase of property. plant and egquipmenrt
Purchase of intangible assets

Receipt from lease debtors

Increase in other financial assets

irterest received

Net cash From investing activities

Cash fiows From financing activities
Drawdown of short-term borrowings
Repayment of short-term borrowings
Increasefidecrease, in overdraft
Purchase ard cancellation of own shares
Interest paid on lease liabilities

Interest paid on borrowirgs

Repaymert of lease liabilities

Net cash from financing activities

Net decrease in cash ard cash eguivalerts
Opering cash and cash equivalents
Effect of Foreign exchange rate movements

2021 :

Neresy £m ‘7
15.4 (20.4)

i0 2.4 2.3
1" 7.0 9.5
3 15.1 A
‘2 - 16.6
"3 - 5.6
4 (0.2} (@2}
& (0.2} (0.3}
7 4.3 5.7
43.8 36.9

(46.0) 8-

121 50.2

20 2.0 1.4
11.9 972

{(1.7) 027

10.2 94.5

10 (1.5) (1.2,
13 (4.3) 2.3)
26 1.7 3.2
14 - (0.1}
5 0.2 C.3
(3.9) 01}

26 292.0 57
25 (308.7) 213.4)
25 1.0 (36.1)
22 (1.9) 14.3)
{0.6) (0.8)

(3.5) 4.6)

26 (8.9) -5
(30.6)  1103.6)

(24.3) (9.2)

117.9 132.3

26 2.m 5.2
6 90.9 175

Closing cash and cash equivalents

Aage VL
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SR THE 32 WEEKSEMDED 31 DECEMBER 2027

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The financial staterments of Impellam Croup plc and all of its subsidiaries ('the Croup") for the 52 weeks ended 31 December
202 were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors or 5 April 2022 and the balarce sheet was sigred an behalf of the
Board by Tim Briark,

The Graup provides staffing solutions human capital management and outsourced people-related services from offices located
in the UK, Ireland. North America, mainiand Europe, Australia and New Zealard.

Impellarr Croup ple {the Company’) is a public limited company incorporated and registered in Crgland and Wales and domiciled
in the UK under the Companies Act 2006 with a listing on the London Stock Exchange, trading on AlM.

Its registered office is located at:
800 The Boulevard

Capability Greer

Laton

Bedfordshire LU? 3BA

Urited Kingdom

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation and going concern

The consolidated financial statements have been preparad on a going concern basis in accordance with UK adopted
international accounting standards, In coming to their conclusion the Directors have considered the Group's profit and cash flow
plans for the coming period, together with outline projections for 2G23 and 2024, The Group had a net debt positien of £15.0m
lexcluding IFRS 16 lease Lhapilities] and has a further £73.5m avallable to drawdown on the Group's revoiving credit Facility (see
note 271 The amount of borrowing required to fund the Sraup s activities is determimed based on these prajections, together
with expected returns to sharehoiders and plarned capital expenditure. Also considered is the projection of compliance with
the financial covenants implied by these plans. In addition. these figures are tested fcr sensitivity to possible changes to the
economic envirormerts ir which the Croup operates. The Crodp Ras no operatiors in Ukraine or surrounding regiors and
therefare there is no direct impact on the Croup’s trading, however, ary indirect irmpact such 38 a warserinrg i economic
conditions, would resresert such a sensitivity. The impact on CGroup liquidity ard covenarts of each of these sersitivities 1s thep
ronsidered together with the likelihood of each of these occurring either individually of ir compinatior. Given this analysis, the
Directors have determired that shere are ro likely dowrside scenarios which would cause the Group 3 congern.

Following the September 2027 assessiment by the IFRS interpretations Committee of 'Cash recewed via Electroric trarsfer as
settlement For financial assets | the Group has reassessed its policy for the treatment of BACs. BACs receipts are now recognised
or asettlerrert rather than remittarce basis. The prior perod comparatives have not been restated for this change as the
impact or both trade receivabies and cash was not material to the prior period. Further, the change has had roimpact on

prefic recognised in either period, and the change has had no significant impact on key performance indicators or on covenant
compliance. -

The financial statements have been prepared an the historical cost basis except where otherwise identified and as modified
For the revaluation of certain financial assets at fair vaiue through the income statement. The principal accounting policies
adopted are set out below. The financiat staternents are presented in Pound Sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest
£C 1 mdlion (£0.1m) except where otherwise indicated. Foreign operations are included in accordance with note 2(C) below.

Any references to 2021 in these statements refer to the 52-week fimancial period ended 31 December 2C21. Any referencesto
2020 i these statements refer to the 52-week financial period ended 1 January 2021

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial staternents comprse the financial statements of the Group as at 31 December 2021, The financial
statemerts of subsidiaries are prepared “or the same reporting period as the Parent Company. Each compary, includirg the
parent uses locaily applicable generally accepted accounting practice {{GAAP) for the preparation of the.r individual financiai
statements Adjustments are made to bring these into line with the IFRS policies adopted by the Group. as required. Subsidiaries
are corsolidated from the date or which the Croup obtains control using the acguisitior method and cease to be rorsolidated
from the date or wrich the Croup ceases its control. Accounting policies have beer applied consistertly.

[}
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

FORTHESDWIESS ENMEED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Basis of consolidation continued

A component of the Group's business is classified as a discontinued operation «f the operations and cash flows of the component
can be clearly distinguished, operationally and For financial reporting purposes, from the rest of the Group and «f the companent
gither has been or is classified as held for sale, and:

«  represenis a separate major ine of business or geographical area of operations;
+ is part of asingle co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations: or
+ 15 asubsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation the consolidated income statement and consolidated cash Flow
staternent are restated and presented as if the operation has been classified as such from the start of the comparative year

A) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
New standards, amendments and interpretations effective in financial year 2021

« Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Phase 2 — Amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 39, IFRS 7. IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

The gbove amendmert Fas not materially impacted the Croup’s results. The Croup adopted Covia- " 9-related Rert Concessiors —
Amendments (o IFRS *6 in the prior period.

Standards and interpretations o existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group
The following new standards and interpretations to existing standards have been published that are mandatary for the Group s
Future accounting ard effective for the Croup as follows. which are ati effective for periods starting on or after 31 December
2021 oriater periods:

«  Property, Plant ard Equipment: Proceeds before intended Jse - Amerdments Lo IAS "6

+  Refererce tothe Corceptual Framework - Amerdments to IFRS 3

+  Covid-'3-Related Rent Corcessions beyond 30 June 202 - Arrendrrent £o IFRS "6 Leases

»  Defimition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to |AS 8

+  Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from 3 Single Transaction - Amendments to IAS 12
+  (Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract — Amendments to 1AS 37

» Annualimprovernents 10 FRS Standards 20°8-2020

» Classification of Lisbilities as Current or Non-currert — Armendrments to 1AS 1

The apove standards and incerpretations are not expected to materially :impact the Group's results.

B) Significant accounting judgements and estimates

In applying the Croup’s accounting policies, the following judgements and estimates have been made that may have a significant
effect on the amounrts recognised in the financial statements in the current or future years:

i) Judgements

Agent versus princioal

The Croup assesses whether it s acting as agert or prircipal deperding or whether the cliert bas a direct retationship with the
Croup, whetker the Croup has the orimary resporsibility for providirg the servwices ard whether the Croup cortracts directly
with either the worker placed or any other recruitment agency. Account 1s also made of the degree of latitude the Group has in
establishirg the charging rates with all parties.

where the Croup provides a Maraged Service, in which it acts as agert for the cliert iwhich is mainly Managed Services
contracts), the amount of reverue recogrised s limited to tpe maragement fee receivable for that service after makirg
provision For any losses foreseen, volume rebates ard amourts pavable snder gain-share arrangements rather than the Full
ammount irvoiced. Trade receivables and payables related to these sales are recorded at Full :pvoice value.

Ledse end dates

IFRS 16 Leases requires a lessee to determine whether fis reasonably certain: to exercise an optron te extend the term

of the lease’ to exercise an option to purchase the underlying asset at the end of the lease: or not to exercise an option to
termirate tre lease zarly. The Group makes this assessmeant to derwve an expected lease ferm, which may not be the same as

the contractual term of the lease. This has led to & level of jJudgement over the leases In our portfolio on the expected lzase
termiratior date. Dependirg or the circumstarces of the individuat lease, the Croup bas taken either the break date (for those
circurnstances where the Group s reasorably certan to exercise the break). the actual lease end date or an estimate of how long
the Group wiil stay in 3 praperty for those leases which bave been held over at the end of the year.
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Ageing of borrowing

The Croup has signed up to a revolving credit faality whichis cammitted until at least December 2024 (note 27). Borrowings
made under this facility are over a set period, which is usually less than a year, but are available to be renewed as and when
they fall due, The Group assesses if any element of this borrowirg would be due ir less than one year based upor optimal cash
holdirg positions ard planred repaymerts of the debt, in total, over the comirg 12 monrths.

Deferred tax asset recoverability

The carrying ameunt of deferred income tax assets :s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent thatitis no
longer probable that sufficient faxahie profit will be available to allow all or part of the delened income tax asset to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it has

become probable that Future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Software

Capitalised software costs aie amortised from wher the relevant software is ready and available Far use. This requires
Jjudgement over when software has exited the testing phase and is normally determined by how many of the planned users have
been migrated to the rew platform. All costs relating to the research’ phase of the software development cycle, together with
costs not separately identifiable and attnibutable co particular program development, are expensed directly to administrative
expenses In the income statement in the period in which they are incurred. Some software can be treated as "Software as a
service” and so expensed as the service is provided rather than capitalised on spend and amortised over the useful economic |
The Croup assesses the treatmert of such software on a case-by-case basis with refererce to facts ircluding whether the righ
transfer the software to ancther platform or to cortrol the rrethod of operatior is withir the control of the Croup.

~
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Post year end disposal of Corestaff

The Directors have dispesed of Corestaff ta swipejobs Inc. a US private digital staffing company and corsider this to Se a post
balarce sheet evert. Under iFRS 3, there are certain ¢riteria that are required to be met to allow 3 subsidiary to be corsiderad
to be Held For Sale The Directors have considered the criteria in IFRS 5 ard have noted that whiist some of these had been met
at the year erd, the sale of Corestaff was not determined to be highly probable unti after the penod end date. As such, the
Directors have cansidered that the transaction did not meet the criteria of Held For Sale 1n the Financial peried.

ii} Estimates

imparment of goodwill and other intangible assets

The Croup determines whether goodwill and otber intargible assets are permanertly impaired on an arngal basis or otherwise
wher changes in events or situatiors irdicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. This requires ar estimatior of
the recoverable amount of the cash-geperating anit to which the assets are allocated. Estimating the value-in-use requires tre
Group to make an estimate of the future cash Flows from the cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash Flows. More details of the carmying value and impairment review, inciuding
senrsitivities, are given ip notes "2 ard 13.

iegel provision

The CGroup measures and recognises provisions related to pending Litigation or other cutstanding claims subject to negotiated
settlement, mediation and arbitration. A significant level of estimation is required to quantify the possible ranges of financial
settlemnent. Due to the inherent uncertainty 1n this evaluation process. actual losses may be different fram the originally
estimated provision {see note Z0).

Lease interest rates

The Croup bas estimated the interest rates implicit in the lease whenr calculating the lease liability and related right-of-use
asset urder IFRS 16 Leases. Unless stipulated clearly wher takirg or the hability, the Group ases an incrermertal borrowing rate
calculatior to determine the relevant rate. Consideration is taker over the term of the lease, the credit risk of the acquirer ard
any specific risks relating to the assets acquired by an individuatl lease.

C) Currencies and Foreign currency transiation

The furctional ard presentatioral currercy of the Compary ard its UK subsidianes is Pound Sterlirg. Foreign aperations
are located mairly in North america, Europe, Adustralia ard New Zealand, which use their local currencies as their
Functional currencies.

Fage 7>
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

FOR THE 52 WEEKS EMDED 31 DECEMBER 8.7

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

C) Currencies and foreign currency translation continued

Or consolidatior, at the reporting date, the assets and liabilities of the Croup's Foreigr operations are translated intc the
presentation currency of the Group at rates ruling on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at
average exchange rates monthly during the reporting period, as this is considered a reasonable approximation to actual
translated rates.

The exchange differences arising from this retranstatien are recognised in the Consoidated Statement of Cther Comprehensive
Income ard accumulated to a foreiqn currercy translation reserve in equity.

Transactions in foreign currencies are imtally recorded in the functional zurrency using the rate of exchange ruling at the date
of the transactior. At each balarce sheet date, monetary assets ard Labilities that are denominated in foreign cdrrencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. All differences are taken to the income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are transiated using the exchange rate
as at the date of the iritial trarsaction. ror-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currercy are translated asirg
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences on monetary items recewable from or payable to a fereign operatior for whieh settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur, therefore Forming part of the net investment in the Foreign eperation and the tax charges ard
credits attributable to the exchange differences on these balances, are dealt with in the statement of comprehensive income
ard accumulated fo a foreigr currercy translation reserve in equity.

D) Property, ptant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment 's stated at historical cost less accumulated deprediation and any impairment ir value. Historical
cost includes expenditure that 1s directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Depreciation s calculated on

a straight-line basis over the estimated useful Ife of the asset as follows:

reehold property: over 50 years
Short leasehold property improvernents: over the term of the lease
Furniture, fixtures and fittings: between three and ter years or to the end of the lease, whicheveris
shorter at the start of the asset’s life
Computer equipment: between two and five years

The resigual vatue and estimated useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted :f appropriate at each balance sheet date.
The carryirg vatue of property, plant and equipmert s reviewed for impairment wher events or charges ir circamstarces
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverabie.

Anitem of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upen disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected

to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the ret disposal proceeds and the carrying valoe of the item) is included in the ircome statemenrt in the period the item
is derecognised.

E) Goodwill
Coodwill acquired in a business combination represents the excess of the consideration paid (at the date of exchange) over the
fFair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acguired on the date of acquisition,

Acquisition-related costs are expensed to the income staternent as incurred.

Coodwill is recognised as an asset ir the consolidated balarce sheet of the Group and is recorded at cost less any accumulated
irpairment losses. The carrying value of goodwill is reviewed for irpairment arnuatly of more frequently if everts or charges ir
circamstances indicate tnat the carrying value may be impaired. Ary impairment charge is recogrised immedistely i the ircome
staterrert and s not subsequently reversed.

For the parpose of impairmert testirg, goodwill acquired in a busiress cormbination is, from the acquisitior date, allocated to
eacn of the Croup s cash-generating units (business segments) that 1s expected to benefit from the comnbination. Each group of
cash-gereratirg Jrits 2o which the goodwill is so allocated represerts the lowest tevel within the Croup at which the goodwill
18 rroritored For ntermal maragement purposes. Impairment is determired by assessirg the recoverable amourt of the cash-
generating unit to wrich the goodwill relates. where the recoverabie amourt of the cask-gererating anitis less than the
carrying amourt, ar imrpairment 0ss is recognised.

Fae T8
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F) Otherintangible assets

Other intangible assets represent the carrying value of brands and client relationships, identified on business combinations, and
of computer software and licences. Carrying value is equal to cost less accamulated amaortisation and impairment or, in the case of
assets acquired through busiress combirations, fair vatue at date of acquisition less accumulated amortisatior ard impairment.,

grand values

Brands are defined as having finite useful lves and the costs are amortised on a straight-fine basis over the estimated useful
lives of each of the assets {ranging between three and twenty years). The expense :s taken to the income statement through the
‘depreciation and amertizsation’ fine within adminstrative expenses.

Client relationships
Client relationships are defined as having finite useful lives and the costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the

estimated useful lives of each of the assets (ten years). The expense is taken to the income statement through che 'depreciation
and amortisation ine within administrative expenses.

Software

Externally acquired computer software and licencas are capitatised at the costs incurred to acquire and bring into use the
specific software. internally generated computer software programs are capitalised to the extent that costs can be separarely
identified and attributed to particular software programs measured reliably, and where the asset developed can be shown to
generate future economic benefits and the Group intends to and has the technical ability and sufficient resources to complete
development. Computer software and licences are defined as having finite useful lives and the costs are amertised on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of each of the assets, considered to be between three and five years. The expense 's
taken to the income statement through the 'depreciation and amortisation’ line within administrative expenseas.

Some software can be treated as "Scftware as a service’ and so expensed as the service s provided rather than capitalised on
spend and amortised over the yseful ecoromic life. The Croup assesses the treatment of such software or a case-by-case basis
with reference to facts including whether the right to trarsfer the software to arother platform or to cortrol the method of
operatior is withir the coptrol of the Croup.

All costs relating to the research’ phase of the software development cycle, together with costs not separately identifiable and
attributable to particular program development are expensed directly zo administrative expenses in the incame statementin
the period in which they are incurred.

impairment

Allirtangible assets are also ~eviewed for impairmenrt wherever there is ar indication that the carryirg armount may be impaired,
or where the asset is not yet avaitable for use. Usefui lives are also examined on an annual basis and adjustments, where
applicable, are made or a prospective basis.

Q) Imptementation costs

Costs directly attributable to the implementation of a contract and which can be separately identified and measured reliably
are capitaiised when income Ffrom that contract is virtually certain and where they relate directly to the speafic contract and are
directly incremertal to the implementation. These costs are ircluded within trade and other receivables or the balarce sheet so
long as the estimated future cash flows from the contract are not less than the capitalised amount. These capitalised costs are
amortised over the life of the contract on a straight-line basis If the contract becomes loss-making, any unamortised costs are
written off immediately.

H) Financial assets :
Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through the income statement’ ‘Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive :ncome’ or as ‘financial assets at amortised ost’ as aporopriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial assets at inital recognition and, where allowed and approoriate, re-evaluates this designation at
each financial peried 2nd. wWhen financial assets are recognised inttially, they are measured at fair value, being the transaction
price plus, in the case of financial assets not at fair value through the income statement, directly attributable transaction costs.

JaLe 77
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

FORTRE 32 wWELKS EMDED 21 DECEMBLR 2074

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
H) Financial assets continued

{nvestments

The Croup's investrments are classified as held at fair value through the income statement. They are further classified as non-
current unless management expects to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet date

These investments relate to the deferred compersatior plan detailed in note 2 (P} below, where the employee’s entitlemert is
bmited to the market vaiuge of the fund. On this basis, the use of fair value through the income stacement s permitted because it
elimirates a measurementinconsistency Caccountirg mismatch’) that would olherwise gtise from measuring assets or liabilities
or recognising the gains or losses on them on a different basis. Subsequent tonitial recognition these investments are held

at fair vaiue; the fair values are based upon bid prices ruling at the balance sheet date, Fair value adjustments are recogmsed
through the income staterment.

N Other non-current financial assets

Other non-curtent financial assets represent security depasits with non-financial institutions that have no fixed date of
repayment and that are not expected o be repaid within the next 12 months. On initial recagnition these assets are held at cost
and subsequertly at armortised cost.

impairment

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset 1s impaired by reference to any known evidence
indicatirg that the Group may rot be able to collect all amourts due in Full.

J) Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables, which have various terms, are ron-interest-bearing and are recognised and carried at fair value and
sdbsequertty measdred at ammortised cost, beirg the original invoice amount tess an allowance for urcotiectible amounts, credit
notes and expected credit iosses.

Supplier Finance Arrargerrents (SFAY are utilised by the Croup. These arrargerrents, orgarised by clierts of the Croup, are
ror-recourse and irrevocable as the trade recewable bas been sold to the relevant bank providirg the SFA. The desigrated
trade receivable is duly derecogrised in accordarce with IFRS 9, with the associated cash payment debited to the Croup’s cash
positior. The utilisation charge for drawing down on the SFA i included ir interest costs and is recogrised from the drawdown
date to the contractual payment term of the relevant trade recewable subject to the arrangement. Any other trade receivables
related to those clients, which Pave not beer utilised For the SFA, remain withie trade receivables ard will be oaid whenr due
under the client payment terms. The cashflows arising from the derecognition of zrade recewables under the SFA arrangements
are treated as movements in trade and other receivables’ ard therefore form part of ‘cash from operations'.

The Croup applies the IFRS G simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses using a lifetime expected credit loss
provision for trade recewables and contract assets. To measure expected credit losses on a coliective basis trade receivables
and cortract assets are grouped based or sirmilar credit risk and ageirg. The contract assets have similar nisk characteristics to
the trade receivables for similar types of contracts. The expected loss provision is based on the Group's expectation of future
credit losses over the current receivables halance. These expectations are based upen known issues affecting specific debtors as
well as general forward-looking infermation on factors affecting the Groug's customers as awhole, as well as an awareness of
the economic cerditiorsir the courtries where the Croup operates. These risk Factors are corsidered both ar initial recogritior
of the recewable and as part of the ongoing assessment. If there has been a significart increase in the credit risk since the initial
recogritior then ar ircreased 10ss provisior is recognised.

Trade and other receivables also include cantract assets which primarily arise either as costs incurred wher implemrentirg a new
contract or where services bave beep provided bat the amount incurred and margin earned has yet to be invoiced to the client
due to timirg of the completion of the performance aphgation and are considered contract assets for disclosures required
Jrder IFRS "5 reverae from contracts with customers.

K) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the consclidated balarce sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand ang short-term deposits witr
an ariginal matunty of three months or less. For the purpose of the consolidated rash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash and shori-term deposits as defined above. BACs and similar electronic cash transfers are recogrised on a
settlement basis. Bank overdrafts are used as a form of short term financing arrangement for the Group and are shown within
trade and other payables on the consolidated balance sheet and disclosed as a financing activity on the consolidated statements
of cash flows.

Page T2
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L) Trade and ather payables
Trade and nther payables are classified as financial liabilities and measured at amortised cost which approximates to the far
value, The balarces are rot irterest-bearing.

M) Taxes
Current tax

Current tax assets ana liabilities For the current and anor periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid [o tne taxation authorities. The tax rates and the tax laws used o compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substartively enacted by the balance sheet date,

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is orovided, using the liability method, on temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets ard liabilities and their carrying amounts For fimancial reporting purposes, Defarred :ncome tax liabiities are
reccgnised for ail taxable tamperary sifferences, except:

+ where the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction
that 1s not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

+ inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investmenis in subsidiaries, where the uming of the reversal
of the temperary differences can be contralled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
Foreseeable futare,

Deferred income tax assets are recagnised on an undiscounted basis For all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax 'osses, to the extent that it s probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible remporary differences and the carry-Forward of unused tax credits and unused fax losses can be ubilised except:

«  where the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temperary difference arises fraom the initiai recognition of
an asset or liability .0 a transaction that is not a business combinatien and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
acceunting profit nor taxable profit or foss; and

» nrespect of deductible temporary diffarences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
recegnised only to the extent that it is probabie that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be avallable against which the temporary differences can be utiised.

Deferred income tax assets and Liacilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset s realisad or the liability 1s settied, basaed on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted

at the balance sheet date. Income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised 10 eguity and rotin the
income statement. Deferrad tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legaily enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current zax liabilities and the deferred taxes ralate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority,

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised on unremitted earnings from subsidiaries where the Group can control the biming of
the reversal and the temporary differance 1s not expacted to “everse in the foreseeable future.

Sales taxes
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax except:

« where the sales tax :ncurred on a purchase of goods or servicas or assets is not recoverable from the taxation authority
i which case the sales tax s recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as
applicable; and

+ recevables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable From. or payable to, the taxabion authority is included as part of recewatles or payables
in the balance sheet.

N) Provisions
Provisions, sgch 3s chose over property or orgeoirg iegal cases, are ecogrised wher the Croup has a presert legal or corstractive

obligation as a resuit of nast events: 1t .s more bkely than not that an cutflow of resources will be requirad to sectle the obiigation
ard the amourt has been reliably estimated.

If the effect of the bime value of manrey 1s matenal, provisions are determined by discounting the expacted future cash flows at
a pre-tax rate that reflects current marker assessments of the fime value of money When discounting 1s used the .ncrease inthe
provision due to the passage of time is recogrised as an interest expense 'n the income statement.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

SURTHE 52 WEIEKS eMNDED 31 DECEMRER 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

N) Provisions continued

As part of the normal course of busiress the Group is exposed to various claims. Provisions are made For amounts that satisfy
the recognition critenia in 1AS 37 and accordirgly are rot recognised when the likelihood of any claim beirg settled and the
associated settlerrent armount cannot be estimated.

0) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilibies are classified on inibial recognition as either financial liabilities at Fair value through the income statement’ or
‘at amortised cost All Croup harrawirgs bave iritially been recognised as ‘at amortised cosl’ and 1easured at fair value

of the corsideration received less directly attributable issue costs.

Afteriritiat recognition, interest-bearing borrowirgs are subsequently measured at amortised cost. This cost s tamputed

as the amount initiaily recognised minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest rate method of any differance between the initially recognised amount and the matunity amount. Amortised cost

is calculated by faking irto account any 1ssue costs, and any discount or premium or settlement.

Gairs and lasses are recognised ir the income statement when the liabilities are derecogrised as well as through tre
amortisation process.

A financial liatility s derecognised when the onligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled ar expires.

P} Employee benefits

Short-term benefits — bonus arrangements

The Croup operates a rumrber of annual ponus arrargements For Directors and employees. The cost of these arrangemerts is
recogrised in the income statemert when the entity has an obligatior to make such payrrents as a resuit of the achievement of
Board-approved performarce targets and wrer a reliable estimate of tris obligatior car be made.

Defined contribution pension obligations

The Groud grovides pension arrangements for 1ts UK-based Directors and employees through defired contribution schemes
admrinistered by third party providers. The Croup has no further payment obligations once the contributiors tave Seen made.
Contribution costs are expensed to the income statement as they become due.

Other post-employment obligations

In the US the Group aperares a deferrad compensation plar for certain key employees, The plan allows the employee to defer
receipt of a portion of their emolumerts together with, In some cases, a contribution from the Croup. The deferred arrounts
plus the Group contribution are paid into an external trust fund. Employees’ entitlement is imitad to tne market value of

the fund: therefore, both the investmeant and the Hability to the employee ara marked to market on an annual Basis, with
rnovements passing through the admunistrative expenses Line (salaries and wages) in the income statement

Q) Leases
All leases are accounted for by recognising a right-of-use asset and a iease liability except for leases of low-value assets and
leases with an expected fullterm of 12 months or less.

Lease labilities are measared at the present vaiue of the urpaid conkractual paymerts over the recognised lease term), with
the discount rate determired by ~efererce to the rate ‘rberart in the lease urless (as Is bypically tre casel this is rot reacily
determinable, in which case the Croup’s incremental borrowirg rake on commencement of the lease 's used.

Cninizial recogrition, the carrying vatue of the lease lizbility also includes amounts expected to be payable under any residual
value guarantee; the exercise price of apy purchase option granted in favour of the Group If it is reasonably certain o exarcise
that option: 2nd any ceralties payable For terminating the lease if the term of the lease has been estimated on the basis of the
termination option oeing exercsed

Right-of-use assets are ipitaily measured at the amourt of tre fease liability, reduced for ary lease incentives receved, ard
increased for lease paymrents made at or before commercement of the lease ard initial direct costs incarred. Sybsequent £2
initial meascremert, lease fiabilities ircrease as 3 result of irterest charged at a corstant rate or the batance cutstarding and
are reduced for legse paymerts made. Right-of-use assets are amartised or a straight-ine basis over [ne rerrainipg terr of the
lease or over the remaining economic life of the asset If this is judged to be shorter than the lease term.

[
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when the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lease, it adjusts the carrying amount of the [ease liability to reflect the
paymerts to make over the revised term, which are discounted at a revised discount rate thatis implicit in the tease for the
remainder of the lease term. The carrying value of lease liabitities is similarly revised if any varniable elemeant of Future lease
payments dependent on a rate or index is revised. {n both cases. an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying value of the
right-of-use asset, with the revised carrying amourt beirg amornised over the remairing l2ase term.

when the Croup reregotiates the contractual terms of a lease with the lessor, the accounting depends on the nature of the
madification. If the renegetiation results in one or more additional assets being leased for an amount similar to the standalone
price for the additionai rights-of-use obtained, the madification is accounted for as A separate lease in accordance with the
above palicy. In all other cases where the renegetiation increases the scope of the lease (whether that is an extension to the
lease term, or one or mare additioral assets being teased), the lease Hability is remeasured using the discount rate applicable

on the modification date, with the right-of-use asset being adjusted by the same amount. If the renegotiation resultsin a
decrease v the scope of the lease, bath the carrying amount of the lease iabiity and right-of-use asset are reduced by the same
proportion o reflect the partial or full termination of the lease with any difference recognised in profit or loss. The lease liability
is then further adjusted to ensure the carrying amount reflects the amount of the renegotiated payments over the renegotiated
term, with the modified lease payments discounted at the rate applicable on the modification date. The right-of- use asset s
adjusted by the same amount.

Right-of-use assets are reviewed regularly to ensare that the useful ecoromic life of the asselt s shilt appropriate based on the
usage of the asset. Where the asset Fas reduced in value the Croup considers the situation or an asset-by-asset basis and either
treats the reductior as ar acceleratior of depreciation or as ar impairmert under 1AS 36 Impairmert of Assels. An accelerabion
of decreciatior occurs ir those cases where there is no opporturity or intentior ©o vtilise the asset before the end of the lease,
An impairrmant is recognised in those few cases where the current value-in-use of the asset is significantly less than the carrying
armount and there is No irterticr or opportunity krowr of that mitigates this impairmenrt.

For contracts that both convey a right to the Group to use an identified asset and require services to be provided to the Croup
by the lessor, the Croup has elected to account for the entire cortract as a lease.

where tnhe Group acts as a tessar by sub-letting specific leases, each such lease 1s classed either as 3 finance lease, if the sub-let
trarsfers substantiaily all the risks and rewards of the underiying asset to the tessee, or an operatirg tease, if not. The Croup
endeavours to ensure that any sub-lease covers the full rerrairing term of the lease.

Where the Group recognises an asset From a finance lease such asset replaces the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease
ardis recorded as areceivable called net irvestmertir the lease. Subsequent to ‘nitiai measarerrent, the net investrrent in the
lease sncreases as a resdlt of interest charged at a constart rate on the balance outstarding and is reduced for lease payrents
made. These assats are reviewed for recoverability using the simplified arrangements under the expected credit loss model
creating a lifetime expected credit loss provision.

where the Croup recogrises an ocerating lease, lease paymenrts received are treated as income on a straight-ire basis.

R} Revenue

Revenue derived from temporary staffing services s recogrised and accrued by reference to hours worked (representing the
service provided) ir accordance with sybmitted authorised timesheets and pre-agreed charge rates (which include an element
of salary and related costsy which are together used to determine the trarsaction price. This applies both wher thereis a direect
supply as well as when there is supply of a naraged service to the cliert, as the timing of performance obligatiors and the
raisirg of invoices car vary. Timesheets are submitted mainly on a weekly Dasis, with a dimited number beirg subrritted exther
daily or monthly, so any variable aspect of confract assets is limited due to the financial period finishing at the end of a week.

The Croup assesses whether itis actirg as agert or principal deperding or whether the client ras 5 direct relationship with tre
Croup, whetrer the Croup has the primary responsibility for providing the services ard whetber the Croup has control of or
holds the irvertory risk over the worker olaced.

where the Group acts as a principal in the supply. revenue s recogrised as the gross amount due net of apolicable saies taxes, rebates
ard discounts and after elimirating sales made within the Croup. where the Croup provides a service in which it acts as agert for the
client, the amount of revenue recagrised is lirrited to the maragerrert fee receivable for that service after making provision For ary
losses foreseen, volurre rebates ard any other amourts payable rather thar the full amourt irvoiced. Trade receivables ard payabies
related o these sales are recorded at full invoice value. The Group does conduck busiress on both a principal and an agert basis ard
each new contract Is “eviewed to identify the most appropnate basis. Most segments withip the Croup act as principals as they have
the primary relationship with the worker placed and can control when and where they are placed. The examples of the agent-basis
relatiorship are all found i the Clobal Maraged Services segment. These contracts have secondary relationships with the

Fage_+ 1
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

R) Reyenue contirued

workers placed and act mare as irtermediaries for providing services regarding administering and processing rather than sourcing
the individual workers. The contractuat abligations around both the billing of clients ard payments to suppliers in these cases also
highlight the lack of control over the specific service provided and so reinforces the recognition of revenue on an agent basis.

Revenue derived from permanert placemenrts is recognised ard accrued when the employment of the individual commerces
with provisicr made for patertial refunds whick can be payable if the placement is Eerminated withir 3 set period rarging from
14 to 100 days. Revenue recognised fram a permanent placement uses a transaction price typically based on a percentage of
the candidate's remuneration package ard is recognised wher the candidate commences work with the cliert, which s the only
performance obligation and point at which cortrolwas transferred involved in the supply.

For revenue derived from both temporary staffing and permanent placements, payment is due following the completion of

the performance obligatiors ard an agreed period of credic deperdert on the agreed cortract with the cliert. Other revenue,
including fees received for one-off services which are not dependent on hours worked or placed workers. is recognised when all
parties agree the relevant performance obligations have been performed. Interest income receivable on deposits with financial
institdtions is recognised or an accryed basis. Contract liabilities are recegnrised when an invoice has beer raised ir advance of
the service provision discussed above.

S) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense when incurred untess they are qualifying assets under IAS 23 Borrowing costs
whenr they are capitalised,

T) Equity iastruments
The Ordinary shares issued by the Company are classified as equity. They are recorded as the proceeds received net of direct
1558 COSES,

where any Group company pdrchases the Compary's equity irstrument itreasury shares), the consideration paid, ‘rcludirg ary
directly attributable incremental costs (net of taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to the Company's equity shareholders,
Jntil the shares are cancelled or ressued. Upor carcellation, a reserve equal to the nominas value of the shares s transferred
from retaired earpirgs Into a capital redemption reserve.

U) Retained earnings
Retaired earnirgs represents sl other net gains and fosses and transactions with owrers which are rot recogrised elsewhere.

V) Dividend distribution pelicy
Dividend distributions to the Company's shareholders are recognised as an expense i the Group financial statements in the
perod in which the dividends are paid or approved by the Company’s shareholders.

W) Government grants

Government grants are recognised against expenses 'n the period in which they are intended to compensate. Grants are only
recognised wher there 15 reasonable assurance that ary conditiors attached to the grant will be complied with arnd that the
arant will be received.

3. SEGMENT INFCRMATION
The Sroup isreporting under IFRS 8 Operating Segments which reguires that the Group firstly:

« gentifies its Thief Cperating Decision Maker «ZODMY), which has currently been assessed as the Croup Chief Executive
OfFicer whe, alcng with the Leadership Team' reviews the Group's internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources; and secondly

»  byrefererce to the irformationr supplied to the CODM, idectify its operating segmerts ard, from these, identify its
reportable segrrents.

The CODM discusses performance with managerment of the following reportable segments on a revenue and gross prafit
basis only:

+  Ciobal Maraged Services

+ 5TeEM

+  Reqional Specialist Staffing
«  Healthcare

T 37
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There is a charge in segmental aralysis from the prior year as Global Talent Acquisition and Managed WorkFarce Solutions
changed its name to Global Managed Services, and Glebal Specialist Staffing was removed in Favour of STEM to better reflect the
rmanagement structures. The new STEM sector includes most of what was in Global Specialist Staffing, an elernent of Regional
Specialist Staffing as well as some other elements transferring to and from the other segments. The prior year segmentat

reporting has beer restated to incorporate these changes.

The CODM does not review balarce sheet reports in detail by seqgrrert, only ir total for the Group. As such, no information
relatirg to assets and liapilities ar 3 segmental basis has been preserted.

Revenue Gross profit
£m Emr

31 December 2021
Clobal Maraged Services 838.7 79.2
STEM 759.6 81.8
Regional Speciatist Staffing 430.7 62.3
Healthcare 295.3 43.7
inter-segment revenJes (61.9) -
Operating segments 2,262.4 267.0

~CeTT 2 re
Restared a ‘.
1 January 2021
Clobal Maraged Services 745.8 71.4
STEM 772.2 651
Regional Speciatist Staffing 3564 498
Healthcare 231.3 41.8
inter-segment revenues (44.8) -
Operating segments 2,000.9 2281

The CODM also discusses performance with manragement of the Following gecgraphic segmenrts plus an allocation of shared

costs and corgorate costs:

+ UK &Eurcpe
+  North Arrerica
«  Asia Pacific

Adjusted
operating
Revenye Gross profit profit
i £m £m _E':m
31 December 2021
UK & Edrope 1,741.4 172.5 24,5
North America 456.3 76.5 10.1
Asia Pacific 64.7 18.0 2.2
Operating segments 2,262.4 267.0 36.8
SELerLe LTI T =
1 January 2021
UK & Europe ",539.5 140.7 8.1
North America 401.8 70.5 13.4
Asia Pacife 599 169 T8
Operating segments 2,000.9 223 233
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
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3. SEGMENT INFORMATION CONTINUED

Reconciliahion of segment adjusted operating profit to prafit from continuing operations is as Follows:

Segment adjusted operating profit
Corporate costs

3t December

Japeery

Adjiered operating profit
Amortisatior of brand value and customer relationships (note 1 3)
Impairment of goodwill (rote 12}

imparrmert of intangible assets (rote " 3}

Operating profit/(loss) from continuing operations
Firarce income (rote 6)
Finance expense {note 7)
Tax charge {note 8}

Profit/(loss) For the year

2021 e

_ _Em .
36.8 233
(7.5) (5.7]
29.3 18.2
(9.8) (11.0)
- (16.6;
- (5.6}
19.5 (15.0)
0.2 0.3
(4.3) 5.7)
(7.1) (.0
8.3 121.4)

where the Croup places workers betweer operatioral segments. the relevart segments each record the gross reverue for
ptacing the worker on an arm's-length basis. An adjustment has been made to remove the impact of inter-segment revenues

from the Croup results.

The Group has adopted adjusted operating profit as its Alternative Performance Measure to include depreciatior and

amortisation of assets but excluding amortisation of acguired intangibles.

Adjusted operating profitis not defined by IFRS and therefore may not be directly comparable with other companies’ alternative
profit measures, It is pot intended to be a substityte, or supenor to {FRS measurements of profit.

IFRS " 5 requires ertities te disaggregate reverue recogrised from contracts with custormers into relevart categories that depict
how the nature, amount and cash Flows are sffected by sconomic factors. As a result, we consider the following information to

be retevant:
Globat Regional

Managed Specialist inter=segment

Services STEM StafFing Heatthcare ravenues Total
EN cReRITLEr 252 £m £m o £m £m £m £m )
Primary geographic markets
UK & Edrope 650.9 572.9 332.7 246.8 (61.9} 1,741.4
North America 171.6 186.7 98.0 - - 456.3
Australasia 16.2 - ~ 48.5 - 64.7
Total 838.7 759.6 430.7 295.3 {61.9) 2,262.4
Major service lines
Temporary placemerts 828.5 728.4 421.6 286.4 {61.9}) 2,203.0
Permanent placemerts 3.4 20.3 9.1 8.0 - 40.8
Other 6.8 10.9 ~ 0.9 - 18.6
Total 838.7 759.6 430.7 295.3 (61.9) 2,262.4
Timing of revenue recognition
Seryice trarsfer-ed at a pointin tirme 838.7 759.6 430.7 295.3 (61.9) 2,262.4
Total 838.7 759.6 430.7 295.3 (61.9) 2,262.4
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fico Regienal
sdarzged
Sastated Serces 5T —eailindle ol 4l
_ Jarver, 52 _ A T R T o
Primary geographic markets
UK & Europe 597.2 524.7 2846 177.8 (44.8i 1.539.5
North America 142.2 187.5 71.8 - 401.5
Australasia 6.4 - - 53.5 - 59.9
Total 745 R 7122 3564 2313 44 8) 200Uy
Major service lines
Terrporary placements 738.2 6975 350.6 224.8 448} "966.3
Permarent placements 2.7 91 4.9 6.0 - 227
Other 4.9 5.6 0.9 0.5 - i9
Total 7458 72.2 356.4 231.3 {44.8) 2.000.9
Timing of revenue recognition
Service rransferred at 3 point in time 745 8 7id.2 3564 23*3 44 8} 2,000.8
Totat 745.8 712.2 356.4 233 (44.8) 2,0009
The reverue information above is based on location of the Group ertity directly involved in the supply.
4. OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS}
a) Operating profit/{loss) has been arrived at after charging:
31 December SR
2021 AORS
— - : : o o - — . E T
Ceprecation of property, plant and equipment (note *0) 2.4 2.8
Amortisation of right-of-use assets (note * "} 7.0 2.5
Amartisation of intangible assets (rote " 3! 1541 78
Impairment of goodwill (note “ 2} - 6.6
Impairment of intangible assets (note 13} - 3.6
Profit on disposal of fixed assets (0.2) 0.2
Minimum lease payments recognised as an aperating lease expense {(note 11) 0.7 03
Charge For bad and doubtfuyl trade receivables {note ° 3) 3.3 36

Operating profit is stated net of £0 5m (2020 £7 4m) income recewed from governments globally in respect of various support

schemes followirg the Covid-'$ pandemic.

b) Auditor's remuneration

31 December taarLar

2021 N

o - £m Eas

Fees payable fo the Auditor for the audit of the Group’s annual financial statements 0.3 0.2
Fees payable to the Croup's Auditor and their associates for other services:

The sudit of the Company's subsidiaries purseant to legislation 0.9 0.8

Total 1.2 1
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5. EMPLOYMENT COSTS

a) Employees (including Directors) whose costs are included in administrative expenses

Costs of employment

31 December EPELINETEY
2021 0
—— Em_
Wages, salaries ard bonuses 157.5 134.3
Sociat security costs 14.4 12.2
Expenses related to defined contnbution pian 2.9 3.4
Total 174.8 149.9
Menthly average number of employees
31 December ToETLAn
2021 i
_ ] - - ) Numll_ef__ Lr"l:mi
UK & Edrope 1,894 2012
North Amrerica 623 336
Asig Pacific 179 67
Carporate staff {including Directors) 11 g
Total 2,707 2,743

The table above includes a monthiy average of zero staff who were placed on furlough durirg the peniod (202C: 262 staff). The

year end number of staff was 2,300 {20201 2,500).

b) Employees whose costs are included in cost of sales

In addition to the above, the Group employs some of the staff who are supglied to clients and whose costs are part of the

Croup's cost of sales.

Costs of employment

Wwages, salaries ard bonuses
Social secdrity costs
Expenses related to defined contribution plan

Total

31 December PELNID

2021 i

e . Em o
620.3 £57.4

48.8 ac 1

3.0 2.3

672.1 599.8

The costs above are net of government grants in respect to jab support schemes that have been adminustered for staff supplied

to clierts.

Monthly average number of employees

31 December TarLar,

2021 i
!l_ﬂ\ie_r_ nombar
UK & Europe 15,070 27T
F\‘Jorth Arerica 6,694 5,474
Asia Pacific 559 353
Total 22,323 18,544
¢) Information on Directors' remuneration
The total emmoluments for all Directors during the penod were:
3t December Toirar,
2021 o
. Em o -
Ermoluments {nciuding benefits) 2,053 102
Contribution ro defined contribution pension plans g2 91
2,145 1,193

“age_i6
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Totai emoiluments;

Salary and Pension Total fixed Deferred Total

benefits  contributiens costs Bonus bonus Totalvariabie  emoluments

31 December 2021 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 €000 £000
Lord M Asheroft 50 - 50 - - - 50
JRobertson a77 68 545 345 233 578 1,123
T Brignt 314 24 338 270 195 465 803
AE Entwistle 40 = 40 - - - 40
ME Ettling 49 - 49 - - - 49
M Laurie - - - 40
Baroness T Stowell - - - 40
Total 615 428 1,043 2,145
Dererred Total

o ld bores Toba canacle arigllmerty

Ll ae g 220 <, €000 B T
Lord M Asheroft _ _ _ 45
JRobertsan 50 - S0 52
T Briant 55 28 B3 387
AE Entwistle - - - 38
ME £rtling - - - 40
M Laurie - - - 38
Baroness T Stowell - - - 33
Totat 529 9 020 145 28 173 1193

All pension payments relate to defined contribution schemes.

The total emcluments For J Robertson and T 8rant include benefits, both non-cash and cash, to the value of £95,000 (2C20:

£95 000y and £37,0C0:2020 £36 C00) respectively. The £E40 000 (2020 £38 000) paid For the services of AE Entwistle as a Non-
Executive Cirector is paid to Deacon Street Partners Limited. The £49,00C (2020: £40 0C0) paid for the services of ME Ettling as
a Non-Executive Director s paid directly to ME Ettling. No Director has peen in receipt of either a loan from the Group or a long-

term ircertive plan in the current or prior pericds.

6. TOTAL FINANCE INCOME

31 December

toEruany

2021 N
- £m ;‘:7
Bank irterest receivable 0.1 t.2
interest on lease debtors a1 0.
Total Finance income 0.2 0.3
7. TOTAL FINANCE EXPENSE
31 December r.ar
2021 N
. o £m ) -
Revolvirg cradit facilities 3.4 4.4
Lease interest payable 0.6 0.8
Urwird discourt or provisiors 0.2 0.3
Other :nterest expense 0.1 0.2
Total Finance expense 4.3 5.7
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8. TAXATION
a) Tax charge in the income statement
31 December Tiaruary
2021 e
,,,,, o S . Em
Current mcome tax
UK corporaticon tax on results for the period 2.8 0.8
Adjustments in respect of previous periods (0.5) 3.9
2.3 (0.1}
Foreign tax in the perad 1.6 2.1
Adjustmemts in respect of previous penods - (0.8}
Totalcurrentmcome fax 3.9 t 2
DeFerred tax \.harge/fcred\t) 3.2 0.2)
Total tax charge in the income statement 7.1 1.0
The deferred tax credit comprises the Following:
31 December I ETI TR
2021 o
______ e L
Ut|E|sat\on of tax losses brought Forward 2.0 5.4
Recognition of assets rot previously recognised (0.9) -
Origination and reversal of orher temparary differencas (1.5} (7.6)
Change in tax rate used for deferred tax carried Forward 31 1.6
Adjustment in espect oF previous periods 0.5 0.4
Total deferred tax charge/{credat) {note 21) 3.2 024

b} Reconciliation of the total tax charge

The standard rate of Corporation Tax ‘A the UK 15 19%. Accordingly, the Group's result from this period is taxed at an effective
rate of 19.0% (2020: 19.0%) The tax charge for the pericd is £7.1m (2020: £1.Criy) For the Group. A tax reconciliation explaining
differences from the expected statutory rate is summanised below

31 December

2021
% L
Tax charge at UK standard rate 15.0 9.0
Differences in tax rates in other countries 0.9 (1.2)
{Income)/expenses nok taxable/allowable in determining taxable profits 9.6 (22.8)
Losses in period rarried forward bt not recogrised as assels 0.9 t2
Utilisation of losses not previously recogmsed (note 27) . (4.8) -
Change In tax rate used For deferred tax carried forward 20.2 (7.7
Adjustments to deferred tax i raspect of previcus periods 3.5 (1.8)
Adjustrments in rnsDect of prevsous pemods (3.5) 8.4
Effective total tax rate 45.8 4.9

Income not taxable in determining taxable profits is comprised of various adjustments in respect of .tems not treated as taxable
under local tax rules (such as ron-deductible interast and capital costs 1n administrative expenses), plus expanses previously
added back as non-deductible being treated as allowed for tax.

Adjustments in respect of previous pericds (currert and deferred) arise as a result of a reduction in non-tax-deductible expenses
and estimated Uiming differences in the prior year filed tax returns. See note 21 for an expianation of deferred tax balances

Page_3R
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Factors affecting tax charges in future periods

The Finance Act 2021 was substantively enacted on 24 May 2021 and included the increase to the UK corporation tax rate from
19% to 25% effective from 1 April 2023, As such, UK deferred tax balances that are forecast to unwind after 1 April 2023 have
been re-measured and recognised at 25%. The most significant impact has been to the deferred tax liability carried on intangible
assets. Based on the current net book vaiue of intangible assets and the related expected future amortisation charge to 1 Aprit
2023, the deferred tax lisbility has increased by approximately £2.5m.

9, EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to the owners of the Company
by the weighted average rumber of Ordirary shares cutstanding dunrg the period.

Dilcted aarnings per share amounts are calculated on the same basis but after adjusting the derominatar for the affects of
dilutive options. The only diutive effect relates to 19,841 shares owned by The Corporate Services Group Ltd Employee Share
Trust which hold the shares remaining after various historic option plans lapsed. Excluding these shares, the weighted average
number of sharesin 2021 is 45,538,963 {2020: 46,208,380 and the fully dilsted average number of shares 1s 45,558,804
{2020: 46,228 221). The calculations of both basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS} are based upon the following
consolidated income statement data:

31 December Taernal,

2021

. __ o o Lo Em
Profit/{loss) For the peried 8.3 1214)
Imoairment of goodwll - 06
Impairment of other intangible assets (ret of tax) - 45
Acguired intangibles amortisation net of tax) 1.7 8.6
Total adjusted profit for the period 16.0 8.3

EPS - basic calculation
31 December

2021
7 S PE[ICE_ o
Total unadjusted basic earnings per share 18.3
Impairment of goodwiil -
impairment of other intangible assets inet of tax) -
Custemer relationship and brand amortisation (net of tax) 17.0
Adjusted basic earnings per share’ 35.3
| AZConra @2 SgS e spate Jacg at oo tave neen 3 esented ~orde o ooy de SforTal sreerder y sgaetor mate et e G ooy zefoe

~oesmer ol geocdw | ard cTatoime pse s 2rg bR 3NarTeat ot ot me ce gt orst oracdoands

EPS ~diluted calculation

31 December

2021
7 Pence '-_er‘:e
Total unadjusted diluted earnings per share 18.3 (46.2)
irpairment of goodwill - 36.0
Imparrment of other intangible assets (net of tax) - 9.3
Customer relationship and brand amortisation {net of tax) 16.9 85
Adjusted diluted garnings per share’ 35.2 8.2
VoAgd 5 A, $5 AT 27s ~awe Jeen Zreses _ed oo dar woruintarite otde oy se et afche Crnas o e
el KR S0 2 AR 3T ITe T Dhal 2w U™ Ao LI Il B R id
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

FORTHE 5 WEEKS EMDED 31 DECCMBLR 202

10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

= eetold Ahortlessebald 7? o nLEer

propert palislsTil o) B M 2l LmMert araj
Net carrying valu;;4 Jaa';aary 2020 7 0.2 13 34 i 6.6
Cost - 4 January 2020 ' 0.2 2.8 79 6.5 17.4
Additions - 0.2 0.6 0.4 te
Disposals (o3 .0} (1.6} (2.7)
Foreign exchange - o0 - 0.1 0.2
Cost - 1 January 2021 0.2 3.0 75 5.4 A
Accumulated depreciation - 4 January 2020 - 1.5 4.5 48 0.8
Charge for the period - 0.4 1.3 10 2.8
Disposals - (0.1 1.0 ("6 (2.7}
Foreign exchange - (o0 - - (o
Accumulated depreciation — 1 January 2021 - 5 4.8 4.3 0
Net carrying value - 1 January 2021 0.2 ' 2.7 1.1 5.1
Cost — 2 January 2021 0.2 3.0 1.5 5.4 16.1
Additions - 0.2 0.1 1.2 1.5
Disposals - - (0.9} (1.7) (2.6)
Foreign exchangs - - - 0.1 0.1
Cost - 31 December 2021 0.2 3.2 6.7 5.0 15.1
Accumulated depreciation - 2 January 2021 - 19 4.8 4,3 11.0
Charge for the period - 0.5 11 0.8 2.4
Disposals - - (0.9} (1.7) (2.6)
Foreign exchange - - - 0.1 0.1
Accumulated depreciation — 31 December 2021 - 2.4 5.0 3.5 10.9
Net carrying value - 31 December 2021 0.2 0.8 1.7 1.5 4.2

Included In computer equipment are assets with net carrying value of £6.7m 2020: £0.2m) held under a finance lease.
Depreciation of £0.1m (2020: £0.1m) was charged on these assets.

11. LEASES

During the period, *he Group accounted for 125 leased properties (20201 149) under IFRS 16 across the jurisdictions in which

it operates. In some jurisdictions it15 customary for lease contracts to orovide for payments to increase each year by inflation

of at a fixed rate and in others to be reset periodically to market rental rates, whilst in others the periodic rent is Fixed over the
lease term, Some teases have provisions for early termination (see lease end dates judgements 2(B)il The Croup also leased 39
vehicles (20200 125) all of which have a fixed lease fee over the term. The weighted average incremental borrawing rate used to
calculate the lease liability was 2.96% 12020: 2.80%).

Of the 125 property leases accountad for urder IFRS * 5 durirg the period, 12% recogmised Fature uplifts in rent (2020: 10%;.
Should the lease payments on these increase by 5% there could be a resulting increase in the nght-of-use asset of £0.2m

Durirg the period, tbree teases which were syb-let ip their ertirety were assigned to the occupying tenant. As a resJlt, there was
an equal and oppasite reduchion ir both the lease recevable ard the lease liabidity positions of the Group. The ‘ast property the
Croup sub-iet reached the terminatior date during the periad ard corsequentially the Croup has no legse receivable at the erd
of the period.
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Right-of-use assets

Cunlgtr @ ey tal
Net carrying value 3 Ja nuary 2020 26.6 0 276
Cost - 4 January 2020 349 14 36.3
Additions 5.0 - 5.0
Disposals (4.8 {0.2) 14.8)
Forergn exrhange _ - ~
Cost—1 January 2021 35.3 2 36.5
Accumulated depreciation - 4 January 2020 8.3 G4 87
Charge for the period 8.9 0.6 8.5
Disposals (2.8) 0.2 (3.0
Fuelgn exchange _ _ -
Accumulated deprecsat|on—1 January 2021 14.4 0.8 ‘5.2
Net carrylng value -1 January 2021 20.9 0.4 21.3
Cost - 2January 2021 35.3 1.2 36.5
Additions 0.5 - 0.5
Rerreasurement 1.5 - 1.5
Disposals (4.0} (0.5) {4.5)
Fereign exchange {0.2) {0.1) (0.3)
Cost—31 December 2021 3341 0.6 33 7
Accumulated depreciation -2 January 2021 14.4 0.8 15.2
Charge For the perind 6.7 0.3 7.0
Disposals (3.8) (0.5) {4.3)
Forergn exchange {0.1) - (0.1)
Accumulated deprecpatwn 31 December 2021 17.2 - 06 17.8
Net carrying value — 31 December 2021 15.9 - 15.9
Lease receivables
[EESEETAS
[ISII=S el b3
Net carrymg value 3 January 2020 7. - 7.3
Additions 1.4 - 1.4
Interest 0 - 0
Receipts 3.2). - 13.2}
Disposals (1.4) - (1.4)
Fore|gn exchange oo - g
Net carrylng value—1 January 2021 4.3 - 43
Addltlons - - -
Irterest 0.1 - 0.1
Receipts {1.7) - (1.7)
Disposals {2.5) ~ {2.5)
Foreign exchange {0.2) - (0 2)

Net carrying value — 31 December 2021 - - -

S3ge !
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11. LEASES CONTINUED

tements continued

3t December Jariarg
2021 EOha
L . £m I
Dueir year 1 - 2.5
Duein year 2 - 3
Due i year 3 - 0.7
Undscourted lease payments - 45
Unearrad finance (hoome - (0.2)
Total lease receivables (note 15) - 4.3
31 December s
2021 8,
£&m
Current - 2.4
Non-current - 1.8
Total lease receivables {note 15) - 43
Lease liabilities
_zrd :rd
cuilc ~rs e T
£~'777 = “'\“
Net carrying value - 3 January 2620 328 1.0 33.8
Additions 6. 5.°
Interest 0.8 - 0.8
Paymerts (0.8 (0.7 (11.5]
Disposats 3.0 - 3.0}
Foreign exchange 2 - 0.3
Net carrying value — 1 January 2021 262 0.3 26.5
Additions 0.4 - 0.4
Remeasuremenrt 1.3 - 1.3
Interest 0.6 - 0.6
Payments {9.0) (0.2} (9.2)
Disposals (2.7) - (2.7)
Foreign exchange (0.4} - {0.4}
Net carrying value - 31 December 2021 16.4 0.1 16.5
31 December are.r
2021 i
o o L - £m -
Currert 51 3.2
Non-current 11.4 17.3
Total lease liabilities (notes 27 and 28) 16.5 26.5
31 December aruar,
2021 AL
o £m <
Duein year 1 5.5 3.9
Dueinyear2tos 9.2 14.C
Due after year 3 3.0 4.5
Urndiscourted lease payments 17.7 284
Unearned finance income (1.2) .9
Total lease payables {notes 27 and 28) 16.5 26.5

Haye 97
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Included in operating lease expenditure for 2021 are expenses relating to leases which have not been recognised under IFRS 16.
The value of expense recognised for low-value [eases for the period 1s £0.7m (2020: £0.3m) and Far short-term {eases is £0.1m

(2020: £ml}.

12. GOODWILL

o MEsirer b
' Opening balance at 3 January 2(;20 N 158.2 $10.2) 148.0
Impairment ir the pericd - (16.6} (16.6)
Foreign exchange and other mavements (2.3} - (2.3
Closing balance at 1 January 2021 155.9 (26.8) 129.1
Foreign exchange and other mavements {0.2) - (0.2)
Closing balance at 31 December 2021 155.7 (26.8) 128.9

Goodwill acquired through business combirations has beer aliccated For impairmenrt testirg purposes to nire principal cash-
generatinrg unit ('CCU"Y groups as Follows:

»  Education

= Engireerirg

+  Healthcare

+ Irformatior technoiogy
+ Onlire platform

+ Sgerceard clirical

+ UK General staffing

+ USStaffing

« venrdor procuremert

Foreign exchange and other movements te goodwill arises from the retransiation of goodwill balances held in fareign currencies
relating to the acquisition of Bartech Heldings Corporation, in the US Staffing CGU.

No impairments were recognised over goodwill in the current penod (2020: £16.6m across the iInformation techrology
Engineering and Online platform CGUs). There was also no impairment against other intangible assets (2020: £5.6m against the
brard value of the Education CGUY.

The carnying amount of goodwill and other indefinite assets allccated to cash-generating umits at the period end is:

31 Becember

2021
. e e B T
Healtbcare 7.9 7.9
Irformation techrology 11.4 1.4
Scierce and clinical 8.5 8.5
UK Caneral staffing 28.6 8.6
US Staffing 72,5 727
Total 128.9 12971

Ary CCU not shown above has ro goodwill in the currert or prior penod. The Croup tests this ard other assets (note “3) for
impairment on ae arrual basis, and otherwise whep charges in events or situations .ndicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable. If such 3 test indicates that the carrying armourtis too high, 3 recoverable amourt is established for the asset, wrich
is the higher of the fair value less costs to seil and the value in use,

The recoverable amourt for each of the above CCUs has beer determired based upon a vatue-in-use calcalation. Value-ir-use s
established by discounting anticipated future cash flows attributable to each CGU that goodwiilhas been allocated to. Pre-tax
cash flow projections are based on financial budgets approved by the Board covering the next Finarcial period and high level
rmanagement Forecasts far the following Four years with a perpetaity Factor applied to the tast forecast year.
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12. GOODWILL CONTINUED

Key assumptions

The key assumptions are based upon a combination of market data tempered by our own historical experience. The calculation
of value-ir-use 1s mast sensitive to the Followirg assumptions:

«  Gross profit - this takes the average gross profit achieved in the two years preceding the start of the five plan years and
adjusts, as appropriate For anticipated changes to business mix and market conditions over the five plan years and range
from 3.5% to 1C0.0% depending on the CCU;

« Discount rate — this reflects the Directors estimate of an appropriate market rate of return taking inkn account the relevant
risk factors: this has been adjusted to reflect current and expected future economic conditions as well as to account for
geographic influences (see table below for rates);

- Crowth rate used to extrapolate beyond the plan year and terminal values are based upon the long-term average growth
rate of the UK and US econorries ard range from 1.0% to 9.0% depending on how long it is anticipated the CCU will take Lo
recover from the impacts of Covid-15. Management recognises that the staffing and support services market growth rates
Fluctuate both above and below this rate. and

+  Terminalvalue growth rate - the cash flow prejections include growth rates that are not expected to exceed the ong-term
growth rates of the UK and US econgmies, currently 2.0% (2020: 2.0%).

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

The impairmert calculation 's sersitive ta charges ir the above assumptions. Sensitivity analyses were performed over each
subsidiary COU to model the effects of adverse changes in the forecasts and growth assumptions. The table below shows

how the results of the impairment tests For each significant CGU (being those subject to imparrment, having limited excess of
recoverable amounc over carrying amount, of represertirg a substartial amourt of the total goodwill} would be impacted (with
all otber varables peing equal! by ar increase In discount rate of 0.5% or 3 decrease of 0.5% in the long-term growth rate. The
impact of all of the scenarios togetner has alsc been ¢onsiderad and is disclosed in the final coiumn,

_urbi ed
BER el bk
) ) _ Ao it cate o i e i 7;!7
Education 1.6 13.9 0.2 .2 L3 -
Healthcare 9.2 "3.9 (.5 (7.4) (8.4 -
Information technology 24.4 ‘3.9 i3.9) (6.9} 0.2 -
Science and clinical 5.8 3.9 (2.5) (3.7} (5 35) -
UK Gereral staffing 137 3.9 (6.2) (11.9) 7n (4.0
US Staffing 750 16.5 (4.2} (14.8) (20.5) -

The post-tax discount rate used For management's best estimates in 2021 was between 11.3% and 12.0%. Management
cortirues to monitor closely the performarce of all CCUs ard corsiders the impact of any changes to the key assumptions.

ir conclusior, managemenrt believes that, other thar shawn above, there is no reasorable passible charge in the underlyirg
assumptions that would resultin a Further significant impairment charge in the consclidated income statement.

Sage_34
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13. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Jert
Software drard Lalues re<sticrehips Tt
Net carrying value 3January 2020 17.4 77.8 22 6 7.8
Cost - 4January 2020 347 84.6 54? 174.0
Additions 2.3 - - 2.3
Disposals (.3 - - i1.3)
Irmpairment - (5.6 - (5.6
Foreign exchange (0.2} (0.5) (0.5) 1.2}
Cost—1 January 2021 335 78.5 54.2 168.2
Accumulated amortisation — 4 January 2020 17.3 6.8 327 56.2
Charge for the period 6.6 6.1 4.9 75
Disposals (1.3 - - Y
Foreign exchange - {0.2} 0.3 0.5
Accumulated amortrsatlon— 1 January 2021 22.6 27 36.7 72.0
Net carrying value—1 January 2021 "9 65.8 LR 96.2
Cost -2 Janyary 2021 35.5 78.5 54.2 168.2
Adcitions 4.3 - - 4.3
Disposals (3.6) - - (3.6)
Fore|gﬁ excharge (0.1) - - (0.1)
Cost - 31 DeCember 2021 36.1 78.5 54.2 168 8
AccumuEated amaortisation — 2 January 2021 22.6 12.7 36.7 72.0
Charge for the period 5.3 5.9 3.9 15.1
Disposals {3.6) - - (2.6)
Formgn exchange {0.1) 01 - -
Accumulated amortlsatlon 3 December 2021 24.2 18.7 40.6 83.5
Net carrying value - 31 December 2021 11.9 59.8 13.6 85.3

Incloded e software additions for the 52 weeks ended 3° Decerrber 2021 are interrally gererated software development costs
of £0.5m (2020: £0.7m) which have besn capitalised at cost. These costs have beén assessed as having a finite life of between
three and five years {2020: three and five years) and are amortised. from the date the software is available for use. on
astraight-line basis cver this period.

Client relationships have resulted from business combinatiens and have been assessed as having a finite {ife of ten years. They
are amortised, from the date of acquisitior, on a strarght-line basis over this period. Brand valdes have resulted from cusiness
combinations and have heen assessed as having a finite life of betwean three and 20 years depending an the prominence of the
brard. They are amortised an a straight-line basis over this period.

A sammary of the amourts ir brand values and client retatiorships, together with the remaining amortisatior period is below:

SEIT1EIT G Thert
Rra~d cees  areeti At GFE0 o Bt S T EMIRRE Ao
3 LED B RO
Educatior 1.2 3.5 - -
Heslthcare 196 16.9 3 3.6
InfFormatior techrology 10 "6.9 4.5 2.8
Uk General staffing 3.8 ‘69 - -
US Staffing "33 16.9 6.0 aC
YVenrdor procuyremeant 5.7 ‘6.9 - -

8l
"y
2
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13. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS CONTINUED

These 3ssets are all reviewed for impairment when there are changes in events or situations that indicate the carrying value
may nok be recoverable. Details of the sersitivities gver such impairment reviews are included ir note 12. No impairment was
recognised in the current period (202C: £5.6m against the Education brand value).

14. FINANCIAL ASSETS

31 December I3 LAY
2021 Su
£m !
Financial assets - non-current

Marketable iInvestments designated at market value through the ircome statement 1.5 12

Other Financial assets {loans and receivables) - non-current
Deposits with non-financial institutions 0.2 0.4
Total 1.7 1.6

Firarcial assets inchuede:

+  The marketable investrrents at rmarket value through the iIncome statement represent irvestments Feld in trast or behalf
of certain US employees (see note 2(P1). The plan allows certair key emplovess to defer receipt of & portion of their
compensatior. These deferred compensation liabilities are funded by makirg cortributions inte a trust. The employees’
ertitlements are limited to the rrarket value of the furd. Investrrents in the trust comprise shares in US mutual furds. At
31 December 2021 these investments have been adjusted to the market value of £1 5m (2020: £1.2m). This movernent 's
matched by an equivalent mevement in other payables as disclosed in note 17: and

«  Deposits with non-financial institutions represent amounts held by suppliers. clients and landlords as security for provision of
Facilities and services.

Information on fair values ard credit risks is givenin notes 27 and 28,
15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Current assets
31 December

2021
. . e fm =
Trade receivables (pote 2(J)} 539.2 436.5
Other receivables 3.6 5.7
Leagse debtor {rote 1 1) - 2.4
Frepayments 5.0 55
Cortract assets 51.7 54.4
Total 605.5 5639

+  Trade receivables also include gross receivables of £268.5m (2020 £274.7m) under master-vendor agency arrangements «n
the UK and US where the Croup only recogrises the management fee element of the receivable as revenue —note 2(R).

+  Contract assets comprise accrued income and costs incurred in the implementation of new contracts and

+  The above trade and other receivables fall into the ‘loans and receivables” category of the Croup's financral assets.

Non-current assets

31 December Tlariany

202t PO

] &m

Cortract assets 0.9 14
Lease debtor (note * 7} - e
Total 0.9 3.3

Irformation or fair values ard credit risks is giver 1 notes 27 and 28,

Aszge 96
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Contract balances

TOrEraar ssies

_31“E->ecember JerLar,;
2021 o2t

- £m < )
Af the begirning of the period 55.8 52.2
Net amounts recognised as revenae int the period 1.9 3.6
At the end of the period 57.7 55.8

Ceortract assets are included within 'trade and other receivables on the face of the statement of financial position. Centract
assets compnse accrued income and costs incurred ir the implementation of new contracts {rote 2{J}).

The Group applies the IFRS ¢ simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses using a lifetime expected credit loss
provision For trade recaivables and contract assets. To measure expected credit losses on 2 collective basis trade recevables and
contract assets are grouped based on similar credit nsk ard ageing, The contract assets have similar risk characteristics to the
trade receivables for sirmilar types of cortracts.

The expected loss provision 1s based on the Group's expectation of future credit losses over the current recevables balance
based on an analysis of the aging and sector of the receivable. These expectations are based upon known 1ssues effecting
specific debtors as well as a combination of historic and general forward-looking information on facters affecting the Croup's
customers as a whole as well 35 3n awareness of the ecanamic corditions in the courtries where the Croup operates. These risk
Factors are considered both or Initial recogrition of the receivanle ard as part of the ongoing assessmert.

The ufetime expected loss provision for trade receivables s as follows:

.

Cdapiar, 230 Eh

0.3% 4.5% 7.3% 5.3% 1.0%

Expected loss rate (%)
Cross carrying amaount 428.5 51.0 6. 6" 5007
Loss provision 1.4 2.3 C.4 1.1 5.2
<60 days 60-120 days »120 days

Current past due past due past due Total
K iei_emr:er Nt B ) o £m f‘"l _ £m £m i £m
Expectedicssrate (%) 0.4% 1.9% 6.3% 54.2% 1.2%
Cross carrying amount 449.6 84.1 6.4 5.9 546.0
Loss provision 1.6 1.6 0.4 3.2 6.8

Allnor-current receivables are due within three years of the end of the period.

Moverertsin the provision forimmpairment of trade receivables were as follows:

2021
o . e
Balance at beginring of period 5.2 2.2
Charged/(released) for the seriod 33 36
Utilised for the period (1.7) {0.5)
Foreign exchange - {OR)]
Balance at end of period 6.8 5.2

Fage_37
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15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES CONTINUED

The creation and release of provisions for impaired trade receivables have been included in ‘administrative expenses’ in the

Income skatement. Amounts are generally written off to the provision account where there is no expectation of recovery.

Included in the Croun's receivables are the followirg balances denominated in foreign carrency:

31 December

2021
B o o £m
Trade receivables {note 2(4) 313.7
Oller receivables 2.6 :
Lease debtors - 4.1
Prepayments 2.5 23
Accrued incorre 12.5 ‘5.8
Total 331.3 339.0
16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comarise the Following:
31 December L)
2021 g
£m ) =l
Cash 50.9 179

Included withir cash is £8.5m (2020: £2.5m) of cash whicr s restricted for use on specific clients.

Infarmmation or fair values, credit risks and interest rates s given in rotes 27 and 28.

17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Current liabilities

Bark overdraft
Trade payables
Other tax and socal security costs
Accruals

Cortract liabilities

Other payables

31 December
2021
£€m

3.9
376.7
63.9
77.3
0.5
46.4

Total

568.7

29
375.2
86.5
547
0.6
387

558.0

Trade payables include £332.5m (202C: £341.0m) of amowunts payable under master-vendor arrangements in the UK and US,
which are related to certain of the trade receivables — note * 3. Arrangements are such that the payatble amountis not due by the

Group Jntil a few'days after receipt of the recevable,

Other tax and social security costs include £9.1m (2020 £48.0rm) of taxes deferred under government schemes across

various Jurisdictions.

Includged ir other payables and accruals are:

a. £1.4m (2C2C £1 2miinrespect of lisbilities eccruing to certain US employees inrespect of a deferred compensation plan.

These amounts are payable to members of the plan onretirement (note 14);

b, £4.6m (2C2C: £3.5m) for contributions due to be made to defired contribution pensian schemes on behalf of certain

employees of the Croup,
£3.6m (2C2C: £4.2m) for customer unclaimed payments, and
d. Remairirg amounts within other payatles are largely payroll-related creditors.

o

£
<

W
[¥4]
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17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES CONTINUED
Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:

e. Trade payabies are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled within one month from the end of the month of invoice;

f. Othertax and sccial security costs are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled within one to three maonths; and

g. Other payables and accruals are nor-irterest-bearing and have ar average term of three months,

Informaticn on fair values ard credit risks is giver ir notes 27 and 28,

18. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Finarcial habilities measured at amortised cost:
Revolving credit barrowirgs - secured
Hire purchase - secured

Total

31 December

2021

£m =
01 0.1
01 0.1

tnformatior or Fair values, risks and terms are given ir notes 26, 27 and 28,

19. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

31 December

2021

o £m
Finarcial iabilities measured at arrortised cost:
Revolving credit borrowirgs - secared 101.9 1189
Hire purchase — secared - Q0.*
Total 101.9 9.0
Informatiar on fair values, risks ard terms are gven in notes 26, 27 and 28.
20. PROVISIONS

Srepeit ~[ ot Tl
Cuwent—”]gwary 2051 - 1.4 0.2 3.6 7
Nor-current -t Januaiy 2027 33 - - 3.3
At 1 January 2021 47 0.2 5.6 Qs
Additiors in the period 0.3 - 2.4 2.7
Remeasurement in the period 0.1 - - 0.1
Utilised dufirg the period (0.9) - {0.5) {1.4)
Unwird of discount 0.2 - - 0.2
Foreign exchange {0.1) - 0.1 -
At 31 December 2021 4.3 0.2 7.6 121
Currert = 3° December 202° 1.1 0.2 7.0 8.3
Non-casrent - 3° Decermber 2027 3.2 - 0.6 3.8
Total 4.3 0.2 7.6 12.1
Property

Property provisions relate to the full expected cost of dilapidat:ons and have been discounted to a present value using the

relevart tease interest -ate.

Paga_
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20. PROVISIONS CONTINUED

Waorkers' compensation

The US operations mamtain, or maintained. insurance policies with significant excesses, below which claims are borne by the
operations. Provisior is made for estimated costs of claims or losses arisirg from past events.

The level of provisior made is based upon irdependent actuarial estimates. These estimates take into accourt the ultimate
cost, less amoarts paid to date, ir respect of accidents occurring between the inception of the policy and the end of the current
peried, the period covered by these self-insurance arrangements. An allowance is rrade for claims incurred but net reported i
lire with standard actuanal practice.

Claims are expected to be settled within one year,

Legal & contractual

The Group holds a provision for expected legal and contractual costs that are probable to cause an outflow of resources

over an extended period. Mapagement exercises judgements to determine the amount of this provision on a case-by-case
basis Provision 1s made for known 1ssues based on past experience of similar items and other known fFactors. Fach provision is
considered separately, and the amount provided reflects the best estimate of the most likely amount. being the single most
likely amount ir 3 rarge of possible outcomes. Owing to the inherent urcertainty within many iegal proceedings, the ammount
and timings of such outflow could differ significantly from the amount and ageing provided.

with reference to the prejudicial exemption in 1AS 37, the Group will not disclose any further information about the assumptions
for the provision, including any detals about current and the expected number of lawsuits and settled claims. The disclosure of
such information 1s believed to be detrimental to the Croup in connection with the ongeing confidential regohiations and could
inFlict financial losses on the Group and its shareholders.

Contingent liabilities

The Group s aware of a contingent liabiliby in relation to late filing penalties within the US which may become due. To date no
penalties have been raised for any company in the US due to this issue and all relevant documents have been filed. This has not
been accounted for as a provision as there are significant uncertainties cver the financial impact as well as the likelihood and
timing of any potential outflow.

21. DEFERRED TAXATION

31 December LANCET
2021 RORE
. _ kw7
Non-curfent deferred tax assets:
Total deferred tax asset - UK 1.9 1.9
Total deferred tax asset — overseas 6.4 B4
Total deferred tax asset 8.3 0.3
31 December CooErLany
2021 oot
- o e B £m Eia
Deferred tax labilities:
Non-current deferred tax liabilibies 18.7 181
Total deferred tax liabilities 18.7 181
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Deferred tax liabilities primarily relate to fair value adjustments on acquisitions.

Fengerty 3w oalos 1T “rral

plart and [NENALsIE] aererrad

gl priert 45203 FOVINIGeS TrealeT

At 4 January 2020 1.4 {20.0) 3 76 (7.9
Recognised inircome G 2.0 3.4 (5.4) 0.2
Foreign exchange - (0.2 0.2) 0.3 (0"
AL 1 January 2021 1.5 (8.} 6.3 2.5 (7.8)
Deferred tax assets - 1 January 2021 1.5 - 6.3 2.5 10.3
Deferred tax liabilities — 1 January 2021 - (18.1) - - 8.
t5 18.71) 6.3 2.5 7.8}

At 2 January 2021 1.5 {18.1) 6.3 2.5 {7.8)
Recognised inircome {0.3) {0.7) {0.6) (1.6) (3.2)
Foreign exchange - 0.1 - 0.5 0.6
At 31 December 2021 1.2 (18.7) 5.7 1.4 (10.4)
Deferred tax assets - 31 December 2021 1.2 - 5.7 1.4 8.3
Deferred tax liabilities - 31 December 2021 - (18.7) - - (18.7)
1.2 (18.7 5.7 1.4 {10.4)

The Croup has gross deductible temparary differences relating to provisions and deferrad capital allowances of £23.8m
120200 £33.0m;. Deferred tax assets of £8.4m (2020 £7.8m) have been recegnised in respect of these temporary differences.
teaving £7.2m (2020 £4.1m) as unrecognised differences. They have no expiry date.

The Group has gross tax losses that arose inthe UK of £32 8m (2020: £33.5m) and tax losses that arose outside the UK (mostly
in the US) of £9.0m (20620 £12.5m) that are avallable for offset against Futire taxable prefits of the right type arising in the
companies in which the insses arose. The reduction in tax losses in the US at the end of the current period comparsd to the
previous period is due to the utilisation of these losses against taxable profits in the current peried. There is no expiry date on
the LK iosses, but the US (osses expire between 2028 and 2033, The Group has performed sensitivity analysis on the utilisat:on
of US losses looking at forecasts of profitability and these show that the tax losses will be Fully utilised by tne end of 2022 well
in advance of therr expiry. Ali losses are subject to legislation restricting the right to offset them Deferred tax assets of £1.4m
(2020C: £2.5m) have been recognised as they relate to companies that are trading profitably ar can expect to have taxable profits
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised nrespect of JK tosses of £32.6m (2020: £33.5m) and
sutside the UK of £2.7m (2020: £1.8m) as they may not be used to offset taxable profits elsewhere in the Group and they have
either arisen in subsidiaries where Future use 1s uncertain, or are capital iosses For which there s imited scope for future offset.

22.ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL

Sainier of
«,_en sharas Eia
4 January 2020 o - L 47.3 0.5 30 30.6
Shares repurchased (1.4) - _ -
1 January 2021 459 0.5 20 30.6
2 January 2021 459 . 0.5 3041 306
Shares repurchased {0.6) - - -
31 December 2021 45.3 0.5 3041 308

Transacticns with shareholders
In 2021, 608,602 Ordinary shares of 1p each i202C: 1.413 789 representing 1.3% (2020: 3.0%; of the opening number of issued
shares. were repurchasad in the markeat For consideration of £1.9m (2020: £4.3m). ard cancelled.

On 25 June 2021 the shareholders approved a new share purchase plan allowing the Company to purchase up to 4,560,363
Ordinary shares up to the sarlier of the date of the Company s next Annual General Meating or 30 June 2022
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22. I1SSUED SHARE CAPITAL CONTINUED

Impellam Group plc

The Company has no limit to its authonsed share capital. The above number represerts the number of allotted, fully paid shares
of 1pinissye.

23. OTHER RESERVES

arger SHrer Tt ber

ranien & TeLeT L8 Mg .2fue TECEE
4 January 2020 19.0 92.2 N 203
Currency translation differences - - (2.0 2.0}
1 January 2021 15.0 92:? 71 g3
2 January 2021 19.0 92.2 741 118.3
Currency transtation differences - - (1.4) (1.4)
31 December 2021 19.0 92.2 5.7 116.9

Merger reserve

The merger reserve arises under Section 612 of the Comparies Act 2006 as a result of the acquisition of Bartech Holding
Corporation and Lonen Limited using the 1ssue of shares as part consideration. The excess of fair value aver nominat value of
sharesis trarsferred to a merger reserve rather thar share prermium. This reserve is not distributable.

Other reserve

The other reserve comprises £32.2m contributed surpius arising on 2 historical demerger transaction (2020: £92.2m). It also
centains £41 000 contributed surslus arising on a historical demerger transaction and a special reserve arising from the
capital reduction in December 2012 {2020: £41 £0C): and £47 00 capital redemption reserve arising from the purchase and
cancellation of treasury shares (2020: £47.000). This reserve is not distributable.

Foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve s used to record exchange differences ansing from the translation of the financral
statements of foreign subsidiaries.

24. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
The followirg table surrmarises the rformatior relating to each of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interest ('NCIY, before any intra-Craup eliminations,

Individual
immaterial
subsidiaries Total
B o ‘2 £m
31 December 2021
Net assets attributable to NC| _0'1 _______9‘_1_ -
Profit allocated te NC 0.1 0.1
QOther comprehensive ircorre allocated to NCT - -
Otrer comprehensive income from redacing the NC comporert 0.3 0.3
rerad s

1 January 2021
Net assets attributable to NC| (0.3) 0.3

Loss allocated ta NCI - -
Other comrprehersive incarre allocated to NCI -
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The irdividually immaterial subsidiaries include the share of results for Barpetlam Irc ard Bartech Belgium NV {2020: Barpellar
Inc, Bartech Belgium NV and Younifi Limited) which are not wholly owned by the Group (note 25) During the year the Group
purchased the minority interest of Younifi Limited for a nominal value.

25. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
The consolidated financial statements include those of the helding company. Impellam Group ple, and all of its subsidiaries. Al
subsidiaries have the same periad end as the Croup and are wholly owned at the perod end unless otherwise specified

800 The Boulevard —  Blue Allow Financial Services Limited?®

Capability Creen —  Blue Arrow Holdirgs Limited
Lutor —  Blue Arrow Limited

LU 3BA - BMSLimited

United Kingdom - Carbors0 Limted

—  Career Teachers 2006 Limited (Formerly Career Teachers Limited}
- Career Teacrers Limited {formerly Celsiar Group Limited)
- Carlisle Cleaning Services Holdings Limited*
-  Carlisle Events Services Limited*
—  Carlisle Croup Limited
—  Carlisle Nominees Limited*
~  Carlisle Staffing plc
- Carlisie Staffing Services Holdings Lirmited
Carlisle Staffing Services Limited
—  Chadwick Nott (Holgings) Limited
- Chrysalis Cornmupity Care Croup Lirrited
— ComersJra Limited
~  Docters On Call Lirmited
~  Flexy Corporation Limited
- GClobal Croup (UK) Limited
- Clobal Medics Limited
—  Guidant Ciobal-Europe Limited
— Impellam Howdings Limited
— impellam UK Limited
- Laybridge Limited*
—  Litrmus Workforce Solutions Limited
- Lorien Lirmited
- Lonen Resourcirg Limited
- Medacs Global Group Limited
- Medacs Healthcare Australgsia Group Limited
- Medacs Heslthcare plc
- OneTrue Limited
—  PRNRecraitment Limited
- Science Recruitmert Croup Lirmited
- Younifi Limited

Level 2 - Alleed Employment Croup Pty Limited
14 Martin Place —  Carbon60 Pry Limited”

Sydrey - Comensura Pty Limited”

NSw 2000 —  Flexy Services Pty Limited -

Aust-alia —  Global Medics Pty Limited -

- utmus WorkForce Solutions Pty Lid ™
— Medacs Healthcare (2Ey) Limited
~  Medacs Healthcare Australia Pty Limited

Straatshurgdok-Noordkaai 3 ~  Bartech Belgium NY™ {73% owned)
2030 Antwerp, Belgium
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25. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES CONTINUED

PO Box 71, Road Town -
Tortola \/C‘ 10
British Virgin 1slands

Sabertooth Ser\uceg mewted

250 Howe Street -
20tk Floor Vancouver -
BCV6EC 3R8 -
Carada -

Bartech Techpical Services of Carada Limited-
Canada Corporate Errployment Resources ULC
Clobal & Medical Recruitrrent Consultarcy Inc.
f‘mdahtﬁoup f’amda uLc -

Anna-Schneider-Steig 22 -
50678 Cologre, Germany

Beathavenplatz 2 -
80336 Murich, Cermany

Cuidart Clobal Germary GrrbH

impellarr CmbH

57/63 Llne WaEE Road, ulbra tar -

Ker*ard \nvestr‘r‘ent: L;mted

Block 9, Blarkrock BusmeS> Park -
Blackrock -
Co. Dublin, A94 E4X2 -
Ireland _

Cariwsle Seur ity lHoLdur‘gs) er\ted“
Carlisle Secarnity Limited®

Carlisle Staffing Services Ireland Limited®
irish Re¢ruitment Corsaltarts Limited s
Litmus Workforee Solutiors Irelard Limitec
Medac; Giobalcroumlmted

Vi3 F Mppo Turaki 29 -
2002 Wlaﬁ Italy

Ric leer 4102 -

Col Cuaubtemoc 06500
Cuauhtemoc, Distrito Federal, Mexico

98 Alicia Street _
Cotory Cuadalupe Tepeyac.
Mexmo City f‘POdeO Mexico

Level 6, 3 Ferrcroft Street -
Craft, Auckland 1010 -
Nev Zealard -

Or\ental Certer, Suite p! -
254 Munoz URoz Rivera Avenue San Juan
PR 009" 8 Puerio Rico

Gmdartclobat taly SRL”

Bartech J.ﬁexu:o S, de RL de C\J

Globa [ Medics NZ Limited”
Healthlirk New Zealand Group timited
Medacs Healthcare Lim ted

Cuidart Clobal Pderto Ricotn

133 New Bridge Road 7 -
#10-05, Chinatown Point -
Singapore (059413

Guidantglobal SC Pre Ltd -

Latitudes Group Interratioral Management Pte Limited”

Martin-Disteli Stras;e Ej -

460C Olten Switzerland -

2711 Cen er\nlle Road Sunte 4co -
Wilmirgton -
Delaware 19808 -
UsSA -

17799 N Lagrai Park Drive -
Suite 224 Livonia -
Michigan 48152 USA

=age_104

Carbong0 ACT
Guidant Clobal Switzerland AC

Barpellam inc (49% owned)
CER Canada Holdirg Irc.

Impellam NA Support Services Irc (formerly Corestaff Support Services Inc.) -

Corporate Employment Resources Inc.-
Corporate Services Croup boldirgs Inc.”
Cuidart Clobal Carada Holding Irc.-
Cuidart Clobal Holding Corporation
Cuidapt Clobal Irc.”

Cuidart Croup Inc.:

Bartech Mexico Hoidmg e
Bartech Techpical Services LLC




STRATEGIC REFCRY CORPORATL LOVERNAMCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Companies marked with a * above are exempt From the Companies Act 2006 requirements relating to the audit of their
individual accounts by virtue of Section 480 of the Act relating to dormeant companies.

All subsidharies are indirect baldings of the Company other than Irpellam Holdings Ltd, Impellam UK Ltd ard the Medacs Gicbal
Group Ltd which has its registered office in the UK.

Shares for all companies are classed as Ordinary and a nominal value of £1 per share except as disclosed below:

{ay ‘A Ordinary shares of £1

(b} Ordinary shares of AS1

(c} Comimon stock with no par value
{d)} Ordinary shares of 1000 CHF

fe) Ordinary shares of €1 27

(F) Ordinary shares of NZ§1

{g) COrdinary shares of 081

{h; QOrdirary shares of €1

The Croup owns 49% of the issued stock of Barpellam Inc but exercises control of the company in accordance with the
defimtions of power and exposure to vanability in returns required unger IFRS 10 Consclidated Financial Statements,

The subsidiary undertakings listed below are exempt from the Companies Act 2006 requirements relating to the audit of
their individual accounts by virtue of Section 4794 of the Act as this Company has guaranteed the subs:diary company under
Section 479C of the Act:

TewE-1E

» .1 31 December

' 2021
Career Teachers 200€ Limited Oradinary 100%
Flexy Corperation Limited 05524785 Qrdinary 100%
Guidant Clebal-Europe Limited 07130856 Crdinary 100%
Medacs Healthcare Australasia Croup Limited 3312098 Crdinary 100%
OneTrue Limited 011898858  Crdirary 100%

Compensation of key management personnel of the CGroup

The Directors have considered the levels of resporsibility delegated to senior maragement of the Croup and have corcluded
that, Iin additior to the Directors themselves, disclosure should inciude the Serior Leadership Tearm which comprises the
Pertfolio CEO and Group General Counsel and Company Secretary, the Chief Executives of STEM, Global Managed Services,
Impellam North America and Impellam APAC as well as the Chief Technology Officer, the Group Director of Corporate
Development ard the Group Director of Investment & Innovation. The total number of positiors ircluded ir the disclosareis 53
(2020: " 7% The Directors receive dividerds in proportion to their sharebeldirgs held durirg the current ard prior periods.

31 December Jaruar,

2021
- . N gm L
Shart-term employment benafiks 6.8 473
Post-employment benefits 0.2 0.2
Total 7.0 4.5

Lord Ashcroft has arirterestin Pumra !nterrational Holdings Limited. The Group paid Pumra interrationat Holdirgs Limited
£425,0C01202C: £nil) For the provision of consultancy services. Nothing was owed to or by Purna International Heldings Limited
at the start or erd of the period. Argela Ertwistle is also a Director of a company called Deacon Street Partners Limited. The
Group pays Deacon Street Partners Limited For its provision of Angela Entwistle’s services as a Non-Executive Director — £4C.C00
{(2020: £38 00QY, The Craup owed £4.000 to Deacon Street Partners Limited at the end of the period {202C: £4,0C0). Alsc. a
compary within the impellam Craap provides a payroll huread service to Deacor Street Partners Limiced for which ro charge is
made as tre arm's-length cost of suck service is negligibie.
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25. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES CONTINUED

in 2016, a company within the Group advanced a loan of $1,300,C0C to David Barfield, a Director of various Group companies.
This loan was due for repayment on or before 25 January 2021 and $nil was outstanding at the period end (2020: $725,000).
Interest accrues at a rate of 1.81% per annum and during the period $nil {2020: $14,0600) interest had been accrued. David
Barfield 1s alsc a significant sharehelder in Bartech Acquisition Corporation LLC. At the end of the period, the amount owed to
or by the Group was $nil [2020: $rul). Bartech Acquisition Corporation LLC 1s a shareholder in Techcentral LLC and the Group
provides accourting and programme management services at an arm's lergth rate to TechCentral LLC. Duning the perigd, the
Croup charged TechCentrai $116.000 {2020: $175,000) For these services At the end of the periad, TechCentral LLC owed the
Group $116.000 (2020: $155.000).

During the period the Group entered inte the following transachions with related parties who are not 100% owned by the Group.

Sale of Purchase of Amounts owed Amounts owed
services Lo services from to related by related
related parties related parties parties parties
. &m gm M fm
31 December 2021
Barpellam Irc - 37.5 30.0 2.5
Bartech Belgium NV - 0.1 0.9 -
Total . - 37.6 30.9 2.5
Li At P owed
~ef L trioabed
fa salerad Zart es oarbes
L in or o e
1 January 2021
Barpellam Ipc - 6.5 267 "8.8
Bartech Belgium MY - 0.2 - 0.2
Younifi Limited oo - - 4.2
Total 0x 36.7 261 23.2

Sales ta related parties relate to expenditure transferred at cost ko encourage the expansion of the related party. As these
companies are cantrolled by the Group, ro allowance has been made for bad and deubtful debts Transactions with Younifi
Limited cover the period when there was 3 mirarity owrer.

26. NET DEBT

1 January Cash Interest interest Foreign 31 December
201 flow charged paid Drawdown  exchange 2021
o - o Em___Em o £m o E,E' £m T Em 7759
Cash ard short-term deposits (note " 6) 117.9 (24.3) {0.2) 0.2 - (2.7) 90.9
Bark cverdraft {note ' 73 (2.9) (1.0) - - - - (3.9}
Revotving credit (notes 18 and 19) {(118.9) 16.7 (3.4) 3.4 - 0.3 (101.9)
Hire purchase (rotes 18 ard 19) (0.2) 0.1 - - - - (0.1)
Lease liakilities {rote 173 {26.5) 8.8 {0.6) 0.4 1.0 0.4 (16.5)
Lease debtors (nole 1) 4.3 (1.7) 0.1 {0.1) (2.5) {0.1} -
Net debt (26.3) (1.4) {a.1) 3.9 (1.5} (2.1} (31.5)
Joatuarg Tae nbzrest rLarass bl tiaruyy
:n TCa “rarged pad  Srasdswn Smatga EA
Cash ard short-term depaosits (note 16) ; 323 (9.2 - - - (5.2) 175
Bark gverdraft (note 17} (390} 367 - - - - 2.9
Revolving credit (notes 18 and 19 {165.3} 45 2 (4.4) 44 - 0.2 11189
Hire purchase fnates 18 and 19 (0.3) 0.0 - - - - (0.2)
Lease liabilities (note 17} i33.8) 15 (0.8} 0.8 £3.9) 0.3 26.5)
i.sa&qisbtors irote 17) 7. (3.2) o oy - 02 43
Net debt (98.8) 85 5. 7 (3.9) (51 (26.3)
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The Group takes advantage of a number of non-recourse financing agreements arganised by clients of the Group to allow for
the acceleration of payment of the Group's receivables (see note 2{J)). At the end of 2021, these amounted te £8.2m (2020
£6.3m). These agreements accrue Interest at between 0.65% and 1.75% over SCNIA and interest of £0.1m was charged during
the period (2020: £0.1m) and is included in other interest in note 7.

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Croup's principal financial liabilities camprise bank overdrafts, revolving credit facilities, leases and trade payabtes.
Qverdrafts and revolving zredit Facilities are used to satisfy short-term cash flow requirements The main purpose of these
Financial liabilities 1s to raise finance for the Group's trading operations. The Group also hes vanous financial assets such as
investments, <rade receivables, cash and short-term deposits which arise directly from tradirg operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are set out beiow. The Board reviews and agrees policies for
maraging each of these risks and these are summarised Helow.

Itis and has been throughout the period under review, the Group s policy that no trading in financial instruments such as
derivatives shall be undertaken. The Group's policy with regard to interest rate and foreign exchange contracts is to only hedge
specific risks with a determinable date hat anise from operations or financing.

Interest rate risk

None of the Group's borrowings are at a fixed rate of interest. All borrowings are subject to changes in market interest rates
primarily the revolving credit facility, which 1s subject to floating rates. The floating rate barrowings are not exposed to changes
in fair value: however, the Croun is exposed te interest rate risk as costs increase If market rates rise or cash flow opportunity as
costs decrease if market rates fall.

The Sroup also earns incerest on credit bark balances at a floating rate of interest. The Group's policy 15 ko manage 1ts interest
rate cost by the Jse of variable rate debis while ates are low

Interest rate risk table

The Following table demonstratas the sensibivity to a reasenably (based ugon market expectations for the next 12 months;
possibie change to interest rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Croup’s profit before tax ithrough the impact of
floating rate borrowings.

EFfact an
Increase/ profit Effect on
decraase in befora tax equity
) basis points £m £|:n )
31 December 2021
Pourd Sterling +75 0.9) (0.7)
-25 0.3 0.2
UsS Dollar +75 {0.1} {0.1}
-25 - -
1 January 2021
Pound Sterling +30 (0.6} 0.3
25 0.3 0.2
US Dollar +30 0.1 0.1
z 0. 0.

Liquidity risk

The Group's Funding strategy 1s to maintain funding “lexibility through the use of cash, deposits. revolving credit Facilities,
overdrafts supplier financing arrangemeants and leasing contracts. The Group aims to ensure that it has committed Barrowing
Facilities in place In excess of its peak forecast borrowings for at least the next 12 months. Short-term flex:bility is achieved by
the use of deposits ard revolving credit Facilities and supplier financing arrangements,
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES CONTINUED

The Croup renewed its revolving credit Facilities on 17 December 2021 For a further three years with an option to extend for a
Further two years; £182.5m was available For drawdown {2020: £24Cm) which includes an overdraft facility of £5m, The amount
utilised at 31 December 2021 was £103.8m {2020: £114.9m). This facility includes an accordion element of an additional £4Cm
which could be added to the faclity, There are no restrictions to the free trarsfer of funds between fully owned subsidiaries. The
Facilities cover all terntories the Group operates in. The revolving credit facility includes financial covenants linked to the Croup s
debtor cover, leverage cover and interest cover using adjusted ERITDA {before separately disclosed items and share-based
payment: — note 3. At 31 December 2021, and throughout the period, the Group was in compliance with its financial covenants
and expects to continue to be so.

The Croup takes advantage of 3 number of non-recourse financing agreements organised by clients of the Group to allow for
the acceleration of payment of the Group’s receivables (see note 2{J)). At the end of 2021, these amounted to £8 2m (2020:
£6.3m;. These agreements accrue interest at between 0.65% and 1.75% over SONIA and interest of £0.1m was charged during
the period (202C: £6.1m) and is included in other interest in note 7

The tabie below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at 37 December 2021 and 1 January 2021
based or cortractual urdiscounted payments.

Less than 3 3-12 1-5 5 years
an demand months maonths years or more Tatal
. I S L fm Em _Em gm _Em fm
31 December 2021
Revolvirg credit facilities (rotes "8 and 19) - - - 101.9 - 101.9
Trade and other payables (note 17} 3.9 490.6 10.3 - - 504.8
Finance lease liabilities (notes *8 ard *19) - 0.1 - - - 0.1
Lease liabilities fnote 1 1) - 1.4 44 9.2 3.0 17.7
Total 3.9 4921 14.4 11141 3.0 624.5
n _zgqfkiaEr vz -
19 ardd 3merchs el > tzl
Sestated - o P - i - i BT
1 January 2021
Revolvrg credit Facilities inotes 18 ard 19) - - - "18.9 _ ‘135
Trade ang other payables {note 17} 2.9 4465 220 - - 471.5
Finance lease tiabilities (notes '8 ard 19) - - 01 0.- - 2
Lease liabilities {(rote " 1} - restated - 2.5 7.4 14.0 45 284
Total 29 4490 29.6 1330 45 £19.0

“he lease habilities have beer restated for the prior year as the original disclosdre was the contractual discourted value of
£26.5m.

Credit risk
The risk of financial ioss due to a counterparty's failure to honour its obligations anises principally in relation to transactions
where the Group provides services or deferred terms (rote 13).

Croup policies are aimed at mirimisirg such losses. it is the Croup’s policy that all clients who wish to trade or credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that
the Group's exposure to bad debts 1s kept to a minirmum. The maximum expssure Is the carrying amount as disclosed

innote 15. The Group has a credit nisk policy that covers all clients except public sector, 1ocal government and pay when paid
contracts. There is a £500 000 aggragace First loss and maximum policy liability of £44.5m. This policy was renewed m February
2022 for three years,

with respect to credit sk from other Fingncial assets of the Group, which comprise cash and cash eguwvalents and investments,
the Group's exposure to credit risk arises frem the default of the cocnterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amaurt of these assets. These risks are primarily mirimised by restricting deposits and investrmerts to those available from
well-established reputable Financial institutions.
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At 31 December 2021, the maximum exposure to credit risk For trade and other receivables by geographic region was as Follows.

31 December ParLary

2021 EITh

) N B e o ) £m =

UK 275.0 2284
North America 290.5 255.0
Europe 20.5 0.0
Australasia 20.4 238
Total 606.4 5672

Foreignh currency risk

The Group has a significant investment in its operations in North America with some smaller interests in Europe and Australasia.
The Croup’s consolidated balance sheet can be affacted significantly by the movements in the US Dollar exchange rate;
however, movements In the exchange rates for Eure, Australian Doliar, Canadian Doliar, Swiss Franc, New Zealand Dollar or other
currencies have orly a marginalirmpact on the Croup's results ard balance sheet.

The Group does not hedge against the 'mpact of exchange rate movements on the translation of Foreign currency depominated
prefits Transactional currency exposures across the Group are minimal.

The following table demcnstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the exchange rates:

Effect on profit

Percentage change before tax Effect on equity
o _ _ o _ imrate o Em _ Em
31 December 2021
US Dollars +10 0.7 -
-10 (0.9) -
1 January 2021
Us Dollars =10 08 0.3
-0 0 0.4;

Price risk

The Group has investments in marketable securit:es and as such s exposed Lo price risk. These secunties are held in Zrust

an bekalf of certain US employees and the underlying risk 1s borre by those employees. The Croup’s liability is lirmited to the
market value of the securities (note 14).

Capital management
Capital corsists of the total equity attributable to the equity holders of the Parent Company.

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, to
ensure that it maintains a good credit rating in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value. No changes were
made Lo the objectives, policies or pracesses during either period,

The Crodp considers capital less any net cash as corrporents of funding. It monitors funding by refererce to its ability to borrow
ard to satisfy debt coverants Tre principal measure 1s the ERITDA ratic, which is calculated by dividing the fundierg of the Croup
by the Group's adjusted earnings before interest. tax, adjusted depreciation and amaortisation.

The revolving creait facility included a firancial covenant linked to the Group's .average, imterest cover and debror cover.

AL 31 December 2021, and throughout the period, the Croup was in compliance with these financial coverants whilst this Facility
was ir place.
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Set out below is a comparisan by categery of the carrying amounts and fair values of all the Group's financial instruments that

are carried in the consolidated balarce sheet.

31 December 2021 T Jariar, JuC
W(Earrying 77”Fair 7’:;&\"‘{;" o =ar
amount value AL E .alue
£m £m - L
Financial assets
Investments (ncte 14) 1.5 1.5 12 2
Other Financial assets (non-current) (note 14) 0.2 0.2 0.4 0.4
Other debtors - - 0.5 0.5
Cash and cash equivalerts (note 16) 90.9 90.9 117.9 1°7.9
Financial liabilities
Bank overdraft {rote 17) ) 3.9 3.9 2.9 2.9
Short-term borrowings {note 18) 0.1 0.1 Q. Q.
Long-term borrowings (rote *9) 101.9 101.9 "19.0 119.0

The tarrying value of trade receivables less impairment and trade payables are assumed to approximate fair value and are

excluded from the above table.

FaIr value estimatior hierarchy:

+ Level 1 - Quoted prices ‘unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or tiabilities;

= Level 2 —Inputs other than quoted prices included within level * that are observable for the asset or tiability, either directly

tthat is, as prices; or indirectly (that 1s derwved from prices); and

Level 3—Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {that is, unobsersable inputs).

The following table presents the Fair value hierarchy of assets measdred at fair value:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Totak
_ £m f_ﬂ:l____ im_ - Efn
31 December 2021
Investments (note 14) 1.5 - - 1.5
Other debtors - - - -
sel _Ee e Tor 3l
1 January 2021
Investments (note 14} 1.2 - - t2
Other debrors _ 0.5 - - 0.5

Level 1

Market values, based or published orices, have been used to determmine the fairvalue of the marketable irvestmerts included in

other financial assets.

Fair value for short-term borrowings are equal to book value as they are repayable on demand and are subject to churn over a

period of less thar three months,

“age_ T
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

Interest rate risk

AL 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2021 none of the Group s borrowings are at fixed rates of interest. The following table sets
out the carrying zmount, by maturity, of the Group's financial instruments that are exposed to interest rate risk.

within 1-3

1 year years Totat

£m £€m £m

31 December 2021
Floating rdte
Cash and short-term deposits {note 16) 90.9 - 90.9
8ank overdrafts (pote 17} (3.9} - {3.9)
Revolvirg credit facilities {notes 18 ard 19) - {101.9) {101.9)
Hire purchase {notes 18 and "9} {0.1} - (0.1)

1 January 257
Floating rate

Cash ard shart-term deposits irote “6) 79 - 1"7.9
Bank overdrafts incke 17) (2.9 - (2.9
Revolving credit facilities (rotes 18 ard "9 - 1+8.9) {""8.9)
Hire purchase {notes 18 and 19) 0 ‘0 0.2

The effective nterest rate on bank balances and other short-term deposits was less than 0.5% (2020: {ess than 0.5%) US deposit
interest rates wera {ess char 0.5% {2020: less thar 0.5%),

Bank overdrafts and revalving credit borrowings are secured by a guarantee and debenture with a fixed charge over certain
assets of the Company and the subsidiary undertakings concerned plus a floating charge over all oeher assets of the Compary
ard those subsidiary undertakirgs, supported by a cross-gaarantee giver by the Cormpary ard the vanous subsidiary
Jndertakings, Borrowirgs urder these facilities incurred interest (ircluding margir) between " 90% and 2,.70% over SONIA rate
(2020 betweer ~.35% and 2.30% cver LIBOR rate!. Al incerest s charged moenthly ir arrears (note 275

Collateral pledged
© The self-insured workers’ compenrsation Liability described in rote 20 is covered by insurers or the basis that collateral is
provided sufficient to cover all potential claims. This collateral takes two Forms:

« E30M-%40m (2020: £3.2m - $4.4m) in the form of letters of credit drawn upon the revolving credit Facility in the 5 apd
s E02m-50.2mi2C2C £0.4m - $0.5m;) ‘n the Form of cash deoesits. shown on the balance sheet as nan-current other financial
3ssets (Note 14}

The Group has also issued various indempities totalling £2.1m reiating to rent guarantees mainly in Austrabia. These expire
in 2022,

29. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS - SHARE PURCHASE AND CANCELLATION

Betweer the erd of the year and 22 March 2022, a further 75,830 Ordinary shares of 'p each have beer repurchased ir the
market For total consideration of £0.4m and have been cancelled.

Qage
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

FORTHE 32 WEEKS EMDED 3t DECEMBER 2021

30. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS ~ DISPOSAL OF CORESTAFF

On 24 January 2022 the Group announced that it has entered into an agreement to sell the business and assets of Corestaff, its
US-based Light Industrial brand. to swipejobs Inc. a US private digital staffing company, For cash consideration of approximately
£14m {319 m).

In the year ended 31 December 2021, Corestaff reported in the Group's Regional Specialist Staffing portfolio, generated
revenue of £38m and gross profit of £12.8m and had an operating profit of £1.2m. Net assets at 31 December 2021 were
approximately £6.9m.

The details of the sale were completed ard agreed after the year end ard the trarsaction was complered or 7 Febraary 2022,
Following completion of the Disposal, the Group used the proceeds of sale to pay down net debt to fund additionalinvestment
to further accelerate the Croup's strategy.

31. CONTROL

The Group has :dentified Lord Asheroft as the ultimate controlling party as he has influence over more than 50%. but less than
75%. of both the shares and voting rights of Impellam Croup plc and together with being Chairmar of Impellar~ Croup plc has
significant influence over the Croup
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Company balance sheet

ASAT ) SECEMBER 2020

~estatad
31 December Jarar
2021 262
o - e Em i
Non-current assets
Investments 3 150.1 1501
Other receivables 4 242.2 2338
392.3 3839
Current assets
Other receivables 4 13.8 6.3
Cash at bark and ir hard 0.6 12
14.4 7.5
Other payables: amounts Falling due within gne period 5 {211.1) (178.2)
Net current liabilitie (196.7) ("60.7
Total assets less current liabilities 195.6 2232
Other payables: amounts Failing due in more than one period 6 {101.9) 1 8.9)
Net assets 93.7 104.3
Capital and reserves
Called-up share zapital 8 0.5 63
Skare premium accourt g 3041 30"
Merger reserve 9 19.0 19.0
Other reserves 9 - -
Retained profit ) 44.1 54.7
Total shareholders’ funds 10 93.7 104.3

The accorrpanying rotes are an irtegral part of this balance sheet.

The loss dealt with in the financial statements of the Company For the 52 weeks ended 31 December 2021 was £8.7m (2020
£5 9my}. Dwidends totalling Eml (2020 £nil) were declared and paid during the period As allowed by Secticn 408 of the

Companes Act 20C6, no separate profit and loss account s presented For the Parent Company

The financial statements cn cages 113 to 119 were approved by the Board on 5 Apnil 2C22 and are signed an its oehaif by:

Tim Briant
Chief Financial OFFicer

Registered number: 0651196°

Page_113
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Statement of changes in equity

TOR THE 52 wWEEKS £NDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Skare zapital
srdorerie e JHrer jewse ey Reban el Tobal
irgte 3 1octed ooure [EFCIRTE
4 January 2020 30.6 9.0 68.9 118.5
Loss For the periad - - {9.9; (9.9)
Purchase and cancellatior of own shares {rate 8) - - {4.3) (4.3)
1 January 2021 306 12.0 547 104.3
2 January 2021 30.6 19.0 54.7 104.3
Loss For the pericd - - (8.7) (8.7)
Purchase and cancellation of own shares {rote 8) - - (1.9} {1.9)
31 December 2021 30.6 1.0 441 93.7

The Company has considered the profits available for distribution to sharehoiders. At 31 Decernber 2021, the Company had
retained earnings of £44 1m which were all available for distribution.

The Group also has retained profits in its subsidiary companies which are expected to flow up to the Company in due course o
further supplement its distributable reserves pesition.

Page_*14
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Notes to the Company balance sheet

FORTHE 52 WEFKS ENDED 3! DECEVMBER 252!

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A) Basis of accounting

impettam Group ple (‘the Company} is @ company ircorporated ard registered in England ard weles and domriciled in the UK.

In preparing these financial statements. the Company applies the recognition measurement and disclosure requirements of Uk
adopted international accounting standards and has set out below where advantage of the FRS 101 disclosure exemptions has
beer taken.

Summary of disclosure exemptions
In these hinancial statements, the Company has applied the exemptions available under FRS 101 1n respect of the Following
disclosures:

= Acash flow statement and related notes.

+ Disclosuresin respect of tramsactions with wholly owred subsidiaries.

«  Disclosuresir respect of capital management.

= The effects of new but not yet effective IFRSs.

«  Disclosures i respect of the corrpersation of key managerrent persorrel.

As the consotidated finanaial staternents of Impellar Group pleinclude the equivalent disclosures, the Company has also taken
the exemptions under FRS 101 available inrespect of the foliowing disclosures:

+  Certair disclosures required by 1AS 36 Irrpairmenrt of Assets ip respect of the impairment of investrrents.
»  Certair disclosures required by IFRS 13 Fair Value Megsurerrent and the disclosures required by iIFRS 7 Firarcial
Imstrurments Disclosures.

The Zompany proposes to continue to adopt the reduced disclosure framework of FRS 101 inits next financial statements.

The accounting policies set out below have, urless otrerwise stated, been applied consistertly to all years preserced in these
financial statements.

A separate profit and loss account dealing with the results of the Company only has not been preserted as permitted undsr
Section 4CB of the Companies Act.

Changes in accounting policy
None of the standards, interpretations and amendments effective far the first time from 1 January 20271 have had 3 matenal
affect on the financial statements.

Accounting pelicies have beer applied consistertly.

B) Investments .

Shares in subsidiary companies are held as fixed assets and are stated at cost less prowsion For impairment. Impairment reviews
are corducted wher changesir everts or situations indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. More details of the
impairment methodologies are given in note " 2 of the consolidated accounts,

C) Other receivables

Other recewvables include amounts owed by Craup corrparies which are assessed for impairment based upon the current
Financial position and expected future performance of the subsidiary to which they relate. The transactions with Group
companies are interest-free demand loans. The Company assesses the expected recoverability period of receivables and, if they
are rot expected to be realised within the followirg twelve months, are assessed as non-current.

The Company applies the IFRS 6 general approach to measuring expected credit iosses. This approach requires an assessment
at the initiztion of the loan as to the nisk of default, and a further assessment when the credit risk profiie of the icans change.
IFRS ¢ applies a three-stage modeithat s applied when calculating the expected credit losses:

= Stage 11s defined as having no Significant Increase in Credit Risk ('SICR') —a 12-month expected credit loss s recognised at
this pant,

+  Stage 2 is defined as having 3 SICR - a Lfetime expected credit loss is recognised at this point.

+ Stage 3i1sdefined as being crecit impaired — a ifenime expected credit loss 1s recognised at this point.

There is no irpact i relation to interest as the amourts owed by {roup companies are inkerest free and repayable or demanrd.

2350 17
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Notes to the Company balance sheet continued

FCRTHE 52 ALEKS ENDED 21 DECIMBER 2G62°

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
() Other receivables cortinyed
The Company defines the Following:

Definition of a default - A loan is considered to be in default when there 1s evidence that the borrower is in significant
financial difficulty such that it will have insufficient assets to repay the loan on demand.

¢« SICR assessment - the risk that the borrower will defauit on a demand loan depends on whether the subsidiary has sufficient
cash or other assets to repay the loan immediately (meaning that the risk of default is very iow and the loan is in Stage 1}; or
does not have sufficient cash or other assets to repay the lpan immediately (meaning that Fhe risk af default is higher ang
the loar could be Ir stage 2 or stage 3). .

+  The Company performs this assessment qualitatively by reference to the borrower's immediate cash flow and asset position.

«  Creditimpaired indicators - A loan is considered to be credit impaired if it meets the definition of a defauited loan

D} Deferred taxation

Deferred income tax is provided. using the liabibty method, on temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and thesr carrying amounts for fimnancial reperting purposes.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on an undiscounted basis for all deductible ternporary gifferences, carry-forward of
vnused tax credits and unused tax losses, ko the extent Fhat it s probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and the carry-Forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be Utilised except:

+ where the defarred income tax asset relating o the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recogrition of
an asset or liability 'n a transaction that is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or less: and
‘n respect of decuctible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries. deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it s probable that the tempoerary differences will reverse in the foresesable future and
zaxable profit will be available against which the termporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred incame tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it s no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available ro altow all or part of the geferred income tax asset to be

utilised. Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised ko the extent
that it has become probabile that future taxable profit wiil allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income rax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the penod wher the asset
i1s realised or the liability 1s settled, based or tax rates (and tax laws) that have seen enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date. Income tax ~elating to items recogrused directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the

income statement. Deferred tax assets and Liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set of f current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxaticn authaority.

E) Employee beneafits

Short-term benefits - bonus arrangements

The Company operates a number of arnual borus arrangements for Directars and errployees. The cost of these arrangements is
recognised in the income statement when the entity Fas an obligatior to make such payments as a resdlt of the achieverment of
performance targets ard wher a reliable estimate of this cbligation car be made.

Pension obligations

The Company provides pensicn arrangements For its UK-based Directors and employees through defined contribution schemes.
Contribution costs are expensed to the income statement as they become due.

2. OPERATING COSTS

+  The amount payatle to the auditor in respect of the audit of the Company is £20,000{202C £20.C00) ali of which s payable
to BDO LLP.

«  Details of emoluments for Directors can 5e found in note 5 of the conselidated financial statements

»  Monthly average staff numbers {including Directors) for the Company during 2021 was 31, eight Directors/Company
Secretary nine managers and 13 admuristrators (2G20: 28, eight Directors/Company Secretary. nine managers and
11 admiristrators).

«  The total amount of employee costs charged to the Company’s income statement in the period s £7 9m (2020: £4 5m).

23ge Tin
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3. INVESTMENTS

Cost -2 January 2021
Cost — 31 December 2021

Impairment provision —-2 _january 2021
Charge for the period
Dispusaly

Accumulated amortisation - 371 December 2021

Net carrying value - 31 December 2021

Subsidiary
undertakings

Net carrying value - 1 January 2021

Details of the principal subsidiary undertak.ngs are given in note 25 of the consolidated financial statements. All of these

comparies are urlisted.

Subsidiary undertakings

The carrying values of investments were tested agairst discounted future cash flows during the period using a discount rats of
between 13 9% o 16.5% (2020 between 14.0% to 18.0%). which include a country rnisk premium. The forecasts were based on
pre-tax cash Flows derved from approved budgets For the 2022 financial period (20201 2021 Francial period).

4. OTHER RECEIVABLES

31 December

2021
LT Y= TOREY I o B - £m ?‘7 )
Amounts owed by subsidiary urdertakings 4.7 4.9
Qther receivables 9.0 0.9
Prepaymenrts a1 G.3
Total 13.8 6.3
31 December PRI
202t
_‘lr 1 -2 sntrelerables _ £€m "
Amrourts owed by subsidiary undertakirgs 242.2 2338
Total 242.2 2338

Amourts owed by subs.diary undertakirgs are unsecared, repayable or demard ard are not interest-bearing. These have
been reviewed for any expected credit loss and a charge of £0.1m (2020: £C.4m) has been recorded 1n the period, bringing
the cumulative charge to £1.8m (2020 £1.7m) Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings have been restated to show the
portion that is not expected to be realised in the following twelve months as a non-current receivable. The value of the pricr
year receivabies which have been classified te non-current 1s £233.8m. The impact of this on the 2C20 opening balance 1s that
£232.0m of receivable bslance of £246 2m was restated as non-current.
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Notes to the Company balance sheet continued

TORTHE 32 WEEKS ZNDED 31 DECEMBIR 02

5. OTHER PAYABLES: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE PERIOD

31 December 't st ar,

2021 ras

- S L - £m o S
Bank overdraft 3.9 2.9
Amaunts owed to subsidiary undertakings 198.4 7.6
Contract liabilities 1.5 13
Accruals and other payables 7.3 2.4
Total 21141 178.2

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakirgs are ursecured, repayable or demard and are not interest-bearing. Contract labilities

relate to amounrts recharged to subsidiary undertakings for whick the service has not been completed.

6. OTHER PAYABLES: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE IN MORE THAN ONE PERIOD

3t December

2021
- o £m =
Revolving credit facilities 101.9 118.9
Details of security giver over these {iabilities are described 'n potes 27 and 28 ¢ the corsoiidated accounts.
7. DEFERRED TAXATION
31 December srLET
2021 ¥R
o . -
Opening baiarce - -
Charged to profit and loss account in the period = -
Deferred tax asset - -
The total recognised and unrecognisad deferred tax I1s as foilows:
Recagnised Unrecognised Tt St e
31 becember 31 December FEINE
2021 2021
ase o I Em  Em L
Losses - 0.1 - 0.2
Other short-term timing differences - - - -
Total - 0.1 - 02
8. ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL
nLmger or
ssed e apEie rarg orEr L Tore
LIpba S0l rt rare Sl L
3 January 2020 0.5 3000 30.6
Purchase and cancellation of own shares - -
1 January 2021 0.5 3041 30.6
Purchase and cancellation of own shares - - -
Total - 31 December 2021 458.3 0.5 301 30.6

Impellam Group plc

The Commpary kas no limit to its authorised share capital. The above number represerts the number of atlotted, fully paid shares

of 1pinissue.
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Transactions with shareholders
In 2021, 608,602 Crdinary shares of 1p each (2020 1.413 78%), representing 1.3% (2020: 3.0%) of the opening number of issued
shares, were repurchased in the market for consideration of £1.9m (2020 £4.3m), and cancelled.

Dn 25 June 2021 the shareholders approved a new share purchase plan allowing the Company to purchase up te 4 560,363
Ordinary shares up to the earlier of the date of the Company’'s next Annual General Meeting or 30 Jure 2022,

9. RESERVES

Merger Retained Tatal

reserve profit reserves
S _ . } Em fm £m
1Jarcary 202° 19.0 54.7 73.7
Loss for the period - (8.7) (8.7)
Purchase ard canceilatior of own shares - (1.9) (1.9)
31 December 2021 19.0 441 63.1

Merger reserve

The rrerger reserve arises under Section 612 of the Comparies Act 2006 as 3 result of the acqguisition of Bartech Holdirg
Corporation and Lorien Limited using the issue of shares as part consideration, The excess of fair value over the nominal value of
shares is transferred to a merges reserve rather than a share premium. This reserve is rok distributsble.

Other reserves
Other reserves comprise the followirag:

+  £41 000 contributed surplus anising on a historical demerger transactior and a special reserve arising from the capital

~eduction 'n December 2012 {2020: £471,000); and
+ £53,000 capitai redemption reserve arising from the purchase and cancellation of treasury shares {2020: £47,060)

These reserves are nor-distributable. All other reserves are distributable.

10. RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS iN SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

31 December

2021
o o EI‘I‘I*?‘ . o
Loss For the financial period (8.7) 5.9;
Purchase and carcellation of own shares (1.9) i4.3)
Opening sharenolders’ furds 104.3 185
Closing sharehalders’ funds 93.7 1C4.3

11. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Board is ot aware of any related party transactions other thar those disclosed ir note 25 to the consolidated

firancial statements.

12. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS - SHARE PURCHASE AND CANCELLATION.
Between the erd of the year and 22 March 2022, a further 75,830 Ordirary shares of "o each rave been repurchased ir the
market for total consideration of £ 4m and have been cancelled.
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Alternative Performance Measures

ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Certain discussions and aralyses set out in this Annual Report
and Accounts include measures which are not defined by
generally accepted accourting principles such as IFRS.

We believe this informatior, along with comparable IFRS
measurements, 15 usefui Lo investors because it provides

a basis for rmeasuring our operating performance on a
comparable basis. Our management uses these financiatl
measures, along with the most directly comparable IFRS
financial measures, in evaluating our operating performance
and value creation. Nen-IFRS financial measures should net be
considered inisolation from, or as a substitute Far, financial
irformation presented i compliance with IFRS. Non-{FRS
financial measures as reported by us may not be comparabie
with simitarly titled amourts reported by other compantes.

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT

Definition: The Group calculates adjusted operating profit as
operating profit before amortisation of acquired Intangibles
ard impairment,

Closest equivalent IFRS measure: Operating profit

Rationale for adjustment: The Directors believe that
adjusted operating profit 1s the most appropriate appreach
for ascertaining the urderlying trading performarce ard
trends as & reflects the measures used internally by senfor
management for all giscussions of performance, sncluding
Directors remuneration, and also reflects the starting profit

The amortisation of acquired intangibles (brard value and
custormner relationships) charge due to its size and nature is
disclosed separately to give a comparabie view of the
year-cn-year trading financial performance,

The impairment charge due toits size is disclosed separately
to give a more comparable view of the year-or-year underlying
Financial performance.

ADJUSTED EBITDA
Definition: The Group calculates adjusted EBITDA as operating
profit before interest, tax depreciation and amorbisatian.

Closest equivalent IFRS measure: Operating profit.

Rationale for adjustment: The Croup continrues to measJre
ERITDA which 15 Jsed for banking covenants ard irternal

. performance measures. It is also used externally for valuation

measure Jsed wher calculating the Croup's barking coverarts.,

All discussiors within the Group or segrmertal and irdividual
brand performance refer to adjusted operating profit.

Followirg the adoption of IFRS 16 10 2079 the Croup has
moved from adjusted EBITDA to adjusted operating profit as
its alternative performance measure, to inciude depreciationr
and amaortisation of assets but excluding amertisation of
acquired intargibles.

Reconciliation of adjusted operating profit to operating
profit/{loss):

2021 200
- S £m B -
Segmental adjusted operating profit 36.8 23.3
Corporate costs (7.5} 3.1
Adjusted operating profit 29.3 18.2
Amortisation of brand value and

custorrer relatiorships (9.8) :1°.0)
Impairment af intargible assets - (222
Operating profit/({loss) 19.5 5.0

DUTDOSES.

Reconciliation of adjusted operating profit to operating
profit/(loss): ‘

2021 a0
Adjusted EBITDA 37.0 276
Amaortisation of software {5.3} 6.6

. Depreciatior (2.4) (2.8}
Adjusted operating profit 29.3 ‘8.2
Amortisaticr of brand value ard

cuskomer relatiorships 9.8) (.}

" Impatrment of goodwill and irtangible assets - 22.2)

Operating profit/(loss) 19.5 1150}

SPEND UNDER MANAGEMENT ('SUM’)
Definition: Total amount of chient expenditure which our
maraged services brands maraged ¢n behalf of their clients.

. This equates to reverue earned where Impellarm acts as

principal plus gross billings to customers where Impellam acts
3s agent.

Closest equivalent IFRS measure: Cioup reverue,

: Rationale for adjustment: The Group yses this measure

as it ~eflects the total value of the client spend to the Group,
not iust the revenue generated.
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CONTINUING ADJUSTED EARNINGS PER SHARE NET DEBT EXCLUDING IFRS 16 ‘LEASES’

('EPS) | Definition: the Group calculates net debt as the fotal of cash
Definition: Cont:nuing adjustad profit divided by the weighted | and short-term deposits, revoiving credit and hire purchase
average nurmber of Qrdinary shares sutstanding during the year.

Following the adophor of IFRS 16 the calculation also ircludes
Closest equivalent IFRS measure: Continuing basic earrings | lease liabilities and debtors.
per share.
) Rationale for adjustment: the Croup has used this measure
Rationale for adjustment: The Croup uses this measare to maintain alignmert to the covenant reportirg dunng 2020,

alongside the basic EPS calculation as it reflects the underlying

trading performarce of the business. i Reconciliation of net debt excluding IFRS 16 to net debt:
Reconciliation of adjusted EPS to basic EPS: [ 2021 et
£m s
200 2| Cashand short-term deposits 90.9 177.8
. o _fEm -7 1 Bank overdraft (3.9) (2.9
Continuing profit/(loss) for the ' Revolvirg credit {101.9) 5.9
period 8.3 {21.43 Hire purchase (0.1) 0.2}
impairm F All - 66 . o0 0 LT o T T T
mpairmert of goodwi | Net debt excluding IFRS 16 (15.0) - 4.1)
Impairmert of other intangibles o L
(net of tax) a 4z | ‘easeliabilities (16.5} (26.5)
Customer relatiorship ard brand tessedebtors [ S -
value amortisation (net of tax) 7.7 86 | Netdebt (31.5) 76.3)
Continying adjusted profit 16.0 33
Weighted average number i
of shares 45,538,963 16,208,380 |
Unadjusted continuing EPS 18.3 (46.2) ‘
Adjusted continuing EPS 35.3 18.2
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Glossary
Adjusted EBtTDA EBITDA before separately disdosed ikems and impairment of goodwitl
Adjusted EBITDA Convefsmn Ratlo AdeSted EB\TDA dwsded by NFl/gross proﬁt
AdeStEd Operating Prof:t Operatmg proﬁt beFore ammt:sat!on of, arwd impairment in, acqu\red mtangnbles
Beautiful Basics Every brand ir Impellam makes a sirrple promise to its customers and
candidates and then backs that promise up with whatever activities are needed
to Fulfil, sustain and deliver the brand promise we ¢ail these promises the
BeauUFu[ Basics
Busmess Process Outsourcing ('BPO ) Solut\ons whnch nelp busmesses addfess back office needs straLeglcatly and
) mcrease operatmnal efficiency
Cash Conversion Net cash From operatmg actwities d\vsded by operatmg profit
Constant Exchange Rates Cal cmated by rrultipiying the prior year Ednmona{ currercy amount by the
curren'{year Foreign curremcy exchange rate
Contnngent Labour Temr porary ard conrtract NOrkerS
Cross-sell AltImpellarm peaple are encouraged te roFer rew busiress xE‘&dS to one arother.
This happers when a consultant identifies an opportunity Ehat s outside the
scane of the brand speciatism ard it wilt be referred to a brard within the Croup
wbicb is aligned o the reqaner\"ept
CRM Customer relattommp rr‘a;‘agement
Days Sales Outstandmg ( DSO') TOta trade ’ﬂcewables divided by average daily mowced sales
EBITDA Eamu‘gs befare 'nterest tax eprecwat onand amort\sat\om
Facilities Management Pr:)u iding clearing, S@C\JFIL,' evePtS ard retail Facshbes sJdpport services
GDPR Cenera ldata protc-chon regulation wmch camenrto For 20r 5 May 70 8
Group Fill The percentage of Spend Urder Managemenrt supplied from our Group brar’ds
irko our managed services programmes
ngh Road Impetlam provides good work For people and people For good WOrK, \Ne Focus or
partnering with organisations that value engaged, fulfilled people which serves
to dﬂve ear market segmeptatlon and a compeﬁmg price pai F‘t
Hybfld Vendor Assignments are filled by a combination of suppliers that we manage For
the client and are filied directly by the Managed Services provider (inciuding
- Group supply) o o
IFRS Internatuonal Fmamal Repor |rg Dtandards
Ignite CRM ¢ custor“er retamomsh ip TaPagen"ePt‘ Cur recruuter operatmg system
lndependent Contractor Solutlons Helpmg to reduce the ﬂsk and cost oF worker msclassnﬁcatxon
Managed Serwces These businesses optimise the productivity of people by desigring,
implementing, coerdinating and reporting on the whole staffing process They
prowide multi-disciplirary workforce solutions inctudirg all forms of partial and
N corrolete outsourcirg
Managed Services Programme ('MSP’) The outsodrcing of ccmtmgept Iabour
Master Vendor The majerity of assignments are filled by the Manage Sarvices provider
dncluding Group supply) and secord-tier agencies are used when the Managed
_ Services provncer!s Jrable to sLsppl\
Net Debt Totat deDt of the Croau tess cash in hard
Net Fee Incorne ( NFI 1 Eqmualent to gross proﬁt
Neutral Vendor Assignments are filled by supphers ;hat we manage For the cllent where the

Managed Serwces provider does nat form part ar tbe >upp{y cbam
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All courtries impellam operates in outSIde oFtr‘e UK. Thisis the LS, Austratasna
amd Europe {excluding the UK}

Origin

Payroll Serwces

Qur innovation hub that acquires, mvests in ard partners with disruptive staft
UPS IN QUT M3 rkets as well as backing our VIFtdOSOS ideas

Provide access to a fully compliart frammework for rranaging and paying
LorwtmgentstaFF

Productivity

Grass proﬁt diwcfed by Fall T\me Equival ent\ FTE“ heads

Recruitment Process Outsourcing {'RPQ") Where a client outsources the managerﬁehtof the recrJitment fqr\ctmr\ {in

ShiftWise

Specialist Staffing

Spend Under Management ( SUM’)

Statement of Work ('SOW }

Value Chain

whole or part) tca th\rd party expert

Techr‘ology soi.mon For the NHS to build our Managed Serwces Lapab'htv

Dedicated brands which provide expert recruitment services and skilled workers
fFor permaﬁemt temporary. contact amd Frxed pr\ce work

Total amount of client expenditure wh|ch our Managed Serwces brands managed
ar behalf of their clients. This equates to reverue earned where Impellam acts as
pﬂropal plus gross bitlings to kustomers wher»:- ImpeHam acts as ager*t

Solutions for spend in fompiex categories of service which include suppller
management, requisiticr facilitation, cortract writing, regotiatiors and irvaicirg
anrd ;ettementsupportserwces

Different parts of our business Share the belief that meaningful work reaily
matters to individuals, commarities, societies ard eConomies so they Car work
together ko create a ue that Is greater than the sum or the parts

Vendor Management System ("VMS') VMS technology erab%es the Uil procure-ro-pay process, while providirg robust

recort\r‘g and aralytics

Veftacal SpeCIaItst Manageci Services Cur brands which have specwa list Foc@ and experhse deliver mg sector or

Virtuosity

Vlrtuoso

Virtuous Circle

Virtuoso Way

Function staFF ing solutions

Virtuosity s the art oFseemg possibilities where otr“er: see nore. Itis a mindset
that enabie: our peop ef to adapt with agility o char\gmg ’market Lor‘dmohs

People who see possibilities and can ture in £o the reeds oF Gur customers
and car‘dldates

A virtuous cnrde is at l:?*e core of our high-retertion mode It provwdes the
cortinuous loop of makirg ard keeping promises, which engenders trust ard
ultmate ¥ Huilds ‘oyattj

Our consistent, collaborative Croup-wide culturﬂ Dased cn Justed beha\: 10Jrs,
delivered by ertrepreneurial leaders. At the beart of buillding trust is the
everyday practice ir which people make promises te each other to brirg about a
futgre that benefits all
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Company information

Our Managed Services businesses are enabled by talent-focused Specialist Staffing brands with deep hentages, vertical sector
expertise and loyal candidate networks. Clients across the world trust us to deliver Managed Services and Specialist Staffing in
the UK. North America, Asia Pacific and Europe.

working with them are 2,900 Impellam people, bringing a wealth of expertise through our 13 market-leading brands across 70
locations. Every year, we cornect carefully chosen candidates with good waork at all leveis. They include techrology and digital
specialists. scientists, clinical experts anginears nurses, doctors, lawyers, teachers. receptionists, drivers, chefs, adminustrators,
warehouse ard call centre operatives.

Underpinning everything we do 1s our Virtuoso strategy which recognises it is our people who make the difference. Virtuosos
make and deliver on promises, and grow with their customers through sector, service or international expansion which ensures
there is never 3 reed for 3 castorrer or candidate to leave Impellam. [rrpellane is the largest Globat Talert Acquisition and
Managed Workforce Salutions provider in the UK, and 8th™ in the world.

For more irformation about impellarr Group. please visit: www.irmpellam.com

Nominated adviser and broker Independent auditor

Caraccord Geruity Limited
88 Wood Street

London

EC2V 7QR

Principal solicitors
Aiden & Qvery LLP
Ore Bishops Square
Londor £E° BAD

Registrars

Link Croup

*Qth Floor, Central Square
29 wellington Street
Leeds LS140L

Principal bankers
Barclays Bank pic
* Churchill Place
London £14 5HP

Fage_ 24

2DOLLP
55 Raker Street
Lordon Wil 7EU

Registered address
Impellam Croup plc
800 The Boulevard
Capabilicy Green
Luton

BedFfordshire LU 3BA

Registered number
065196"

LSE symbol
IPEL
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IMPELLAM GROUP PLC
800 The Bodlevard

Capability Creen

Laton

Bedfordshire LU 3BA
Registerec number: 065 166"

www.impetlam.com



